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CORPORAIE PROFILE
NGB

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company*
is the largest optical fibre preform and optical fibre supplier
and the second largest optical cable supplier in the world. The
Company primarily manufactures and sells optical fibre preforms,
optical fibres and optical fibre cables with various standard
specifications that are widely used in the telecommunications
industry. The Company also designs and produces specialty
optical fibres and cables, including specialty integration systems,
engineering design and service that are customised to customers'
specifications. The Company has the most comprehensive
optical fibre and cable product portfolios, and provides a wide
range of optical fibre and cable products with relevant solutions
for the global telecommunications industry and other sectors,
including utilities, transportation, petrochemical and healthcare.
The Company provides high-quality products and services in
more than 50 countries and regions.

The Company, formerly known as Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Company Lltd, was established in Wuhan, Hubei
Province in May 1988 as a sinoforeign equity joint venture.
On 27 December 2013, the Company was converted into a
foreign invested joint stock limited liability company, and was
renamed to Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company*. The substantial shareholders of the Company
include China Huaxin, Draka and Yangtze Communications.

The H shares of the Company were successfully listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 10 December
2014. On 18 December 2015, the Company completed
the Private Placement. As of 31 December 2015, the total
number of issued shares of the Company was increased from
639,462,598 shares to 682,114,598 shares, among which
351,566,794 shares were H shares and 330,547,804 shares

were domestic shares.

*  For identification purposes only

ERACBABRNDAERARR/EIRE KK
IR FOCHI A M EIRE — B Y
&R TRAEMEEBETREZFAN
ERBERMOCHIARE B RE
WRFREHEFABERBOERCE R
B BEEKES  IERRFERS - A2
ABEARTHO BN CEERES B2
RBETEMEMBTE(BEAREE &
W AHETREBRIRHEBAECEER
KAABBIRTT R - EERIRS0% (A K M it &
PE B E AV 2 an AR

RAARB—ANNERAERILERET T
MR INEEDRE  FIBRMRLEL
BERRAA - ARAIN=_TE—=F+=A
Tt ANHANERDBRAR  EHA
ERAEBABERDBERAT - XRRINEE
R BIEPEZERE  Draka R RITEIE °

AABOHER —ZE—NFEF+-_A+BHESE
BB ERANBE LT - RRARZ
E-AF+-A+N\BEXRIFELAFEE -
R-FE-—AF+_A=+—H xRAH
BEITIRGD B EN639,462, 598 IRIE N =
682,114,598 - 351,566,794 H
%+ 330,547,804 BNERL °

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company &Rt S B A DGR A R



FINANCIACHIGHLGHTS
MBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's operating
results were as follows:

Total revenue was RMB6,731.1 million, increased by
approximately 18.6%.

Gross profit and gross profit margin were RMB1,304.2
million and 19.4%, respectively.

Profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB570.7 million, increased by
approximately 22.4%.

The Group's revenue from domestic business increased by
approximately 17.5%, when compared with the prior year.
The Group's overseas revenue increased by approximately
33.0%, when compared with the prior year.

The Board recommended a final dividend of RMBO. 174
(before tax) per share.

BE-F-RF+-A=f+—ALEE. A
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FINANCIAL HIGHUGHTS .iconinved

MR E

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

...............................................................................................................................................................

2011
—F—F
Operafing Result Kexm
Gross profit margin FHl= 17.8%
Net profit margin Pl 8.2%
Return on equity!” BRAEHE 22.9%
Financial Position BEARR
Net cash from operating activities BETHEENREEH
(RMB'000) (AREFT) 594,461
Total assets (RMB'000) BELE(ARETL) 3,496,859
Total non-current assets (RMB'000) FRBEEEEARETT) 1,495,734
Total current assets (RMB'000) MBEERB(ARETT) 2,001,125
Total liabilities (RMB'000) BEeB(ARETT) 1,952,605
Total non-current liabilities (RMB'000) FRBEBELEARETT) 448761
Total current liabilities (RMB'000) mBREeBARETL) 1,503,844
Net Assefs (RMB'000) FEEANRETT) 1,544,254
Gearing ratio BEERLR(M) 51.6%
Working Capital Cycles EELTAY
Average frade and bills receivables THREBERRRRE
turnover days? FERH 111.8
Average frade and bills payable FHREMET LR R
furnover days® FEREE 40.1
Average inventory fumover days'* HEERERYY 32.9
Operating Efficiency EERR(EBARDLE)
(percentage of revenue)
Selling expenses HEER 2.2%
Administrative expenses ERER 9.0%
Net finance costs FREKK 0.5%
Effective fax rate S 8.0%

hFEMBRE
Year ended December 31

BE+-A=1+-ALEE
2012 2013 2014 2015
“T-—F ZZT-=f ZT-WF =—Z-If
18.5% 21.1% 19.2% 19.4%
7.6% 8.6% 8.2% 8.3%
22.1% 25.5% 21.0% 16.8%
496,196 431,146 200,177 550,820
4,008,444 5007731 6,591,116 7,582,809
1,684,782 1,713,461 1,979214 2,554,466
2,323,662 3,204,270 4,611,902 5,028,343
2,257,246 3,498,079 3,679,625 3,851,134
184,848 897,859 1,095,358 874,267
2,072,398 2,600,220 2,584,267 2,976,867
1,751,198 1,509,652 2,911,491 3,731,675
43.0% 47 4% 16.3% 11.0%
99.6 110.8 104.6 104.8
472 66.0 56.2 52.2
34.6 55.6 564 46.3
2.0% 2.3% 2.2% 2.4%
9.0% Q1% 7 .8% 8.2%
1.3% 0.8% 0.8% 1.9%
Q.0% 11.7% 13.2% 11.7%

(1)

Calculated using the profit for the year divided by average total equity
on an annualised basis, multiplied by 100%.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days are based on the
average balance of trade and bills receivables divided by revenue
for the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days. Average balance is
calculated as the average of the beginning balance and ending balance

Average frade and bills payable turnover days are based on the
average balance of trade and bills payable divided by cost of sales
for the relevant year and multiplied by 365 days. Average balance is
calculated as the average of the beginning balance and ending balance

(2)

of a given year.
(3)

of a given year.
(4)

Average inventory turnover days are based on the average balance of
inventory divided by cost of sales for the relevant year and multiplied
by 365 days. Average balance is calculated as the average of the
beginning balance and ending balance of a given year.

(1)

(2)

(3]

(4]

VAZR 4 )8 Bk DA 4F 2 P 49 M 2R AR BRI JA 100% 5T
o

FHRBERRERBYRBEERERRER
t 9 4 LA AR B 7 2 M) A B SR DA 365K A
8 o R ERNTORBEE G BRE RS
TP HBE K -

FHERNERRFRESRBRENRRARER
B A R B AR RE AR MO SH B A AN B IR A 365
Rt - BEFENTHERBFNEHRESF R
BEHETHHEE -

FHEEREREIRTOFEERR ARBFE

EHERAERIASOSKETHE - BEFEMN T
BHRRFVEHREFRERNTOEE -
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R“H
CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EERBE

.

Dear shareholders,

2015 was the first full financial year after the listing of the
Company’s H shares, and was also the last financial year of the
Company's previous five-year plan. The Company has exceeded
the annual operation targets, comprehensively achieved
every goal set by the Board, and consequently delivered
satisfactory results to our shareholders and the society. The major
achievements are reflected in the following areas:

Firstly, we reached record high on operation results: the
Company, by focusing on manufacturing and operation, seizing
every market opportunity, exploring organic growth potentials
and making every efforts to fulfill various demands from our
customers, has comprehensively completed operation targets in
year 2015. Our production and sales both reached historical
highs of 91.13 million tkm and 122.69 million fkm, respectively.
Our revenue increased by 18.6%, the net profit increased by
20.3%, and our earnings per share was RMBO.89. Because
of our favourable operation results, the Company’s shares had
been included in Morgan Stanley Capital International Global
Small Cap Indexes.

EEHH BRI

“E-AFRARAHKREMENE —ET
BYEF R ARLE—ERFFINKE 2
FARBETKTEFREELE  2EE
RTEEERENSTHIERR - BREM
HEXHT - NHHREBNKEE  T2XER
WEATETE :

- REXBAFE  RRINEERER
PL o EEETSHRE  BREENAEE
& ETHBAFBERESEPERNER
b 2EERT _Z-AFKEEH EE
MEEBRELH S 25ERTO1.138
BEABMI22OBETRE  £#FBA
ER18.6%  FHAERKR20.3% 0 FBAF
RARE0.89TT - SENRBRRIFHEER
B RAREERAAERLTANERER
(MSCH 2B/ NURE AR BRI FE 8 -

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company &Rt S B A DGR A R



CHAIRMAN"S STATEMENT (Coniinved)
BEERHEF®

Secondly, we expanded our production bases to new locations:
Taking advantage of “One Belt, One Road” national initiative,
we have completed our domestic industrial layout by establishing
new production bases in Wuhan Science & Technology
Parks; Qianjiang Science & Technology Park, Hubei Province;
Shenyang, Tieling, Liaoning Province; lanzhou, Gansu Province
and lin'an, Zhejiang Province. Among which, the full operation
of cable production lines in Wuhan Science & Technology
Park has greatly improved our delivery capabilities to our local
and overseas customers. In addition, the production base
for perform’s raw materials, preforms and optical fibres in
Qiangjiang Science & Technology Park, Hubei Province is under
construction. This production base will further strengthen the
Company’s leading position in optical fibre preform and optical
fibre industry and can provide strong support for our forthcoming
development as well as our strategic target “To become global
No. 1”. Meanwhile, 2015 was the year of internationalisation
for the Company. We reached out to global markets by
establishing group companies on optical fibre and optical fibre
cable in Myanmar, Indonesia and South Africa. Besides, our 22
overseas sales representative offices have already successfully
conducted their businesses in overseas. In 2015, our overseas
sales volume and revenue have rapidly increased by 26.0% and
33.0%, respectively, which marked a milestone to become a
multinational group.

Thirdly, we set optimised policies for corporate management:
our corporate management has significantly been changed and
improved. After listing, the Company has reformed, adjusted
and improved itself on compliance related matters pursuant to
the relevant requirements for listed companies. Also, we were
awarded with several social honours such as “China Best
Corporate Citizenship Award” as well as “National Quality
Benchmarking”. Meanwhile, we have carried out several new
policies for employees, such as "Vacancy Fill-up Competition”,
optimised remuneration system that closely linked their individual
income with their individual performance, introduced the
mixed ownership system in cerfain of our subsidiaries. More
importantly, the Company has successfully implemented the
ESOP to motivate more than 150 core employees in the
technology and management positions. Through subscription of
shares, they have become shareholders of the Company. All the
abovementioned new policies reflects significant improvement on
the corporate management and have generated positive effect
not only in 2015 but also in the future. Especially, the ESOP and
the mixed ownership system in certain of our subsidiaries will
significantly improve the enthusiasm and creatfivity of employees,
thereby maximising the full potential of employees.

- AEEMBRFL  BPHTFER[—F—
B BEREE - EUERRE - RILEITH
RE - BREZRGEHZE  HERM  NIRE
B FTEEERN B EARTREAREREM
B H e REMBZETACELEEGNEE
BRECARRESHBERINEPHRI[TEE
ERZAILE TR R E R BRE R A-TER
BEABEERENKE - SHFERRENRETE
BB FREMA A RS IRERE
RANER [ 2IRE— IWBRE B RIEHBRE D
MXE - R —T—AFEARANHBEE
tF AREELERBRTS  £E® -
e MIFRILTRBNEEERR - 22
M22Z BN EREHEAMBARER - £
T—0F  BRHEEMEXRABEIIRE
ER - DRI R26.0%M33.0% - HHERQ A
NEBBRRENFR

F= EEEEYHR CXEEBTEK
M EMES - LR RELTRANE
K BITARNNKE  ABMMCE - BHE
AR - WES [FEKRELERARKEAX
RINMT=HEEET |SHERE R - #
H— LBt 8 TR - aniErT [ # R L
RE ] AT A AN B R A R E N E o B
WHl - EFRRITHAMTREAMAR  BEE
BORARBKNERT B THKE -
15022 EERMANEREBTBRET T BER
B BAXKASEENBERAEZ &
ERIRTAREEE ENEANE - EAN
BERER - MEBRE—_FT—0F TR
BAELATR - %5 Bl 2 O JBUBD A A 2 L P /8§ 2
AIETHREMAS $A2XEFHETH
BHREMEEEARARENRIEE THE
BRELZHEEEMEM -
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BEEREHE®

Fourthly, we gained some new achievements on technology
development: the Company has been focusing on investments
in research and development so as to effectively implement
the Company’s business development strategy. In 20135,
we implemented new self-developed preform manufacturing
technology, which marked a pivotal point in our multi-processes
strategy. Meanwhile, the Company announced new products
such as FullBand® Ultra and FarBand® Ultra Low Lloss Fibre,
Cable for Extremely Cold Area, Fibre Perimefer Monitory System
(FPMS), Pre-terminated Cable System for iCONEC Data Centre,
FTTD Integrated Solutions based on Airblown Cabling, FIBBR
HDMI Data Cable, efc. These products contributed to the whole
value chain and related diversification development. As the first
company in China to have a global leading technology in ultra
Llow Loss Fibre production, we announced two Ultra Low Loss
Fibre products with Ultra-high speed (Single channel transmission
rate exceeding 400Gb/s), Ulira-high capacity and can be used
in Ultra-long distance in March 2015 in the 40th Optical Fiber
Communication Conference & Exposition in the U.S ["OFC") and
were highly recognised by the industry.

Fifthly, our high quality products earned “new honours”:
2015 cumulative quality goals fulfillment rate reached
3%, an increase of 7% compared to 2014, and we were
awarded with three international quality awards (including
"ESQR’s Quality Achievement Award 2015 in the Gold
CATEGORY" by European Quality Association, Gold Medal
by ICQCC, “Inspirational company of the BIZZ 2015"
by World Confederation of Business (WORLDCOB]), five
national quality awards (including Nomination of China
Quality Award which is the highest national award in quality,
"National Quality Benchmarking” by Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology ("MIIT"), “15th National Quality Award
Encouragement Award” and “National Advanced Entferprise of
Performance Excellence Model” National Excellent QC Group
and National Excellent Llean Six Sigma Projects by China Quality
Association), and three local quality awards (including “The Sixth
Yangtze River quality Award” by Hubei Government, "Hubei
Famous Brand” and “Wuhan Famous Brand” by Hubei and
Wuhan Bureau of Quality and Technical Supervision).

M RMRAEETR  NAREITHEME
RENEHRA - UXBRAKEEREUE
MERER E_T—HF  BEFEEHH
DGR ETERARR  £ARZIE
EARBEER S R RRIEEELT
2 REEReME R BRemRBEERE
BRMEAE AR IEERZRS
iICONECEUR L BTEmZE LB R - &A1
RRBEBFTTDAR & MR T RIARIERE
(FIBBR) HDMIBUR % - B T AR EZER
BANEBELZTCER  LEEREREE—
EMEANEREZEBERBCHRMAD
¥ RIZE-—RAF=AEFLI0EEE M
BRARES RS ([XEOFC]) EIEA#
A ARESEX(EEEEHERAZ
400Gb/sFIA £) - BBRRE MR K BB
MRBEERAEER SR TEANSE

27 -

FHh EmdEEHE: _FT-AFRF
MEERRGEAERERIIL  HER-F
—NFRST/%  BESIEEREERE
(BREBEMNEEMRHEREN2015EEHE
R - AR EQC/NMAR SR B 8 10 IR
QCIMEAXES RN RHEBHBEREN T
BHEEER])  SHERMEERA(BREE
NEERERSRATHEER 2 ERE
PETERRT [2EEERT KB -
HFHEEHEREN_T-RF[FT+HESR
S8R m iR | [ 2EEREBERER
ERE] 2EEFEEEE )AEANZEE
FH5an /N PIRIEIA B £8) M3IEM ) E B 52IR
(BREENEHILE RIEER]| amEE
B IR E 11L& R | 2R A TR 4 R
BERE) o
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CHAIRMAN"S STATEMENT (Coniinved)
BEERHEF®

looking ahead, with more countries in the world seriously
promoting the “National Broadband” strategy, the development
of 4G network, the launch of infrastructure construction of 5G
network, and especially the “Internet +” and the extension
of internet infrastructure to all villages initiated by Chinese
government, the market demand of global opfical fibre and
cable will keep growing, as a result, 2016 will be another
prosperous year for the telecommunications industry. Facing
the promising market situation, the Company will seize those
opportunities to accelerate the construction of various investment
projects and fo ensure all these projects can be complefed on
schedule and commence mass production as soon as possible.
Meanwhile, 2016 is the opening year of our next five-year
development plan, the Company will accelerate our innovation
on technology, management and business model to achieve
our global No. 1 strategic target. We will simultaneously
formulate and implement, once formulated, our five-year strategic
development plan as well as seek new business opportunities in
order fo ensure our sustainability and fo enhance our profitability.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management team and staff for their
outstanding contribution for our company. | would also like to
thank our shareholders, clients, suppliers, business partners and
the public community. We will make confinuous efforts to create
value for clients, create profit for shareholders, create welfare for
employees, and make confributions for the industry.

Wen Huiguo
Chairman

Wouhan, China
24 March 2016

REARR  BERERZER [ RHBHEE 4
BRAHEE - BERXNBERACRETRB
BOCHBEMRBER - LERETEBRA
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BHAER BRFREFRM - RAE - =
E-RNFER/RA T —EARFHRENFH
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MMAERENEF  EFEEEE RN
BER[2RE—JBRBRNRE - SlEFQ
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GENERALMANAGER'S REPORT
REERE

Dear shareholders,

It is my honour to report to you our operating performance for

2015.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

In 2015, the Group's total revenue was RMB6,731.1 million,
increased by 18.6% compared with last year. The sustainable
growth of our revenue was mainly due to the continuous demand
growth of domestic telecom operators, thus resulting in significant
boost to our performance in domestic market. In the meantime,
through continuous implementation of our internationalisation
strategy and fast expansion in the overseas market, the export
volume of our optical fibre and optical fibre cable had a
significant growth. The annual sales volume of our three major
businesses namely, optical fibre preform, optical fibre and
optical fibre cable, reported double-digit growth. In 2015, our
profit for the year was RMB558.2 million, increased by 20.3%
compared with last year, and the basic earnings per share was

RMBO.89.

=18 0= IVAiLq

BRREEHMAZMBEARR T —HFH

R
BRE

—E-hF  AKREERBERAARY
6,731.TAEET ' ALIBR18.6% WA
FERRTIESENEARAIETEARER
EEEFTREENEE  BAXERRBRIRE
7o AR BHMARFHEEERCBE - KN
MEREINTS BB EOREER - 2
FRAENCHMFERE  HBMSBE=REER
BHEXMEREUHER - —T—HF
EEMNBAARKESS82AE T  AtiER
20.3%  BERERAFNSARKO0.89TT -
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GENERAL MANAGER'S.REPORT (coninued)
48 SR TR SR 4 ()

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

In 2015, our optical fibre preform and optical fibre business
grew by 16.3% compared with last year, which accounted
for 55.8% of our total revenue. During the reporting period,
domestic market demand was high, and the Ministry of
Commerce of China ruled that those companies from United
States and Japan had dumped optical fibre preform on the
Chinese market. By taking this opportunity, sales volume of
optical fibre preform and optical fibre had a sound increase.
Simultaneously, we have established an optical fibre preform
joint venture with Shin-Etsu Chemical Co., ltd (“Shin-Etsu”) in
Qianjiang, Hubei Province, which owns the global leading
preform technology. We had already started small-scale
production of our self-developed VAD preforms. Therefore, we
have basically mastered the three major preform processes in
the world. Besides, YOFC established an optical fibre plant in
Lin'an, Zhejiang Province, to strengthen our vertically infegrated
business model.

In 2015, the revenue of optical fibre cable increased by 32.9%
compared with last year and accounted for 39.3% of our tofal
revenue. During the year, under the guidance of “Broadband
China” strategy, the three major telecom operators continued
to build 4G network, FTTH as well as rural broadband, thus
resulting in the confinuous growth of the Chinese cable market
demand and market shortage. On one hand, we increased
our cable sales volume by taking advantage of this trend. On
the other hand, we set up two wholly-owned cable plants in
lanzhou, Gansu Province and Shenyang Tieling, liconing
Province so as fo strengthen our competitive advantage in the
domestic market.

In 2015, the revenue of other businesses and services decreased
by 27.6% compared with last year and accounted for 4.9%
of our total revenue. With the emergence of data center
construction, we established a subsidiary called Shenzhen
YOFC Connectivity Technologies Co., lid., in order to provide
components and cabling solution services for data center. In
2015, the performance of our cabling and components business
was outstanding, which increased by 144.6% compared with
last year.

RBRE

“E-O%F - RERREREETRAR
iR 16.3% - HBKRAES5.8% <3 & H
W BAMISHERERE - iz B alE
ERENEZBEMB A CEREERPETF
LR - ARRIVERTISHE - KRS
RHBHEMCHEE - B AQFHEE
RIBHEELEE BN GBI RENILET
BRI NABFEREREDLE - B THHACH
BHEBEVADREIZ2OERKIREEE &
MEEARZERR=_REIRACATARERE
T& o fbdh - RRREEN TR ZRILEH
FEEN E-PRICEEEAERBRRER
o

“E-RF RBWRARLLER32.9% 5
MU AE39.3% - 2F - £ [ RS EEE
BT WE-AEEELHHERERE
ERACRBBE - KBEIPMENRE®RS
FEXEMSEBREERER  mHHRLE
BR e ARB—HEIMELTISEE - BAH
B m—E EHREBMNMERESEHSE
MEMEZEABEES N TERANER

hE - ZEMSHFES -

—ZE-0%F EEERNMRBWRARLL TR
27.6%  WHEBWA49% - BEE P EEEP
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RREE  REARBETOERNESMH
BEBADTRRANEY  —T-RFFRERX
BHe GefERATEBRARLER
144.6% °
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GENERA . NAGER'S REPORT [Cominued'
M IRIRER A ()

MARKET DEVELOPMENT

Our company continued strengthening our optical fibre
preform, optical fibre and optical fibre cable businesses and
had maintained a leading position in the domestic telecom
operators’ market. Meanwhile, we continued implementing
the internationalisation strategy to further expand our overseas
market. Moreover, we actively promoted our new products,
developed the market of specialty fibre applications, expanded
clientele as well as increased our market share.

We endeavoured on the implementation of our
internationalisation strategy in 2015 by establishing an optical
fibre plant in Indonesia, which was the first optical fibre
company in Southeast Asia. We also established optical fibre
and optical fibre cable plant in South Africa. We added 14 new
overseas sales offices and we explored our sales and provide
services to our customers through localisation. The overseas
business had a rapid growth, and the export volume of optical
fibre and optical fibre cable increased by 26.0% compared with
last year. Our presence in Myanmar had started operation in
2015 and achieved good results.

In 2015, we set up the Specialty Product Business Unit to
develop this business based on product line. For the whole year,
the revenue of specialty product business increased by 46.5%
as compared fo last year. In the meantime, we acquired the
controlling stake in NK Wuhan, which enabled us to win orders
on radio frequency copper coaxial cables during the central
bidding process of China Mobile and China Tower and enabled
us fo re-enfer info the communication power cable market of
telecom operators after ten years.

In 2015, we launched our ultra low-loss fibres, G.652 and
G.654 in OFC, one of the top three conferences in global
optical fibre and optical fibre cable industry. We also held a
new product introduction meeting in Beijing for Chinese telecom
operators. In China Unicom’s backbone network, our G.654
fibre was the first in the world being used on land network
connection. At the same time, we held approximately 30
exhibitions in China and abroad to promote our products and
expand the market.

miEHhR

ARREHBZENBTREE  LBRE
X% RBEEBAEEELZRAMENALL
UHRAE  FHEEREBRCBE  REAR
BHNTIG o BEIN - RRARERBETHER
WE MRFEAEEATSIBEERET
% BARPHBEMMISER -

“E-0F ARAEBRFEHEBERCER
EHERZRAEMESE —EL#eE &
MIFEEAMCELE - WL 1AEEI
MER RRFEEETPRBAME - B
FERNBEF - AENMAEBELEOERLIER
260%  R-E—HFREELNRRAD
RERBHISHEES -

—E-RF ARARIUBREMEER
BEEANERBNEBRERRN - 2F5RE
EmEHHEWARLLIERL6.5% - A
ARRWBLEBENRZEZY - RIEFEE
BMTEEERGER  BRTZFEME
ATEEEEZHBEEEMS -

“E-RF - ARAEEZR=ZKREHEE
& -XBIOFC LM THBERBGC.6527
C.o54%H - BHEIRBRATHETEEE
EEBNAERENE - ARANGC.654%
BERREXARELERER  ETEBB
—MBRLEER - AR EEANERES
M=1+R - HEARER RS -

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company &Rt S B A DGR A R



GENERAL MANAGER'S.REPORT (coninued)
48 S 3 3 A ()

FOCUS ON INTELLIGENT MANUFACTURING AND
ENHANCE THE BRAND’S GLOBAL INFLUENCE

In 2015, YOFC, as the only company representing Hubei
Province and the optical fibre and cable industry, was selected
as one of the first 46 pilot demonstration companies on intelligent
manufacturing by the MIIT. Such nomination offered us a good
foundation to fully implement the intelligent manufacturing. At
the same time, we continuously implementing management
improvement and cost reduction projects, so as to improve our
operational efficiency and cost effectiveness.

In 2015, we organised the first CRU APAC Optical Fibre
and Cable Conference in Wuhan, which was one of the
top three conferences for the global optical fibre and cable
industry. Meanwhile, we got 11 domestic and overseas quality
awards, such as Golden Award of International QC Group,
Management and Quality Award from WORLDCOB, the
National Quality Benchmarking and Yangtze Quality Award.
We also received the Best Corporate Citizenship Award from
21ST CENTURY BUSINESS HERALD in China. All of these further

enhanced our brand’s global influence.
OUTLOOK FOR 2016

In 2016, under the roadmap of the new five-year strategic
development plan, YOFC will grasp every to market opportunity,
further strengthen our leading position in optical fibre preform,
optical fibre and cable business, continuously implement
infernationalisation strategy, deepen diversification, ensure the
implementation of strategic plan, optimise management system
and further strengthen our research and development. Lastly,
YOFC will keep developing rapidly and create higher value for
our shareholders and customers. Our objectives are as follows:

Strengthen our leading position in optical fibre preform,
optical fibre and cable business: With strong market demand
and shortage in supply, we will seize the opportunities by
making good use of competitive advantage on our supply of
resources, enhancing and developing our customer relationship,
and further increasing the sales volume and market share in
China. Furthermore, we will speed up the construction of the
following projects, YOFC & Shin-Etsu preform joint venture,
our self-developed VAD project, optical fibre project in Lin‘an,
optical fibre cable plant in Lanzhou, which will all enhance our
productivity and supply capability.
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GENERA . NAGER'S REPORT [Cominued'
M IRIRER A ()

Deepen internationalisation: On one hand, YOFC will speed
up the optical fibre project in Indonesia and the optical fibre
and optical fibre cable project in South Africa, seek investment
opportunities in emerging markets and improve the overseas
strategic layout. On the other hand, YOFC will further strengthen
our overseas sales feam, increase distribution channels, improve
localisation of sales and customer service, and continuously
expand the export volume of our optical fibre and optical fibre
cable.

Speed up the diversification development: YOFC will enlarge
the scale of cabling business, specialty product business and
active optical cable business as well as explore to develop
communication power cable and network technology service
business. Moreover, YOFC will continue to seek opportunities in
new markefs to ensure the sustainable growth of our revenue and
profit.

Enhance research and development: YOFC will continue to
selF-develop new preform technologies. We will use integrated
product development management to optimise the research and
development system so as fo release more new products, which
have market potential and competitiveness, thus enhancing the
competitiveness of the Company.

Optimise operation management: We will keep implementing
the cost reduction projects to improve the production and
operational efficiency. We will also improve and opfimise our
operation process as well as enhance our projects’ execution
and supervision processes to improve our management'’s
efficiency.

Zhuang Dan
General Manager

Wouhan, China
24 March 2016
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MAJOR PRODUEIS,AND SOLUTIONS

FTEEm NIRRT

Optico| Fibre Preform
KBTERE

® Feed materials from which
optical fibres are drawn

e The most technological part
within the entire value chain

SR AR R R

EEEXETRNEEKSHED

Specialty Fibre and Cable
BREXHEXE

® Specialty fibres are custom
designed for demanding
applications and environment
such as mining, aerospace,
and medical industries

* We also provide integrated
service solution using specialty

fibre and cable

* BRAHMREBEPHREMN -
AIARRRIRIRIE - fIanFEsE -
X - BERFEY

* R AHEHFEC AR
REBR®

Optical Fibre

Solid strands of hair-thin, high
quality glass

Electrical signals are converted
into light waves and transmitted
through optical fibre

EEGIEM  BREES LA
BRI BRI B

Cabling Solutions
RE iR

Wire and cables, connectors
and modules are applied as
an integrated system in data
centers, industrial control, FTTx,
efc.

BEAREMLE  ERBNER
BIRE - ERAHRES - BRE
T TRES - R ASE
Etel

Optical Fibre Cable
KR

Optical fibres bundled together
into cables

Bundled fibres were encased in
profective jackets

NHBEPRRRBKNE

L]
* BIREVCEIEINNINREE

Active Optical Cables (AOC)

BIR K E(AOC)

AOC are primarily used to
connect between consumer
electronic devices, and between
devices in personal computing
and in data cenfers

AQOC can significantly enhance
fransmission speed and save
energy

ACCEIERRNERHEET
Em o RBEHRONER
ACCRI B Z R = EHEE -
EIHIKEBEIR
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TONES IN 2015
20155 8%

With favourable market sentiment and our relentless endeavours, BARRTNTSBEAMEMNENS S - &

we have attained several milestones and further solidified our MERTEREANER  TEET RME
positions in the whole value chain. RERFEDHMA -

Raw Material Optical Fibre Preform Optical Fibre Optical Fibre Cable Cabling Solutions
R HF R KA TEARE bt 3 biot ] REMBRBRA R

1\
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KEY MILESTONES IN 2015 (Coniined)
2015 B

Beyond fraditional boundaries, we seek new frontiers EEFES 2
and better corporate governance fo benefit our
shareholders.

BRI EREEL TET

NEDRIBAEBLARISERUR

New businesses #T¥7%

Technology Breakthroughs % 17 22 %

e With selFdeveloped VAD and the joint venture e launch of “FIBBR" brand in September 2015

with Shin-Etsu, YOFC is the only company
to master all three preform manufacturing
processes;

In March 2015, YOFC led the future trend
of ultral low attenuation and released the
FullBand® and FarBand® fibre. These products
meet the demands for transmitting signal with
high speed, high capacity and extended
networking distances.

HAE A EMEVADREEHA BRI - BER
EE2NE——RABEE-BEAERER
(nl:0NCIE
—T-RFZA - RRELERKBE - Bih
THREER2EBAORERBBAEKE
ARER a3 RERBHERES -

Our shares had been included in Morgan
Stanley Capital International Global Small
Cap Index [MSCI) in May 2015 after less than
six months of the listing of the H shares of the
Company;

In July 2015, we were being selected as a
pilot demonstration company in Made in China
2025. YOFC is the only company selected from
Hubei province and represented the industry;
High quality products are what we always
deliver. In 2015, we collected three
international quality awards; five national
quality awards and three local quality awards.

BAIEHR ERABREAR —E—R1%F
T AWM ABER L PR 2 BRI RIS
“E-RFEA BARERTEREE-T
“HRBIER - KRB ML EHE ——K KT
EME——RAERA]

BB ENINERSEEER - —T—F
FRMED TIEEREEE SHERNEE
RN3EM T E S -

and we are the first company launching the
HDMI 4K high resolution cables;

* We get into the integrated system and cabling

solution business and network construction
projects business as well as the provision of
technological services on cabling network
business.

R-ZZE—AFNAHEM THBEMBE - HM
EE—REMEBAKCEERNAF
EANGAMENER TIREL - UARIBHEE
B AR AR

ESOP B I #FMKatEl

In December 2015, we completed the ESOP.
The ESOP shares represent approximately
4.69% of the existing issued shares as enlarged;
The ESOP will incentivise the management
and core employees and further enhance the
corporate governance sfructure;

The proceeds will be used to expand the
optical fibre preform production capacity and to
support the development of our business.

ERR -_ZE—HE+_-_A%K T8 IT#HR
gl o BTRHBRERBBRMDLAABL.69%
ESOP¥ MBI EREBRZLET  #E—FxE
NADRB LR

BTG REERANTELEERNBERRX
BRBEBHEE -
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BB MR

ENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Key raw materials

Preforms

Optical fibres

Optical fibre cables

Cabling system
solution

SR s bt bt N
e Germanium PCVD Comprehensive e Comprehensive e Cabling system
tetrachloride VAD optical fibres for optical fibre related products
and Silicon o communication cables for and solutions
tetrachloride Specialty optical communication N
_ _ LEr TR B fibres e Specialty optical ¢ ma ﬁﬁf’%’%
o UE{LERIUEA W fibre cables MHEERK
=4 SR 2EIBIES M fRR7 R
HRRARTR HR 2 RSB
SNEMLEBSRARTE FriE NS
Production equipment Production equipment Production equipment
for preforms for optical fibres for optical fibre cables
ERBELEERE HEEERE HELEERE
System integration and technical
services for network engineering
RS AL B % TR E RS
Revenue Year-on-year
in 2015 Percentage growth of
(RMB million) of revenue revenue
—E-HF
L'ON
(AR¥EER) WAL BARLER
Optical fibre preforms and fibres St TE B K 3,756.5 55.8% 16.3%
Optical fibre cables 2,643.3 39.3% 32.9%
Other products and services HuhE R IRE 331.3 4.9% (27.6%)
Total 6,731.1 100.0% 18.6%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninved
MIEJE n-.l-iﬁ&l? *ﬁ(iﬁ)

Value Chain Extension Multi-Processes Internationalisation Diversification

BERE ZIEER Bk il e
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

OVERVIEW

2015 was the first full financial year affer the Listing Date. Being
one of the global leading optical fibre preform, optical fibre and
optical fibre cable suppliers, the Group continued its growing
momentum by utilising its available proceeds from the listing, the
Private Placement conducted during the year as well as internal
generated resources to expand its production capacities through
building new plants both locally and overseas as well as through
an acquisition and co-operations with our strategic partners.

In 2015 and onwards, we still commit ourselves to extensive
applications of optical fibre technology so as to become the
leader of information transmission and intelligent connections
and create additional value to our stakeholders.

During the year under review, the Group's revenue reached
another year of record high to approximately RMB6,731.1
million, increased by approximately 18.6% as compared to
2014 of approximately RMB5,676.8 million. The Group
reported a gross profit of RMB1,304.2 million, increased by
approximately 19.9% as compared to 2014 of approximately
RMB1,087.6 million. Excluding the finance costs and tax,
the Group's profit before interests (net finance costs) and tax
("EBIT") increased significantly from RMB581.9 million in 2014
to RMB756.9 million in 2015, representing an increase of
30.1%. The Group's profit for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB570.7 million, increased by approximately 22.4% as
compared to 2014 of approximately RMB466.3 million.

—E-REDHRARR LT AMKRNE @
TEMBEE - ERERBLNLETAR
Bt AERER . NRERBN
R LEMAESIR AFEIFAFHEENURA
MEEZEBERNBEBEAINIEZIR - KB
AR R B ETEIES D BER
EERE - WMIEEAREE AL RBE -

MRZTB-—RFERNRE  BRFUKEBIRK
BRMNEZEAARABERBRLERE
ZEBHEEE  RBEANRREERIME
@ o

RAFE  AEERABEFE  ORAR
Bo7311ABT B_T-HFEHARE
56768 BB ILIERA18.6% - AEBEER
/RARK13042B8T  B_ZT—NFYH
ARME1,087.6B8TERAN19.9% < B &
MBERRTE  AEESOFREKRAN)B
AAE(TRRAAE DB T —HFARE
SBIOBEBTEENRE_ZT—NTFARYK
756 9B EIT - BIBRI30.1% o NEEK
AERRBEDFAEAREMNEBEOSARE
5707887 BR-_ZT-—HFHARKEL66.3
BETERN22.4% -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

EEEBNmRD T

OVERVIEW (Continued)

Basic earnings per share was RMBO.89 per share (2014:
RMBO.95 per share), which was calculated based on
the enlarged weighted average number of shares issued,
further details of which are set out in note 11 to the audited
consolidated financial statements as set out in this annual report.

On the other hand, the Company managed to generate positive
cash flows from operating activities, further details of which are
explained in the section headed “cash flow analysis” below.

2015 was another year of great significance to the Group.
Apart from our satisfactory financial results, we also made some
great achievements and earned certain recognitions during
2015, including three international quality awards, five national
quality awards and three local quality awards. Our shares had
been included in Morgan Stanley Capital International Global
Small Cap Indexes on 29 May 2015 after less than six months
of the listing of the Company. The Company together with an
international research company with headquarter based in
United Kingdom called CRU jointly hosted the first Asia Pacific
Optical Fibre and Cable Conference in Wuhan, China from
14 to 16 October 2015. This conference marked a milestone
for China's optical fibre and cable business and our leading
position in the industry. During 2015, we followed our footprints
and our four major strategies namely, value chain extension,
multi-processes, internationalisation, and diversification to
implement our development and expansion plans. During
2015, we brought in eight new subsidiaries and two joint
ventures through our own establishments, an acquisition and co-
operations with local and global strategic partners and set up
more presences in both China and overseas. Another 14 (2014:
8) overseas sales representative offices were newly opened in
2015 and the Group now has 22 overseas sales representative
offices. Further details of our new subsidiaries and joint ventures
are discussed below. Upon completion of all these investments,
the Group's competitive advantage will become more solid and
the Group's market position can be further strengthened.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

REVENUE

The Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2015
was approximately RMB6,731.1 million, representing an
increase of 18.6% as compared to 2014 of approximately

RMB5,676.8 million.

By product segment, a total revenue of approximately
RMB3,756.5 million was contributed from our optical fibre
preform and optical fibre segment, representing a growth of
16.3% as compared to 2014 of approximately RMB3,229.7
million and accounting for 55.8% (2014: 56.9%) of the Group's
revenue; while a total revenue of RMB2,643.3 million was
contributed from our optical fibre cable segment, representing
a much higher growing momentum of 32.9% as compared to
2014 of approximately RMB1,989.4 million and accounting for
39.3% (2014: 35.0%) of the Group's revenue. The significant
growth in the Group's revenue during 2015 was mainly due to
the ramp up of 4G infrastructure construction by the State-owned
Telecommunication Operators and the ongoing “Broadband
China” initiatives announced by the Chinese government. These
two factors had mainly driven up the demand for optical fibres
and optical fibre cables during 2015. The recent shortage
of supply of optical fibres and anti-dumping against imported
preforms brought in additional momentum for growth in revenue,
in particular, on the average selling price for both optical fibres
and optical fibre preforms starting from the last quarter of 2015.

A total revenue of approximately RMB331.3 million was
contributed from others, representing a decrease of 27.6% as
compared to 2014 of approximately RMB457.7 million and
accounting for 4.9% (2014: 8.1%) of the Group's revenue
because of the significant decrease in sales of fibre drawing
fower equipment despite the significant growth in sales of indoor
cabling system. It is expected that this segment will catch up once
again when our new businesses, such as active optical cables,
indoor cabling, cloud computing and provision of services on
infernet constructions, grow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|
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REVENUE (Continued)

By geographical segment, a total revenue of approximately
RMB6,201.5 million was from customers in China, representing
an increase of 17.5% (2014: 17.7%) as compared to 2014 of
approximately RMB5,278.7 million and accounting for 92.1%
of the Group's revenue. During 2015, the revenue for optical
fibre cable in China grew by 30.1% while the optical fibre and
optical fibre preform in China grew by 17.5%. Another key
product type which reported a significant growth in revenue
is the indoor cabling system. lts revenue in 2015 had been
doubled. For overseas sales, a total revenue of approximately
RMB529.6 million was reported in 2015, representing an
increase of 33.0% (2014: 16.2%) as compared to 2014
of approximately RMB398.1 million and accounting for
approximately 7.9% of the Group's revenue. The key drivers
for the growth in overseas sales were the optical fibre cable
and indoor cabling system. The former grew by 58% while the
later grew by 5 times during 2015 when compared with those
numbers in 2014.

During 2015, the Group had achieved strong business
development in both local and overseas telecommunications
operator market, which is one of the key stimulators for the
significant growth in the Group's revenue.

COST OF SALES

The Group's cost of sales for the year ended 31 December
2015 was approximately RMB5,426.9 million, representing
an increase of 18.3% as compared to 2014 of approximately
RMB4,589.2 million and accounting for 80.6% of the Group's
revenue. The increase in cost of sales was in line with the
increase in sales volume.

The Group's cost of sales included i) raw material costs; {ii)
manufacturing overheads (including depreciation on machinery
and equipment, consumables, rental expenses, utilities and other
manufacturing overheads); and (iii) direct labour costs.

In 2015, the Group's total raw material costs was approximately
RMB4,918.4 million, representing an increase of 18.6% as
compared to approximately RMB4,146.6 million in 2014.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's
manufacturing overheads and direct labour costs amounted to
approximately RMB508.5 million, representing an increase of

14.9% as compared to RMB442.6 million in 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group reported a
gross profit of RMB1,304.2 million, representing an increase
of 19.9% as compared to RMB1,087.6 million in 2014 and
the gross profit margin was kept at 19.4% in 2015 (2014
19.2%). The slight increase in gross profit margin in 2015 was
mainly due to the change in sales mix as well as the upward
adjustment in average selling price for both optical fibre and
preform starting from the last quarter of 2015. During 2015,
we still had to engage those joint ventures as well as some
independent third parties to manufacture optical fibre cables
prior to our completion of all our optical fibre cable plants both
locally and overseas. Although more optical fibre cable sales
were fransacted in 2015, part of these sales orders was satisfied
by purchases from outsiders. This part of sales generated a
relatively low gross profit margin than our self-produced optical
fibre cables. Approximately 69.6% of optical fibre cable sales
was not self-produced by ourselves but purchased from outsiders.
Besides, the decrease in average selling price of optical
fibre during the first half of 2015 eroded away some of the
contributions from the recent upward adjustment in selling price
on both optical fibres and preforms starting from the last quarter

of 2015
OTHER INCOME

Other income was RMB87.2 million in 2015, representing 2.8
times of RMB31.6 million in 2014. The increase was mainly
because more government grants were recognised during the
year and the gain on a bargain purchase of RMB30.0 million
was recognised from the business combination of NK Wuhan.

SELLING EXPENSES

The Group's selling expenses for the year ended 31 December
2015 were RMB163.0 million, representing an increase
of 31.2% as compared to RMB124.3 million in 2014. The
increase was mainly due fo the set up of more overseas sales
representative offices and the increase in freight charges incurred
for both local and overseas sales.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

EEENWED @

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The Group's administrative expenses for the year ended 31
December 2015 were RMB551.5 million, representing an
increase of 25.0% as compared to RMB441.2 million in
2014. The increase was mainly due to the increase in research
and development expenses, the increase in staff costs and
the increase in royalty fee payable to Draka, a company
incorporated in the Netherlands, a substantial shareholder of
the Company, as well as more expenses were incurred by the
Croup because of the increase in the number of consolidated
subsidiaries.

NET FINANCE COSTS

The Group's net finance costs for the year ended 31 December
2015 were RMB124.9 million, representing an increase
of 164.6% as compared to RMB47.2 million in 2014.
The increase was mainly due to foreign exchange loss of
RMB84.7 million so arising from the re-measurement of those
foreign currency liabilities, which are mostly foreign currency
denominated bank loans. Since the 11 August fixing reform in
2015, the Renminbi's middle price against US Dollars and Euro
depreciated by 4.2% and 4.9%, respectively.

The interest rates of the bank loans in 2015 ranged from 0.72%
to 3.92% per annum (2014: 1.54% to 4.43% per annum), while

the annual effective interest rate for the borrowings in 2015 was

2.57%(2014: 3.10%).
INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax for the year ended 31 December 2015
was RMB73.8 million, representing an increase of 4.4% as
compared to RMB70.7 million. On the other hand, the effective
tax rate decreased from 13.2% in 2014 to 11.7% in 2015.
In 2014, the Company continued to be recognised as an
approved hightech enterprise for another three years starting
from 2015 to 2017 and was entitled to a preferential tax rate of

15%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|
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EXPANSION OF PRODUCTION CAPACITIES

During 2015, we had continuously upgraded our existing
production facilities so as to maximise their annual production
capacities and production efficiencies in order to cope with
the strong orders demand from both locally and globally. All
the existing production capacities for the three major products
at headquarter in Wuhan had been fully utilised throughout the
year. Hence, we are in need of additional capacities to cope
with the upcoming growing demands in 2016 and onwards.
The existing annual designed production capacities of the
production base located in Wuhan as well as those newly
added annual designed production capacities that had been
completed during 2015 and to be completed onwards both
locally and globally for optical fibre preforms, optical fibres
and optical fibre cables will be increased by 44.7%, 62.8%
and 134.0%, respectively, when compared with the production
capacities of these three major products in 2014.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

During the year, the Group incurred a fotal capital expenditure
of approximately RMB322.3 million (2014: RMB390.1 million)
for the purchases of property, plant and equipment, construction
in progress and lease prepayments, which were primarily related
fo the production capacity expansion of our three major products
and the improvement in production efficiency of our existing
production capacity on optical fibre preforms and optical fibres
both locally and globally.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BEEEN WIS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

On 10 December 2014, the Company’s H shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. A fofal
of 159,870,000 H Shares with nominal value of RMB1.00
each of the Company were issued at HK$7.39 per share
for a total of approximately RMB932.5 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,181.4 million). The net proceeds from
the abovementioned offering of the Company’s H shares (affer
deducting underwriting fees and related listing expenses)
amounted to approximately RMB892.4 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,130.6 million). Up to the year ended 31
December 2015, the net proceeds from the initial public offering
had not yet been fully utilised. As at the date of this annual
report, a fotal amount of approximately RMB858.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$ 1,087 .4 million) from the net
proceeds from the listing had been ufilised in accordance with
the percentage of uses as set out in the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The unutilised nef
proceeds have been deposited into shortterm demand deposits
in a bank account maintained by the Group. In 2016 and
the upcoming years, the Company will continue to utilise the
remaining nef proceeds from the initial public offering for the
purpose consistent with those set out in the Prospectus.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE PRIVATE PLACEMENT

The Company issued an aggregate of 11,869,000 H shares
and 30,783,000 domestic shares by way of private placement
on 18 December 2015. Details of the Private Placement are set
out in nofes 31 and 32 fo the audited consolidated financial
statements in this annual report. The aggregate net proceeds
from the Private Placement (after deducting underwriting fees
and related issuing expenses] amounted to RMB251.3 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$302.5 million] will be used to
construct the Phase Il project of YOFC Science & Technology
Park in Qianjiang fo expand the optical fibre preform production
capacity of the Group and to support the development of the
business of the Group, in particular, for capacity expansion both
domestically and overseas, and as general working capital,
respectively.

As af the date of this annual report, the Company had applied
part of the net proceeds, which was consistent with the purpose
of uses mentioned above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

GEARING RATIO

The Group monitors its leverage using a gearing ratio, which
is net debts divided by total equity. Net debts include all bank
loans less cash and cash equivo|ems The Group s gearing ratio

as at 31 December 2015 was 11.0% (2014: 16.3%).

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS

The following table sefs forth the selected cash flow data derived
from the consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31

December 2015
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Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  IR& NIR & E B W)L hNF 58 9,808 1,105,777

The Group's net cash generated from operating activities
increased by approximately RMB350.6 million, which was
mainly due to the increase in profit before taxation by RMBQ7.3
million and the positive change in working capital of RMB240.4
million.

The Group's nef cash used in investing activities increased by
approximately RMB191.1 million, which was mainly due to the
commencement of the construction of Phase Il YOFC Science
& Technology Park in Qianjiang and some other local and
overseas projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BEEEN WIS

CASH FLOW ANALYSIS (Continued)

The Group's net cash generated from financing activities
decreased by approximately RMB1,255.5 million, which was
mainly due to the cash inflows generated from the listing of the
Company completed on 10 December 2014 and more bank
loans were obtained in 2014. During 2015, the level of bank
loans maintained at the same level of the prior year and the net
proceeds received from the Private Placement was less than the
net proceeds received from the listing.

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2015 were
cash at banks and in hand, which were mainly in Renminbi, US

Dollars, Euro, and HK Dollars.
NET CURRENT ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's net current assets was
RMB2,051.5 million, increased slightly by RMB23.8 million
from RMB2,027.6 million as at 31 December 2014. The slight
increase in net current assets was mainly due to the combined
effect of (i] the increase in trade and bills receivable by
approximately RMB374.1 million being caused by the increase
in revenue arising from the increasing demand for optical fibres
and optical fibre cables as a result of the 4G infrastructure
construction and the “Broadband China” national strategy;
([ii) increase in trade and bills payables by approximately
RMB152.4 million; and (iii) increase in current portion of bank
loans of approximately RMB171.4 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|
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BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's bank loans were
RMB2,457 .4 million, representing a slight decrease of
RMB26.7 million from approximately RMB2,484.1 million as
at 31 December 2014. As at 31 December 2015, 41.8% of
the Group's bank loans were fixed rafe loans and 58.2% were
floating rate loans. Out of the Group's bank loans, 69.8% was
Euro loans, 22.6% was US Dollars loans, and the remaining
balance of 7.6% was Renminbi loans.

Starting from 2014, market generally expects that US Dollars
will be getting strong and the rise in inferest rate by the Federal
Reserve will become more frequent. Borrowing US Dollars loan
will then become more costly. After the Renminbi fixing reform
on 11 August 2015 and market expectation towards the rise
of interest rate by the Federal Reserve becoming strong and
Renminbi was getting weaker against US Dollars, the Group then
had taken actions to lower down the level of US Dollars loans in
October and November 2015 by using Euro loans to replace
US Dollars loans. As a result, the percentage of the US Dollars
loans decreased from 87.7% in 2014 to 22.6% in 2015, while
the percentage of Euro loans increased from 12.3% in 2014 to

69.8% in 2015.
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's outstanding capital
commitments in relation to property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMBQ43.9 million (2014:
approximately RMB360.4 million), lease prepayment amounted
to approximately RMB44.0 million (2014: approximately
RMB52.2 million), and investment in equity securities amounted
to approximately RMB226.8 million (2014: approximately
RMB45.1 million). Out of total outstanding commitments as at
31 December 2015 of approximately RMB1,214.7 million
(2014: RMB457.7 million), a total amount of approximately
RMB428.9 million (2014: approximately RMB85.9 million) had
been contracted for and the remaining balance of approximately
RMB785.8 million (2014: approximately RMB371.8 million)
had been authorised by the Board but not yet contracted for.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BEEEN WIS

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not charge any of its

assets fo secure any banking facility or bank loan.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach on its funding and
freasury policy, which aims to maintain an optimal financial
position and the most economic finance costs as well as minimise
the Group's financial risks. The Group regularly reviews the
funding requirements to ensure adequate financial resources
fo support its business operations and future investments and
expansion plans as and when needed.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

Most of the revenues and expenses are sefiled in Renminbi while
some of the Group's sales, purchases and financial liabilities are
denominated in US Dollars and Euro. Most of the bank deposits
are in Renminbi, US Dollars, Euro and HK Dollars.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group did not enter into any
foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps or other
financial derivatives. Owing fo the surprise Renminbi devaluation
in mid-August 2015 and Renminbi's weakness has been
gathering speed, Renminbi against other foreign currencies was
no longer as strong as in the past. As a result, this might bring up
cost of purchases and the re-measurement of our foreign currency
liabilities would result in foreign currency losses. Starting from
11 August 2015, the Group suffered from the unfavourable
fluctuations in exchange rate movements between Renminbi and
US Dollars or Euro, which resulted in foreign exchange losses of

RMB84.7 million in 2015.

The Group will closely monitor the ongoing movements on
exchange rates and will consider entering into hedging
arrangements to minimise our foreign currency exposures in
2016 in view that high volatility in Renminbi will be the theme for
2010.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had approximately 2,802
fulltime employees (2014: 1,805 fulltime employees). The
Croup has designed an annual evaluation system to assess the
performance of its employees. Such system forms the basis of
determining whether an employee should be entitled to salary
increments, bonuses or promotions. The salaries and bonuses
that the employees receive are competitive with market rates. The
Company has been in compliance with the relevant national and
local labour and social welfare laws and regulations in China.

On 19 October 2015, the Company approved to adopt the
ESOP, pursuant to which target participants of the scheme
may subscribe for scheme units and the target participants
of the scheme are core personnel playing a crucial role
in the Company's overall performance and mid and long-
term development, including directors, supervisors, senior
management personnel, middle-level cadres and key employees
of the Group (excluding independent non-executive directors and
external supervisors). Details of the Private Placement completed

n 18 December 2015 are set out in notes 31 and 32 to the
financial statements as set out in this annual report.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, the Company entered into non-
recourse trade receivables factoring arrangements with
a commercial bank in China with a carrying amount of
approximately RMB62.8 million {2014: RMB332.8 million). In
addition, as at 31 December 2015, the Company discounted
and endorsed certain bank bills receivable with a carrying
amount of approximately RMB245.4 million (2014: RMB422.7

million) to certain commercial banks in China and its suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BEEEN WIS

FORMATION OF OVERSEAS PRESENCES
MYANMAR

In December 2014, the Company agreed to jointly establish
an optfical fibre cable joint venture in Myanmar (the “Myanmar
V') with @ local partner in Myanmar to promote and develop
optical fibre cables. The Myanmar JV is held as to 50% by the
Company and as to 50% by the local partner in Myanmar. The
initial paid-up capital of the Myanmar JV is US Dollars 4 million
and the Company had already paid up its portion in full. During
the year, the Myanmar JV had commenced its operations and the
financial results of the Myanmar JV had been consolidated in the
Croup's financial statements as a joint venture from the date of ifs
establishment.

INDONESIA

In January 2015, the Company and PT. Monas Permata
Persada ("PT Monas”) agreed to establish a joint venture (the
“Indonesia JV') in Indonesia to promote and develop optical fibre
manufacturing, sales and its related business. The Indonesia JV
is held as to 70% by the Company and 30% by PT Monas. The
paid-up capital of the Indonesia JV is US Dollars 10 million and
the Company had paid up its portion in full. During the year,
the Indonesia JV had started the construction of its production
facilities and is expected to be completed during the second
half of 2016. The financial results of the Indonesia JV had been
consolidated in the Group's financial statements as a non-wholly
owned subsidiary after its establishment.

AFRICA

In December 2015, the Board approved the establishment of
an optical fibre cable plant in Africa. In January 2016, Yangtze
Optics Africa Holdings Propriefary Limited (the “Africa JV") and
Yangtze Optics Africa Cable Proprietary Limited were registered
and the latter is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Africa JV. The
paid-up capital of the Africa JV is US Dollars 10 million and the
Africa JV is held as to 74.9% by the Group and 25.1% by the
local pariner in Africa. The financial results of the Africa JV will be
consolidated in the Group financial statements as a non-wholly
owned subsidiary from the date of its establishment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

FORMATION OF NEW PRESENCES IN CHINA
CABLING SOLUTIONS JV

On 15 April 2015, the Company established a joint venture
namely Shenzhen YOFC Connectivity Technologies Co., Lid.
with some ex-employees of the Company to promote and
develop cabling system related products and solutions by making
use of the Company’s existing optical network distribution
platform (the “Cabling Solutions JV"). Products manufactured
by the Cabling Solutions JV include indoor cables, connectors,
components and modules as well as integrated solutions
which shall be applied for use in data centre, data centre
inferconnection, industrial control, and FTTx including fibre-to-
the residence or home (FTTH), building (FTTB), desk (FTTD) or
Antenna (FTTA]. The Cabling Solutions JV is held as to 75% by
the Company and the remaining 25% by certain ex-employees
of the Company (all of whom are not connected persons of the
Company as defined under the Hong Kong Listing Rules). The
Cabling Solutions JV's paid-up capital was RMB30 million. The
Company had contributed its part in full as at 31 December
2015 and the portion contributed by those ex-employees of the
Company was subsequently paid up in full during 2016. The
Cabling Solutions JV had commenced its operation with effect
on 1 July 2015. The state of affairs and the financial results of
the Cabling Solutions JV had been consolidated in the Group's
financial statements as a non-wholly owned subsidiary since ifs
commencement of operation.

SHENYANG AND LANZHOU CABLE PLANT

On 16 June 2015 and 13 July 2015, the Company established
two wholly-owned subsidiaries namely Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Shenyang Co., lid. ["YOFC Shenyang”) and
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable lanzhou Co., lid. ("YOFC
Lanzhou"), respectively, so as to befter serve our custfomers in
the north eastern and north western part of China and to align
with “One Belt, One Road” national strategy. Each of these
subsidiaries is involved in the manufacture and distribution of
optical fibre cables with an initial designed annual production
capacities of 2 million fkm each. The paid-up capital of YOFC
Shenyang and YOFC Llanzhou are RMB20 million and RMB30
million, respectively. A tofal of RMB15.2 million was contributed
by the Company to YOFC Shenyang and the paid up capital to
YOFC Llanzhou had been fully paid up by the Company during
the year. The remaining balance of RMB4.8 million capital
contribution to YOFC Shenyang was subsequently paid up in full
in 2076.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BEEEN WIS

FORMATION OF NEW PRESENCES IN CHINA

(Continued)
YOFC QIANJIANG

On 28 July 2015, the Company established another wholly-
owned subsidiary called Yangtze Optical Fibre (Qianjiang)
Co., ltd. ["YOFC Qianjiang”) for the capacity expansion for
optical fibre preform and optical fibre. The total paid-up capital
of YOFC Qianjiang as at 31 December 2015 was RMB280
million and was subsequently increased to RMB404 million on
1 March 2016. The Company will fulfill its capital contribution
according fo the construction plan.

HUBEI FLYING JV

On 12 August 2015, the Company established a joint venture
called Hubei Flying Optical Fibre Material Co., lid. (the
"Hubei Flying JV") with a partner originating from Sichuan to
manufacture silicon tefrachloride so as to cope with the future
consumption of silicon tetrachloride by the Group as a result
of our preform capacity expansion in Qianjiang. The planned
annual production capacity would be 10,000 tons high purity
silicon tefrachloride and the construction would be divided into
two phases. The total paid-up capital of this joint venture was
RMBG6O million and this joint venture was held as to 87% by
the Company and 13% by that joint venture pariner. As at 31
December 2015, both parties have not yet paid their respective
portion of capital contribution. The financial results of the Hubei
Flying JV will be consolidated in the Group's financial statements
as a non-wholly owned subsidiary since its commencement of
operations.

PREFORM JV

On 18 August 2015, the Company and Shin-Etsu jointly
established a joint venture in Qianjiang (the “Preform JV") so as
to promote and develop optical fibre preform manufacturing,
sales and its related businesses by using alternative preform
production technology. The Preform JV is held as to 49% by
the Company and 51% by Shin-Etsu and the paid-up capital
of the Preform JV is JPY8,000 million and each party will make
their respective contribution in cash in accordance with their
respective equity holdings in the Preform JV during 2016. The
Preform JV has already commenced the design of the relevant
production base during 2015. The financial results of the Preform
JV will be consolidated in the Group's financial statements as a
joint venture after its establishment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

FORMATION OF NEW PRESENCES IN CHINA

(Continued)
NEW FIBRE JV

On 8 December 2015, the Company established a joint venture
namely Ally First Optical Fibre and Cable Co., ltd. (the "New
Fibre JV") with six local cable manufacturing pariners in Zhejiang
fo set up an optical fibre production base in Lin‘an, Zhejiang.
The New Fibre JV is held as to 51% by the Company and the
remaining 49% is held by a number of local partners in Lin‘an.
The paid-up capital of the New Fibre JV is RMB186.0 million
and a total amount of RMB47.5 million had been paid up by
the Company before 31 December 2015. The financial results
of the New Fibre JV had been consolidated in the Group's
financial statements as a non-wholly owned subsidiary after its
establishment.

The establishment of all the above joint ventures and subsidiaries
as disclosed under the sections headed “Formation of Overseas
Presences” and “Formation of New Presences in China” did not
constitute notifiable transactions or connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

ACQUISITION
NK WUHAN

On 25 December 2015, the Company completed the
acquisition of 60% equity interests in NK Wuhan from NK China
Investments B.V. ("NK China”) at a consideration of RMB18
million. The consideration for the acquisition was defermined
after arm’s length negotiation between the Company and NK
China with reference to NK Wuhan's business prospect and its
latest financial position. Upon completion, a gain on bargain
purchase of RMB30.0 million was resulted.

Since NK China is an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
Prysmian S.p.A., thus a fellow subsidiary of Draka, NK China
is defined as a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules and this transaction
constituted a connected transaction of the Company. The
Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Confined)
EEEBNWR D@

ACQUISITION (Continued)
NK WUHAN (Continved)

NK Wuhan is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sales of radio frequency copper coaxial cables and related
products. The acquisition is part of the Group's continued growth
strategy and it can enhance the Group's competitiveness in the
cable industry in China and enable the Group to have a more
diversified products mix. Further details of the acquisition are set
out in the Company's announcement dated 18 June 2015. Upon
complefion of the acquisition, the financial results of NK Wuhan
had been consolidated in the Group's financial statements as a
non-wholly owned subsidiary.

Ally First Optical Fiber and Cable Co.,

RRAMSEESBRDF(100%)
RARGEE R ERM AR F)(100%)
HTE R BB AR ATRI(S51%)

HILRE BRI ERDF(87%)
RINRRE ERMERDF75%)

ERGCEETHERDF(100%)
FREBCHIL) S ERR AR (49%)

o RMAAIEMNZEREGRRE74.9%)
EverPro Technologies Company Limited

EE (BUZ ) BB R D R(69.23%)
REZIEERRAF(80%)

vV 9V vV Vv V9

# No offical Chinese names.
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Yangtze Optical Fibre (Qianjiang) Co.,
Shin-Etsu YOFC (Hubei) Optical Preform Co., Lid. (49% owned)
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Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Shenyang Co., lid. (100% owned)
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Lanzhou Co., Lid. (100% owned)

ltd. (51% owned)

Hubei Flying Optical Fibre Material Co., Ltd. (87% owned)
Shenzhen YOFC Connectivity Technologies Co., ltd. (75% owned)

Ltd. (100% owned)

e Yangize Optics Africa Holdings Proprietary Limited (74.9% owned)
e PT. Yangtze Optical Fibre Indonesia (70% owned|#
e  YOFC-Yadanarbon Fibre Co., ltd. (50% owned)*

[69.23% owned)

NK Wuhan Cable Co., ltd. (80% owned)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|

BB Wk

OUTLOOK

In 2016, the launch of the “Broadband China” national strategy
by the Chinese Government, the roll-out of 4G LTE licenses and
fibretothe-home (FTTH) by the State-owned Telecommunication
Operators are still continuing. Together with some other new
initiatives announced by the Chinese Government during 2015
such as “Internet +", raising network speed, lowering dota tariffs,
the enhancement of network capabilities as well as the extension
of infernet infrastructure to all villages, the Group would align our
strategies in line with the national strategies in the coming years
and deploy more resources to maximise the shareholders' return
in the years o come.

In 2016, the Group will put every effort to execute and
implement all our production capacity expansion plans on all of
our three major products streams and to make sure that all these
expansion plans can be complefed on schedule or even ahead
of our predetermined schedules so as to grasp all the available
market opportunities both locally and globally.

Our strategic goal remains unchanged which is to become the
market leader of the industry and to solidify our existing leading
market position. The Group will focus on its four key strategies
namely value chain extension, the continuous development
of multi-processes production technologies on optical fibre
preforms, infernationalisation, and diversification in order to have
a continuous success in our businesses. All these can enhance
our competitiveness in the market as well as enrich our product
mix and then ultimately improve our profitability.

The completion of arbitration on anti-dumping on imported
preforms on 19 August 2015 creates certain degree of barrier
to those foreign suppliers from Jopan and United States selling
preforms into the China market. It is because anti-dumping duties
ranging from 8% to 42% have been imposed against them
starting from August 2015. Starting from the last few months
of 2015, China market is in shortage of supply on optical
fibre preforms and optical fibres. There was an indication in
the last quarter of 2015 that the selling prices of optical fibre
preforms and optical fibres started to increase and the upward
adjustments in selling prices on these two products are expected

to be continued in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|
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OUTLOOK (Continued)

With the deployment of “One Belt, One Road” national strategy
in the coming years, the construction of internet infrastructure
network between the PRC and its neighbouring countries as well
as African countries has become a heat topic in discussion. In
order to align with this fundamental strategy, we have already
built our presences in China and overseas so as fo capture the
relevant opportunities to be created from it. This strategy can
create further demand for optical fibres and optical fibre cables.
With our presences in China, Indonesia and Africa, the Group
shall be ready to be involved in the “One Belt, One Road”
strategy and bring in additional income to the stakeholders.

The Group through EverPro was involved in AOC business.
During 2015, EverPro had put its primary focus on research
and market development. On research and development side,
EverPro had made some great achievements by (i) improving its
existing integrated circuits development platform; (i) introducing
a newly developed HDMI AOC cables equipped with specialty
fibres offering to consumer market for application to 4K super
high resolution TV; and [iii) developing new AOC series with
10G, 40G, 100G, and 400G which are all applicable
to data centre. Cloud computing would be the next step for
EverPro to explore in 2016. On marketing side, EverPro had
announced its new brand called “FIBBR" in September 2015
and is the first company launching the HDMI 4K super high
resolution optical cables into the market. FIBBR's products are
now available for sale in department stores, supermarkets and
online electronic consumer platforms in both China and US
namely jd.com, TMALL.com, Walmart, Frys and Neweggs. After
years of marketing, EverPro’s AOC related products have been
well accepted by both local and global customers and some
of them have already passed through their respective product
certifications and are ready for bulk purchases from EverPro.
Provision of cloud computing or “zero client” solution to schools
(zero client solution is a deskiop virtualisation solution containing
1 PC or server, a set of high speed USB3.0 AOCs and zero
client stations as well as a variety of peripherals that provides
up to 20 users PC-like working environment simultaneously
with lower cost, less IT management and maintenance effort
and significantly reduced energy consumption by sharing
computing resources) have marked another milestone in 2015
with more than 30 schools in China having used our products
and solutions. With our continued effort spent on EverPro, this
segment will become another sales and profitability stimulator to
the Group in the coming future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Coninued|
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OUTLOOK (Continued)

Other than the above, the Group has already set up new
entities or business units to expand its specialty fibre and cable
business, integrated system and cabling solution business and
network construction projects business as well as the provision
of technological services on cabling network business. All these
can enable the Group to further diversify its business and equip
with better resources with strong potential for growth, then finally
create higher value for its shareholders.

During 2015, the Chinese government had infroduced a fen-
year plan on Made in China 2025 ("MiC 2025") which aims
at improving China’s manufacturing process with comprehensive
upgrading. MiC 2025 draws inspiration from Germany's
industrie 4.0 as China aims to make use of advanced
technologies like the Internet of Things, cloud computing and
big dafa to upgrade the manufacturing processes. YOFC, being
selected as one of the intelligent manufacturing pilot companies
among the first 46 companies being announced by the Ministry
of Industry and Information Technology of the People's Republic
of China for participating in MiC 2025. The Group, as a whole,
will use its best endeavour deploying its resources for MiC

2025.
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DIRECTORY’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILES
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DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wen Huiguo, age 62, is an executive Director and
authorised representative of the Company and the Chairman
of the Board. He is also the Chairman of the Strategy
Committee of the Company and is primarily responsible for
overall management of the Company's investment strategies
and business development. Mr. Wen has over 40 years of
management experience in the telecommunications industry
of China. He was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 19 December 2013. He joined the board of
directors of YOFC as a director on 15 October 2008. Mr.
Wen has also been a member of the management committee
of China Huaxin, one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, since June 201 1. Prior to joining the Company, from
June 2000 to October 2008, he served as the general manager
of Hunan Branch of China Telecom. Mr. Wen graduated from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications with a major
in signal carrier and obtained an executive master of business
administration from Peking University. Mr. Wen is a senior
engineer of professor level who is entitled to receive special
allowance from the State Council and the winner of National
Llabor Medal issued by All China Federation of Trade Unions.
He is also a representative of the Tenth and Eleventh National
People's Congress.

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee, age 55, is an executive Director
of the Company, the Vice-Chairman of the Board and is a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for overall management of
the Company’s investment strategies and business development.
He was appointed as an executive Director of the Company on
19 December 2013. He joined the board of directors of YOFC
as a director on 24 January 2011. He has also been a member
of the supervisory board and chairman of the audit committee
of Randstad Holding NV, a company listed on the Euronext
Amsterdam (Stock Code: RAND), since April 2014. Mr. Dorjee
once joined the board of directors of Oman Cables Industry
(SAOGC), a company listed on the Muscat Securities Market
(Stock Code: OCAI) in March 2012 and had been serving as
the vice-chairman of the board of directors for the period from
July 2012 to 1 December 2014. Mr. Dorjee consecutively
served at KPMG Accountant N.V. and Van der Moolen Holding
N.V., which was a Dutch equity trading firm and one of the
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DIRECTORS?, SUPERVISORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)

EE EERSREEASHE®

DIRECTORS (Continued)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

specialists on the New York Stock Exchange, Draka Holding
N.V. and Prysmian S.p.A. (a company listed on the Borsa
ltaliana S.p.A., ltaly’s main stock exchange (Stock Code: PRY)),
which indirectly holds 100% equity interest in Draka, one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company, for senior management
level positions. Mr. Dorjee consecutively obtained a bachelor’s
degree in economics and law, a master’s degree in business
economics, a master's degree in tax law and a master’s degree
in tax economics from University of Amsterdom. He has been a
certified public accountant registered atf the Nederlands Instituut
van Register accountants since March 1987.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Jie, age 45, joined the Board as a non-executive
Director on 19 December 2013. He is responsible for providing
strategic advice and making recommendations on the operations
and management of the Company. He joined the board of
directors of YOFC as a direcfor on 12 August 2011. Mr. Ma
has been serving as the vice chairman of the management
committee and the executive deputy general manager of China
Huaxin, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company,
since June 2011 and since January 2013, respectively. He also
serves as a non-executive director of Alcatel-lucent Shanghai
Bell Co., ltd. and Alcatel-lucent Enterprise Holding, subsidiaries
of China Huaxin. He once served as a direcfor of Zhongying
Youchuang Information Technology Co., lid. and a director of
China Credit Information Technology Company Limited. Prior fo
these positions, Mr. Ma held several management level positions
in Alcatel-Llucent Shanghai Bell Co., ltd. Mr. Ma graduated from
Nankai University with a bachelor’s degree in economics and
a doctorate in economics respectively. He also obtained an
executive master of business administration from a joinf program
of Washington University in Saint Louis and Fudan University.
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Mr. Yao Jingming, age 51, joined the Board as a non-executive
Director on 9 June 2015. He is responsible for providing
strategic advice and making recommendations on the operations
and management of the Company. He was appointed as a
supervisor of the Company on December 19, 2013 and had
been responsible for supervising the performance of duties by
the directors and senior management at the Company until 27
March 2015. Mr. Yao has nearly 30 years of management
experience in the communications industry. Mr. Yao has been
serving as the deputy general manager of China Huaxin,
the substantial shareholder of the Company, where he is in
charge of technology, strategy and international mergers and
acquisitions since February 2013. He also holds positions
in two subsidiaries of China Huaxin, including serving as a
director of Shanghai Fortune Communications Technology
Development Co., Itd. (L8 ERBERMEZERER AR since
December 2012 and the general manager and a director of
Shanghai Sincere Technology Co., lid. [ E/BEERHFARA
A]) since July 2013. Prior to these positions, from July 1986 to
January 2013, Mr. Yao held various positions in Alcatel-lucent
Shanghai Bell Co., lid., a subsidiary of China Huaxin, including
consecutively serving as a software engineer, the software
development manager, the manager of fechnology development
department and the manager of customer service department
from July 1986 to September 2000, the general manager of the
switching network division primarily responsible for marketing,
products management and research and development from
October 2000 fo June 2002, the vice president of the company
primarily responsible for operation and daily management of
the voice network division from July 2002 to December 2003,
the executive vice president of the company from January 2004
to January 2013, during which period, he was in charge of
the management and operation of the fixed communication
network group, the cable network group and the communications
network group from January 2004 to January 2009, in charge
of solutions and market from January 2009 to March 2010,
in charge of quality and reform from April 2010 to February
2011, and in charge of infernational business from February
2011 to January 2013. Mr. Yoo obtained his bachelor’s
degree in computer science from Shanghai Jiaotong University
(BB AER) in June 1986, an executive master of business
administration from China Europe International Business School
(FREEIFR 2267 in April 2001, and a doctorate in business
administration from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
October 2008.
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Mr. Philippe Claude Vanhille, age 51, joined the Board as a
non-executive Director on 19 December 2013. He is responsible
for providing strategic advice and making recommendations on
the operations and management of the Company. He joined the
board of directors of YOFC as a director on 23 May 2013. Mr.
Vanhille has over 23 years of experience in opfical fibre and
cable industry. He has been serving as the senior vice-president
of Telecom Business of the Prysmian Group since May 2013,
where he is primarily responsible for the global telecom business
of the Prysmian group, and an executive director of Draka,
one of the substantial shareholders of the Company, since June
2013. Mr. Vanhille concurrently also holds several positions in
cerfain subsidiaries of Prysmian S.p.A.. Mr. Vanhille obtained a
master's degree in mechanical engineering from [.N.S.A. Lyon,
France and graduated from Institut Francais de Gestion, Aix-en-
Provence, France with a master's degree in management.

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony, age 70, joined the Board as a
non-executive Director on 19 December 2013. He is responsible
for providing strategic advice and making recommendations on
the operations and management of the Company. He joined the
board of directors of YOFC as a director on 1 January 1997
and served as the secrefary of the board of directors of YOFC
from January 1992 to December 1996. Mr. Yeung has over
30 years of experience in financial management. Mr. Yeung
is a practising certified public accountant recognised by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also
a senior member of the major global accountancy institutions.
Mr. Yeung is a member of the election committee of the Hong
Kong government. Mr. Yeung has served as the founder and
chairman of K K Yeung Management Consultants Ltd. since
May 1983, and the founder and senior pariner of K K Yeung
Partnership, CPA (Practising) since November 1985. Mr. Yeung
has also served as the founder and chairman of Wall Street
Resources Ltd. since February 1977. Mr. Yeung has been
serving as an independent non-executive director as well as a
member of the audit committee, the remuneration committee and
the nomination committee of Infegrated Waste Solutions Group
Holdings Llimited, a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (Stock code: 923) since
1 March 2016. Mr. Yeung has been serving as a director of
Oman Cables Industry (SAOG), a company listed on the Muscat
Securities Market (Stock Code: OCAI), for the period from April
2013 to 6 March 2015. Mr. Yeung had also served as a

director of many Hong Kong and overseas listed companies.
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Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng, age 51, joined the Board as a non-
executive Director on 19 December 2013. He is responsible
for providing strategic advice and making recommendations on
the operations and management of the Company. He joined the
board of directors of YOFC as a direcfor on 5 August 2013.
Mr. Xiong has over 29 years of experience in optical fibre
and cable industry. Mr. Xiong has served as the president of
Yangtze Communications, one of the substantial shareholders of
the Company, since April 2013. Mr. Xiong also holds positions
in certain subsidiaries of Yangtze Communications since April
2013. Prior to joining the Company, he had consecutively
served at many management positions at Wuhan Research
Institute of Posts and Telecommunications from July 1986 to April
2013. He had also held directors and supervisors positions
at several subsidiaries of FiberHome Telecommunication
Technologies Co., lid., a company listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 600498). Mr. Xiong obtained his
bachelor’'s degree in photoelectric imaging technology from
East China Institute of Engineering, currently known as Nanjing
University of Science and Technology and an executive master's
degree in business administration from VWuhan University.

Ms. Zheng Huili, age 56, joined the Board as a non-executive
Director on 19 December 2013. She is responsible for providing
strategic advice and making recommendations on the operations
and management of the Company. She joined the board of
directors of YOFC as a director on 12 April 2006. Ms. Zheng
has over 26 years of experience in company operation and
management. Currently she also serves as the deputy secretary
of the Party committee of the Company. Ms. Zheng has also
served as the deputy secretary of the Party committee and
the general secretary of the discipline committee of Yangize
Communications, one of the substantial shareholders of the
Company, since December 2005 and June 2006, respectively.
Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zheng worked at many
management positions at Huazhong Information and Technology
Group Co., lid. (formerly known as Huazhong Information
and Technology Principal Company Limited). Ms. Zheng
graduated from the Party School of the Chinese Communist
Party VWuhan Municipal Committee with a bachelor’s degree
and obtained a master’s degree in business administration from
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Asia Infernational Open University (Macau) (currently known as
the City University of Macau). Ms. Zheng is a senior economist
and senior political analyst. She has been a member of Wuhan
Economic Professional Qualification Assessment Committee
since December 1998. She has also been a member of the
tenth, eleventh and twelfth of the executive committee of the
Women's Federation of Wuhan and the eleventh and twelfth
Party representative of Wuhan since July 20006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Ngai Wai Fung, age 54, joined the Board as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 September 2014.
He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of the Company and is responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Company. Since January 2011 to present,
Dr. Ngai is the chief executive officer of SVWW Corporate Services
Group Llimited, a specialty corporate and compliance services
provider to companies in pre-lPO and postIPO stages. Prior
fo that, he was the director and head of listing services of an
independent integrated corporate services provider from June
2005 to September 2010. Dr. Ngai has over 20 years of
senior management experience including acting as the executive
director, chief financial officer and company secrefary, most
of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal
control and regulatory compliance, corporate governance
and secretarial work for listed issuers including major red
chip companies. He had led or participated in a number of
significant corporate finance projects including listings, merges
and acquisitions as well as issuance of debt securities. Dr. Ngai
is the Immediate Past President of the Hong Kong Institution
of Chartered Secretaries, a member of the Qualification and
Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institution of Certified
Public Accounts from January 2013 to present and the Adjunct
Professor of law of Hong Kong Shue Yan University from
September 2012 to present and a member of the General
Committee of The Chamber of Hong Kong listed Companies
from June 2014 to present. Dr. Ngai was appointed by the
Chief Executive of The Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region as a member of the Working Group on Professional
Services under the Economic Development Commission since
January 2013 to present. He is a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom since
March 2012 to present, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
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of Certified Public Accountants since July 2007 to present, a
fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
since November 2000 fo present, a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretfaries since November 2000 to
present, a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors since
February 2010 and a member of Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute since November 2012 to present. Dr. Ngai
obtained a Doctoral degree in Finance at Shanghai University
of Finance and Economics* (/@81 4&KE) in Shanghai, PRC
in June 2011, a Master's degree in Corporate Finance at
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong in November
2002, a Master's degree in Business Administration at Andrews
University in Berrien Springs, Michigan, USA in August 1992
and a Bachelor's degree in Law af University of Wolverhamption
in Wolverhamption, the United Kingdom in October 1994.
Dr. Ngai is currently the independent non-executive director of
Topsearch International (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 2323.
HK), Bosideng International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
3998.HK], Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1238.HK), BaWang International [Group) Holding Limited
(Stock Code:1338.HK], Biostime International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1112.HK], SITC International Holdings Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1308.HK], China Coal Energy Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1898.HK|, Beijing Capital Juda Limited
(Stock Code: 1329.HK), China Railway Group Llimited (Stock
Code: 390.HK), BBMG Corporation (English translation denotes
for identification purposes only) (Stock Code: 2009.HK) and
TravelSky Technology Limited (Stock Code: 696.HK). Dr. Ngai
is also an independent director of LDK Solar Co., lid. (Stock
Code: LDKYQ). Apart from DK Solar Co., lid., which is listed on
OTC Pink Limited Information, all the above companies are listed
on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. He was
the independent non-executive director of China life Insurance
Company Limited (Stock Code: 2628 .HK] from December
2006 to May 2009, Franshion Properties (China) Limited (Stock
Code: 817.HK] from May 2007 1o June 2011, China Railway
Construction Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 1186.HK) from
November 2007 to October 2014 and Sany Heavy Equipment
International Holdings Company Limited (Stock Code: 631.HK]
from November 2009 to December 2015.
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Mr. Ip Sik On Simon, age 67, joined the Board as an
independent non-executive Director on 24 September 2014. He
is a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company and is responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Company. Mr. Ip is a solicitor and Notary
Public. He is currently the chairman of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club and the president of Riding for the Disabled Association
ltd.. He has been an independent non-executive director of
Hang Lung Group Limited (Stock Code: O010.HK) since July
1998. Mr. Ip practised with Johnson Stokes & Master (a Hong
Kong based law firm, now known as Mayer Brown JSM) since
March 1972 and was subsequently admitted as a partner in
April 1977 and continued in this capacity until his retirement
from legal practice in September 2004. He was the Senior
Partner and Chairman of Johnson Stokes & Master for eight
years. Mr. Ip was the president of the Law Society of Hong Kong
from May 1987 to May 1989, a legislative Councilor from
1991 to 1995 representing the Legal Functional Constituency,
and the founding chairman of the Council of the Hong Kong
Institute of Education from April 1994 to April 2003. Mr. Ip
received an honorary Doctor of Education from Hong Kong
Institute of Education in 2003, an honorary Doctor of laws
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 2009 and
an honorary Doctor of laws from the Hong Kong University of
Science & Technology in 2011. Mr. Ip has been admitted as
a solicitor in England & Wales since December 1971 and in
Hong Kong since April 1972. He is an honorary court member
of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology,
an honorary lecturer in the Department of Professional legal
Education of the University of Hong Kong since September
2012, an honorary research fellow of the Faculty of Law of
Tsinghua University, the cochairman of the international advisory
board of the School of Law of the City University of Hong Kong
and a member of the advisory board of the Hong Kong AIDS
Foundation. He was also an honorary fellow of the Management
Society for Healthcare Professionals from 1984 to 2004.

Mr. Li Ping, age 62, joined the Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 24 September 2014 and is a member
of the Strategy Committee of the Company. He is responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of the Company. Mr. Li has extensive experience
in the management of listed companies and has over 30
years of experience in operation and management in China’s
telecommunications industry. Mr. Li has been serving as the
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Confinved)

chairman and executive director of China Communication
Service Co., lid., a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 552), for the period from August 2006
to October 2014. Prior to these positions, he once served as
the executive vice president of China Telecom Corporation
Limited, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 728), from September 2002 to June 2013.
Prior to joining China Telecom, he served as the vice chairman
and the chief operating officer of China Mobile Limited, a
company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
CHL) and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 941)
from September 1997 to August 2000 as well as the deputy
Directorate General of Telecommunications of the Ministry
of Posts and Telecommunications of China, the predecessor
of the Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of
China. Mr. Li graduated from Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications in radio communication major, and
graduated from New York State University at Buffalo with a
master in business administration in October 1989.

Mr. Li Zhuo, age 46, joined the Board as an independent non-
executive Director on 24 September 2014. He is a member
of the Audit Committee and the Strategy Committee of the
Company and is responsible for providing independent advice
on the operations and management of the Company. Mr. Li is
currently a professor of economics, the dean of the Department
of International Economics, and the director of the Center of
International Business Studies of Wuhan University. From July
1989 to August 1992, Mr. Li worked at Xiangfan Branch of
China National Real Estate Development Group Corporation.
He later worked at Guangzhou Branch of the People’s Bank
of China. Mr. i has been working at Wuhan University since
1998 and consecutively held the positions of lecturer fill 2001,
assistant professor till 2006 and professor of Wuhan University
since 2006. He also served as a visiting scholar of University
of lllinois at Urbana-Champaign from July 2002 to July 2003
and University of Paris Il in 2007. Mr. Li graduated from Hubei
University of Technology with a bachelor's degree in industrial
and civil construction. He also obtained a master’s degree
in international economics and a doctorate in international
economics from Wuhan University respectively. Mr. Li is the
Prominent Researcher in the New Century recognized by the
Ministry of Education in October 2010.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. Jiang Zhikang, age 53, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board of Supervisors as well as the staff supervisor
representative of the Company on 19 December 2013. He
is responsible for supervising the performance of duties by the
Directors and senior management at the Company. Mr. Jiang
has worked at the Company since May 1990, consecutively
serving as an engineer, a chiefl engineer, the manager assistant
of the fibre department, and the manager of the industrialisation
department. He was assigned by the Company fo serve as
the vice general manager and the general manager of NK
Wuhan from April 2004 to March 2006 and April 2006 to
April 2012, respectively. From May 2012 to January 2016,
Mr. Jiang had been serving as the general manager of the
operation management center of the Company. Since February
2016, Mr. Jiang has been serving as the general manager of
the manufacturing center of the Company. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Jiang started to work at Wuhan Research Institute
of Posts & Telecommunication since March 1988 and served
as an assistant engineer from December 1988 to April 1990.
Mr. Jiang graduated from Sichuan Radio & TV University and
graduated from Wuhan University with an executive master of
business administration.

Mr. Liv Deming, age 59, was appointed as an independent
supervisor of the Company on @ June 2015. He is a professor
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology (EEH#}
FKZ|, a member of the expert committee of China Next
Generation Internet (B N —REHE4E), an executive director
of Chinese Society for Optical Engineering (FEI X E TR E ),
the director of the expert committee of Optical Communication
and Information Networking (Jt3B15 B EFAE), the director
of the National Engineering Laboratory for Next Generation
Internet Access System (T —HREBEEZARGERIIEE
822, and the general secretary of Wuhan Internet of Things
Industry Association (EVEMESAEEZEHE). Mr. Liv went fo
University of Duisburg-Essen in Germany for visiting study from
1994 to 1996, obtained a doctorate from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in 1999, and went to Nanyang
Technological University in Singapore for visiting study from
1999 to 2000. Since 2000, he has been the director of
Department of Optoelectronic Engineering (currently known
as School of Optical and Electronic Information) of Huazhong
University of Science and Technology. Mr. Liu has long been
engaged in teaching and research work in the areas of optical
fibre communication and sensing, he has undertaken several
national key projects, including the National 973 Project (B
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SUPERVISORS (Continued)
KQ731EH), "863 Project” (8631 B as well as the key

projects and the key project topics of the National Science
Foundation (B B AEIZEE). He has obtained several major
achievements, including winning the National Technological
Invention Award (twice), the gold medal (once) and the silver
medal (twice) of the Geneva International Invention Award, and
the first prize (thrice) and the second prize (four times) of the
provincial award. Mr. Liu owns more than 100 invention patents
applications {[among which, 50 have been granted) and has
published more than 200 SCI papers and five textbooks and
academic works.

Ms. Li Chang'ai, age 51, was appointed as an independent
supervisor of the Company on 9 June 2015. She has been
teaching at the School of Accountancy of Hubei University of
Economics (#1L4E B Z BT & 512 Ft) since 1988 and is currently
a professor (level 1l). She is also a director of the Accounting
Society of China (FBIEE2 ), an executive director of
Accounting Society of Hubei Province (#it& &2 ), an
executive director of Audit Society of Hubei Province (#13t#&
FETEE) and a special auditor of Audit Bureau of Wuhan (&
EMERTE). Ms. Li currently also serves as an independent
director of Hubei Mailyard Share Co., ltd. (#1LER AR K
BT, a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 600107), and an independent director of Ningbo
Xianfeng New Material Co., ltd. (E&EEFMERD B
fR27]), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 300163). Ms. Li obtained her bachelor’s degree
in economics, master’s degree in economics and doctorate in
management from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
(R BUERZ). Ms. Li has published over 70 academic
papers on a number of journals. Ms. Li was awarded “National
Advanced Accounting Worker” in 2008. She is also a Chinese
certified public accountant (non-practicing) and a senior
member of the Accounting Society of China (FEI&EtE g
and obtained an independent director qualification certificate in

2008.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhuang Dan, age 45, is the General Manager of our
Company. He is primarily responsible for strategic development
and planning, and day-to-day management of our Company.
Mr. Zhuang has more than 18 years of experience in the optical
fibre and cable industry. He joined our Company in March
1998 and served consecutively as the manager assistant of the
finance department, the manager of the finance department, and
the chief financial officer. Since September 2011, Mr. Zhuang
has been the General Manager of our Company. Mr. Zhuang
obtained a bachelor’s degree in auditing and a master’s degree
in accounting from Wuhan University, a docforate in accounting
from Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics, and a
postdoctoral certificate in business administration from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics. Currently, he is a deputy
fo the People’s Congress of Hubei Province and a member of the
Financial and Economic Committee of the People’s Congress of
Hubei Province. He has received special government allowance
awarded by the State Council.

Mr. Jan Bongaerts, age 50, is the First Deputy General Manager
of our Company. He is responsible for strategic development,
business development, sourcing and day-to-day management of
our Company. He has more than 18 years of experience in the
optical fibre and cable industry. Prior to joining our Company,
from July 1998, Mr. Bongaerts worked at Draka Holding
N.V., consecutively serving as the manager of the optical fibre
market and sales department, the deputy manager of the optical
fibre procurement department, the director of the optical fibre
business department, a member of management committee and
a member of enterprise procurement team. He served as the
director of the optical fibre sales and marketing department and
a member of management committee of the business department
of Prysmian S.p.A. from January 2011 to December 2013.
Since January 2014, Mr. Bongaerts has been the First Deputy
General Manager of our Company. Mr. Bongaerts obtained a
master's degree in business administration from Open University
of the Netherlands and an executive master of business
administration from Maastricht University the Netherlands.
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Mr. Zhang Mu, age 60, is the Deputy General Manager and
the general manager of the strategic center of our Company.
He is primarily responsible for strategic development of our
Company and overseeing the human resources and performance
improvement of our Company. Mr. Zhang has more than 31
years of experience in the optical fibre and cable industry. He
has worked at our Company since October 1988, consecutively
serving as a processing engineer of the optical fibre department,
the assistant manager of the optical fibre department, the
manager of the optical fibre department, the assistant general
manager of our Company and the Deputy General Manager of
our Company since April 1998. Prior fo joining our Company,
he started to work at Wuhan Research Institute of Posts and
Telecommunications since 1980 and served as an assistant
engineer from June 1982 to September 1988. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Hubei Institute of Science & Construction
Material (currently known as Wuhan University of Technology),
obtained a master’'s degree in economics from Huazhong
University of Technology (currently known as Huazhong
University of Science and Technology) and a master degree in
business administration from China Europe International Business

School.

Mr. Yan Changkun, age 52, is the Deputy General Manager
and the general manager of the operation management center
of our Company. He is primarily responsible for management
of the manufacturing processes and production facilities of
our Company and participating in the Company’s critical
business negotiations. Mr. Yan has more than 26 years of
experience in the optical fibre and cable industry. He has
worked at our Company since October 1991, consecutively
serving as a sales representative, the technology manager, the
manager of the business department, the sales director, and
the general manager of the optical fibre business unit. Mr.
Yan has been the Deputy General Manager of our Company
since November 2012. Mr. Yan obtained a bachelor's
degree in felecommunications and a master's degree in digital
communications from Nanjing Institute of Communication
Engineering.
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Mr. Yu Jianwu, age 60, is the Chief Marketing and Strafegic
Officer of our Company and the general manager of YOFC
Shanghai, one of our Joint Ventures. He is primarily responsible
for management of operational related matters of our Company
and overseeing the operation and management of YOFC
Shanghai. Mr. Yu has over 27 years of experience in the
optical fibre and cable industry. He has been with our Company
since August 1990. He consecutively served as an engineer, a
master engineer, the manager of the engineering department,
and the manager of the logistic department. From December
2001 to May 2006, he served as the general manager of
Shantou Aoxing, one of our Joint Ventures. He also served
as the operation director of our Company from May 2006
to September 2012 and the general manager of the optical
fibre cable business unit of our Company from January 2011
to September 2012. Mr. Yu has been the general manager of
YOFC Shanghai since October 2012 and the Chief Marketing
and Strategic Officer of our Company since December 2013.
Prior to joining our Company, from February 1982 to August
1990, Mr. Yu worked at Wuhan Marine Machinery Plant
(currently known as Wuhan Marine Machinery Co., Ltd.],
consecutively serving as a technician, a team leader, a designer
and the deputy director of the technology department. Mr. Yu
obtained his bachelor's degree in mechanical engineering from
Shanghai Jiaotong University.

Mr. Zhang Yanxiang, age 51, is the Chief Sales Officer and
the general manager of the sales center of our Company. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall sales strategies
and bidding processes of our Company. Mr. Zhang has over
23 years of experience in the optical fibre and cable industry.
He has been with our Company since April 1992. He had
consecutively served as a regional manager, the manager of
the business department, the general manager of the Beijing
branch of our Company and a member of the management
committee from October 1999 to May 2001. He served as the
general manager of YOFC Shanghai, one of our Joint Ventures,
from June 2001 to September 2012. He also served as the
general manager of the optical fibre cable business department
of our Company from October 2012 to December 2013.
Since then, Mr. Zhang has been the Chief Sales Officer and
the general manager of the sales center of our Company. Mr.
Zhang obtained a bachelor’s degree in telecommunications from
Lanzhou Jiaotong University and a master's degree in business
administration from Fordham University.
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Mr. Luo Jie, age 50, is the Chief Technology Officer of our
Company, and director of the State Key Laboratory, and general
manager of Yangtze Optical Fibre (Qianjiang) Co., lid. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall research and
development related matters and projects of our Company.
Mr. Luo has over 26 years of experience in the optical fibre
and cable industry. He has worked at our Company since
November 2000, consecutively serving as the manager,
department management and the general manager of the
research and development department. Mr. Luo has been the
Chief Technology Officer of our Company since December
2013. Prior to joining our Company, Mr. Luo started to work at
Wouhan Research Institute of Posts and Telecommunications since
January 1989 and served as an engineer and a senior engineer
from January 1992 to December 1996 and from December
1996 to September 2000, respectively. Mr. Luo obtained his
bachelor’s degree in material engineering, a master's degree
in material engineering from Wuhan University of Technology,
and a doctorate in electromagnetics and microwave from
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications. In 2015,
he has been elected to the national talent project and has been
awarded "Young Expert with Outstanding Contributions” by the
Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of China.

Mr. leung King Yu, age 43, is the Chief Financial Officer and
the general manager of the financial center of our Company. He
is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial and
accounting related matters of our Company. Mr. leung has over
20 years of financial and accounting related experience. Prior to
joining our Company, he had worked at the audit and assurance
department of Emst & Young, an international accounting firm,
for more than 17 years. He retired from the partnership at
Emst & Young and joined our Company in September 2012.
Since then, Mr. leung has been the Chief Financial Officer and
the general manager of the financial center of our Company.
Mr. leung obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been a fellow
member of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
since December 2003 and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 1999.
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Mr. Han Qingrong, age 39, the Secretary of the Board
and the general manager of Shenzhen YOFC Connectivity
Technologies Co., ltd. Mr. Han has more than 15 years of
experience in optical fibre and cable industry. He has been with
our Company since December 2000. He had consecutively
served as the PCVD craft engineer, the fibre R&D engineer, the
fibre R&D manager, the manager of the strategy and marketing
department, the deputy general manager of the specialty
product business unit, and the deputy general manager of
cable business unit. He has served as the Secretary of the
Board since December 201 1. Mr. Han obtained a bachelor’s
degree in silicate engineering, a master's degree in biomedical
engineering, and a doctorate in materials physics and chemistry
from Wuhan University of Technology. Mr. Han also successfully
completed the course of Designing and Executing Strategy jointly
offered by Harvard Business School and Guanghua School of
Management at Peking University.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EEERE

The Board is pleased to present its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is one of the leading optical fibre preform,
optical fibre and optical fibre cable suppliers in the world. The
Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
manufacture and sales of optical fibre preforms, optical fibres
and optical fibre cables with various standard specifications
that are widely used in the telecommunications industry and the
provision of other related products and services.

Detailed analysis of the Company’s principal subsidiaries,
associafes and joint ventures are sef out in notes 17, 18 and 19
to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2015 and the
Groups' profit for the year ended 31 December 2015 are sef out
on pages 125 and 126 and on page 124 of this annual report,
respectively.

DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMBO. 174 (before
considering fax impact] per share fotaling RMB118.7 million.
If the profit distribution plan is approved by the shareholders af
the forthcoming annual general meetfing fo be held on 7 June
2016, the final dividend will be distributed on 29 July 2016 1o
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 20 June 2016. Dividend payable to holders of
domestic shares will be paid in RMB, whereas dividend payable
to holders of the H shares will be declared in RMB and paid
in Hong Kong dollars (other than dividends in respect of the H
shares held by Draka, which will be paid in Euro), the exchange
rate of which will be calculated based on the average exchange
rate published by The People’s Bank of China during the week
prior to the annual general meeting to be held on 7 June 2016.

EEEMARINERERBE_FT—AF
TZA=Z+—HLFENKEZA TR
% o

FEXBRREROE

ARB R AL TBRE - MR
BHERZ— - ARBARENMBAREERK
EHERHEEETERREZRANSBRE
MR TR RS  REROE - TRREEE
1 A9 R EE am B AR TS o

BRAARRFEIEMBAR  BEQFREE
RAEMFADTEHN M B RRZMFE17 - 18
N1 e

ISR I R A

REER_ZE—RAF+_A=T—A0Y%
MRk AEEHE —"T—FAF+_A=+—
HEFEOFBIRERAFRE 125K
1208 51248 -

iz E

EEgREMBE_T AT+ __A=1—
HIFFERERMBREERARKEO 74T
(TEHEBBTE)  aHARKII8/7ES
7T e MAESBERRNAEE - T —RFR
ALtRBTHRRBFRAG LEERIE
AIRBARBEBR —ZE—R"FLA-TNBIK
P ZE-—R"FAAZTHBIARQFTRRE
AR - REBRBROKRENARKES
IRAZAS - MHERBCR A BB RIS A AR ¥
Bk » PAVETT A (1 Draka AT RFH AL 89 AR B,
RABTTX ) » ERRIRBARRRN —F
—RNENAERBTZRRBF KRG —E
EHRFEARRITRMEFIHEXRGTE -

Annual Report 3k 2015 57



REPORT OF.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Coninued
EEgHRE®

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People's
Republic of China ((FEARKXMBEEFHIE)) and its
implementation rules effective on 1 January 2008, where a PRC
domestic enterprise distributes dividends for financial periods
beginning from 1 January 2008 to non-resident enterprise
shareholders, it is required to withhold 10% enterprise income
tax for such non-resident enterprise shareholders. Therefore, as
a PRC domestic enterprise, the Company will, affer withholding
10% of the final dividend as enterprise income tax, distribute the
final dividend to non-resident enterprise shareholders, i.e. any
shareholders who hold the Company’s shares in the name of
non-individual shareholders, including but not limited to HKSCC
Nominees Limited, other nominees, trustees, or holders of H
shares registered in the name of other organisations and groups.

Pursuant to the PRC Individual Income Tax Law ({ R A R ILHN
Bl E AP )), the Implementation Regulations of the PRC
Individual Income Tax law ({(FIFEAREMBEAFFEHEE
HalEA1)), the Notice of the State Administration of Taxation in
relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment
Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative] (Guo
Shui Fa [2009] No. 124) (B X %% % # 5 B8 7 E0 2 < 3F
FREXBWRHEFBEEIE(FT)) VEM) (B
[2009]124557)) (the "Tax Treaties Notice”), the Notice of the
State Administration of Taxation on the Questions Concerning
the levy and Administration of Individual Income Tax After
the Repeal of Guo Shui Fa [1993] No. 45 (Guo Shui Han
[2011] No. 348) ((BIR B 1% 4 /5 B8 70 Bl 7 3 [1993]045
WX HREEIEREREAMGHEAERENBA) (B K
[2011]3485%)), other relevant laws and regulations and other
regulatory documents, the Company shall, as a withholding
agent, withhold and pay individual income tax for the individual
holders of H shares in respect of the dividend to be distributed
to them. However, the individual holders of H shares may be
enfitled to certain tax preferential freatments pursuant fo the tax
freaties between the PRC and the countries (regions) in which
the individual holders of H shares are domiciled and the tax
arrangements between Mainland China, Hong Kong or Macau.
For individual holders of H shares in general, the Company will
withhold and pay individual income tax at the rafe of 10% on
behalf of the individual holders of H shares in the distribution of
the dividend. However, the tax rates applicable to individual
holders of H Shares overseas may vary depending on the tax
freaties between the PRC and the countries (regions) in which the
individual holders of H shares are domiciled, and the Company
will withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the
individual holders of H shares in the distribution of the dividend
accordingly.
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The Company will identify the country of domicile of the
individual holders of H shares according to their registered
address on the H share register of members of the Company on
20 June 2016 (the "Registered Address”). If the domicile of an
individual holders of H shares is not the same as the Registered
Address or if the individual holders of H shares would like to
apply for a refund of the additional amount of tax finally withheld
and paid, the individual holders of H shares shall nofify and
provide relevant supporting documents to the Company on or
before 14 June 2016. Upon examination of the supporting
documents by the relevant tax authorities, the Company will
follow the guidance given by the tax authorities to implement
the relevant tax withholding provisions and arrangements.
Individual holders of H shares may either personally or appoint a
representative fo aftend to the procedures in accordance with the
requirements under the Tax Treaties Notfice if they do nof provide
the relevant supporting documents to the Company within the
time period stated above.

The Company assumes no responsibility and disclaims all
liabilities whatsoever in relation to the tax status or tax treatment
of the individual holders of H shares and for any claims
arising from or in connection with any delay in or inaccurate
defermination of the tax sfatus or tax treatment of the individual
holders of H shares or any disputes over the withholding
mechanism or arrangements.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding the PRC, Hong Kong and other tax implications arising
from or in connection with their holding and disposal of the H
Shares of the Company.

The Board is noft aware that any shareholder of the Company
has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets, liabilities for the last five
financial years are set out in the Financial Highlights on page
5 of this annual report. This summary does notf form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The end customers of the Group are primarily telecommunication
network operators in China or overseas. The customers of the
Croup also include optical fibre and cable manufacturers to
whom the Group sells preforms and optical fibres.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's sales to
its five largest customers and ifs largest customer accounted for

45.6% and 11.2% (2014: 40.6% and 20.7%) of the Group's

total revenue from sales of goods, respectively.

The Group procures various raw materials from third-party
suppliers located in and outside of the PRC including glass
substrate tubes, silica jacket cylinders, chemical gases, optical
fibre preforms, optical fibres, polyethylene and other polymers
sheathing materials, steel and aluminum for the production of its
products.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's purchases
from its five largest suppliers and its largest supplier accounted

for 50.1% and 16.5% (2014: 53.7% and 17.0%) of the

Croup's total purchases.

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates nor
the shareholder of the Company (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company's issued
capital) had any interest in any of the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress during the year ended 31 December
2015 are sef out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements
in this annual report.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Reference is made to the poll results announcement dated 19
October 2015, in which the Company announced that, among
other things, the resolutions approving the ESOP and the plan
of non-public issuance of domestic shares and H shares of
the Company were duly passed by the shareholders of the
Company. The ESOP was adopted in order to further enhance
the Company’s corporate governance structure, incentivise
the Company’s management and core personnel team and to
establish a sound mid- to longferm incentive plan that provides
for both incentives and restrictions. The Private Placement was
proposed for the purpose of implementing the ESOP and the
placing of H shares to independent institutional investors. The
Private Placement, which contemplates the entering into of
two H Share subscription agreements between the Company
and two Directors; 12 limited partnership units subscription
agreements between the Company and various Directors,
Supervisors, and senior management members and the H share
placing agreement with a placing agent, is conditional upon the
following conditions having been fulfilled:

e the Listing Committee granting listing of, and permission
to deal in, all the H shares to be issued under the Private
Placement:

e the passing by shareholders of resolutions approving the
ESOP and the Private Placement at the general meeting and
class meetings of the Company;

e the passing by independent shareholders of resolutions
approving the H share subscription agreements or the
limited partnership units subscription agreements (as the
case may be) and other arrangements contemplated
thereunder;

e the granting of a general mandate to the Board to allot
and issue new shares that is capable and sufficient to cover
the allotment and issue of new H shares under the H share
placing agreement; and

e all necessary PRC government and regulatory approvals
and consents regarding the subscription of H shares under
the H share subscription agreements, the subscription
of the new domestic limited partnership units and the
issue and placing of the H shares under the H share
placing agreement and other arrangements contemplated
thereunder having been obtained by the Company.
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All the conditions were completed on 18 December 2015.

The subscription of H shares and domestic shares by the
Directors and senior management of the Company and the
independent placees were also completed on 18 December
2015, details of which are set out below:

an aggregate of 10,664,000 H shares have been
successfully allotted and issued by the Company af the
placing price of HK$7.15 per H Share to four placees who
are independent professional institutional investors, namely
Prudence Investment Management (Hong Kong) Limited,
Pine River Capital Management L.P., Swift Mind Investments
Limited and Value Partners Group. The placing price of
HK$7.15 represents a discount of approximately 16.76%
fo the closing price of HK$8.59 per H share as quoted on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 10 December 2015,
being the date of the placing agreement. The net price is
approximately HK$6.93 per placing share;

an aggregate of 1,205,000 H shares have been
successfully allotted and issued by the Company at the
subscription price of HK$7.15 per H share to Mr. Frank
Franciscus Dorjee and Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony. The
subscription price of HK$7.15 per H share is fixed on same
date as the H share placing as mentioned above and is the
same as the subscription price under the H share placing.
The net price is approximately HK$7.04 per H share being
subscribed: and

an aggregate of 30,783,000 domestic shares have
been successfully allotted and issued by the Company at
the subscription price of HK$7.15 per domestic share to
the four limited partnerships established and owned by
Directors and selected employees of the Company under
the ESOP, namely Wuhan Ruitu Management Consulting
Limited Partnership, Wuhan Ruiteng Management
Consulting Limited Partnership, Wuhan Ruihong
Management Consulting Limited Partnership, and Wuhan
Ruiyue Management Consulting Limited Partnership. The
subscription price represents approximately 85% of the
average closing price of the H shares for the 90 trading
days immediately before 10 June 2015, the date when the
Private Placement was first announced by the Company. The
closing price of H shares of the Company on 10 June 2015
was HK$10.94. The net price is approximately HK$7.15
per domestic share being subscribed.
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The aggregate nominal value of the H shares issued, with a par
value of RMB1.00 each, is approximately RMB11.9 million
whereas the aggregate nominal value of the domestic shares
issued, with a par value of RMB1.00 each, is approximately
RMB30.8 million.

The gross proceeds from the issuance of domestic shares and
H shares amounted to approximately HK$220.1 million and
HK$84.9 million, respectively, and the aggregate net proceeds
from the issuance of domestic shares and H shares, after
deduction of the fees, commissions and expenses, amounted
to approximately HK$220.1 million and HK$82.4 million,
respectively, and such amount will be used fo construct the Phase
Il project of YOFC Science & Technology Park in Qianjiang
fo expand the optfical fibre preform production capacity of the
Company and to support the development of the business of the
Group, in particular for capacity expansion both domestically
and overseas, and as general working capital.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in nofes 31 and
32 to the financial statements of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, the Company'’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Law in the PRC, amounted to approximately
RMB1,124.7 million (31 December 2014: approximately
RMB733.8 million).

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2015 are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

OVERVIEW

During the year, the Group focused on its four main
strategies namely value chain extension, multi-processes,
internationalisation and diversification and fo further strengthen
and solidify our market leader position in the industry. In 2015,
the Group had brought in eight new subsidiaries and two new
joint ventures through its own establishments, an acquisition and
cooperations with local and global strategic partners, which are
all in alignment with our strategic roadmap.

Other than production capacity expansions on our existing three
major products, the Group had extended our value chain by
engaging in the production and development of highly purity
silicon tefrachloride and the provision of indoor cabling solufion,
which are examples of upstream and downstream value chain
extension.

Regarding the techniques used for the production of optical
fibre preform, the Group's research and development team
confinued fo put their efforts on streamlining the existing PCVD
technique as well as contfinuing the development of the VAD
technique. Through the joint venture with Shin-Etsu, the Group will
be equipped with OVD technique in the manufacture of optical
fibre preforms as well. All these form part of our multi-processes
strafegy.

Among these 10 newly added entities, one new subsidiary is
located in Indonesia and one new joint venture is located in
Myanmar, which are involved in the production and distribution
of optical fibres and optical fibre cables, respectively. At
the same time, the Group had set up additional 14 sales
representative offices in overseas to make the total number of
overseas sales offices to 22. All these are in alignment with our
internationalisation strategy.

Through the acquisition of additional ©0% equity inferests in NK
Wouhan, the Group had taken part in the manufacture and sales
of radio frequency copper coaxial cables and related products.
A new business unit on network consfruction and provision of
technical support was set up during the year. Other than the
parficipation in active optical cable business starting from last
year, all these marked our new roadmap for the diversification.
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FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Operating performance

2015 was the best year of performance for YOFC when
compared with the past four years. During the year, the Group's
revenue increased by 18.6% from RMB5,676.8 million in 2014
fo RMB6,731.1 million in 2015. Such increase was mainly
driven by the increase in sales volume for optical fibre cables
as a result of 4G infrastructure construction and the “Broadband
China” national strategy, of which such segment reported
a growth rate of 32.9% and was outperforming the market
average growth rate of 30.1%. Optical fibre cables are the final
products that we delivered fo state-owned telecommunication
operators. On the other hand, the Group's optical fibre preform
and optical fibre segment also reported a growth rate of 16.3%
growth even all its capacity expansion plans for this segment
in both China and overseas are still in progress. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the net profit affributable to equity
shareholders of the Company also increased by 22.4% from
RMB466.3 million in 2014 to RMB570.7 million in 2015.
Between 2013 and 2014, the growth rate on net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was just
12.4%. These two key performance indicators proved that the
industry itself is quite promising and with room for growth in the
years fo come and so for the Group.

Financial performance

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's financial position
remained solid not because of additional funds raised through
the Private Placement conducted during the year but because
of its strong freasury and fund management. The level of
indebtedness as at 31 December 2015 slightly decreased
and maintained at RMB2,457.4 million {31 December
2014: RMB2,484.1 million) while the gearing ratio (which
is calculated based on the net debts divided by fotal equity)
was 11.0% (31 December 2014: 16.3%) as at 31 December
2015. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
generated positive operating cashflows amounted to RMB550.8
million (2014: RMB200.2 million). Improvement in operating
cashflows was mainly due to better credit control and more
efforts put on debt collection process. The Group's average
trade and bills receivables turnover days for 2015 maintained
at the same level of 104.8 days (2014: 104.6 days) even the
Group's revenue grew by 18.6%. Average inventfory turnover
days for 2015 was shortened from 56.4 days in 2014 to 46.3
days in 2015 because of better inventory control and on-time
production and purchasing without requiring the Group to tie up
its working capital.
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FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Group will focus on its four major strategies to complete
our fargeted goals and missions. The Group will further extend
our value chain so as fo make itself more competitive in terms
of production costs and efficiency. Resources and efforts put
on research and development activities will be continuing. The
Group will soon be equipped with the existing three technologies
in producing optical fibre preforms namely PCVD, VAD and
OVD, which is our multi-processes strategy. Internationalisation
and diversification are the remaining two sfrategies that the
Group will continue to explore. As at 31 December 2015,
the Group had already built three overseas presences. It is
expected that more overseas presences either in the form of
production base or the product distribution channel will be set
up to strengthen and increase our market share in overseas.
Continuous development on active optical cable business
will be one of the key driving forces for the Group's business
growth. Proactive participations in different aspects will be the
Group's intention in the near future such as the provision of
solution on network construction and the provision of indoor
cabling solutions. Last but not least, the Group will ensure that all
newly built production capacities or investment projects will be
completed and be ready for use as scheduled.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors that may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to optical
fibre and cable business and some are from external sources.
Maior risks and uncertainties are summarised below.

(I) INDUSTRY RISK
Our success depends highly on those national strategies,
initiatives, incentives and other favourable policies
announced or implemented by the Chinese government
towards the telecommunication industry. In this connection,
we have to keep ourselves abreast of all these strategies
and initiatives such that the Group can plan ahead its
capacity expansion plans, adjust its sales and marketing
strategies and then grasp the maximum benefits from all
these opportunities.

REER

AEBBE TN EMEEZRE - TXATES
BRERER AEEGE - TEREMEE
EWINESEEEKRARRETEHOFEF S -
A ETBHNE RN TIEGLEE - X&E
FRReEBEELEEXNHERENREER
fir  BIPCVD + VADROVD * it 35 % T
BERGEE - R RABZ Tt AREE
BEERZNHBRTMERE RZZ—1F
+ZA=+—8  FAEEEKZ=@EIE
B EIBHeRUELEIINEE(AEER
FRSGRBERDHERE)  FEuL sk KIE
BPIREIINTENE - BIRNAEBEKIFTES
REEAEEEBEENEEZHRSH Hz— -
B2 uNEEH D AEERHER -
RHEEESBRARMREZTNGRAME
FRRFER - &fg » AEBEERAAFIGE
BES IR BIE B IR B AR RIRAEA ©

FTERBRRITEERE

ZHERERGREAEEXENREKEE -
HAETHRERDCEMAEEBOE AR
o BETHERAIRBIERR - T2EE KR
THEEREBMT -

(N TREE
AT R AR E _EBURR o B IR AT
HEFETEXEMREHBOBERKE -
e~ FTEI R EMBUERAR - B E -
REEBAREMRAZFRIE RS
TTREIRRIR] L EREIERAT S - HEHEE
REHREE  KMEZFRBERSZA

1134
& o

66 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company &Rt Y 83D AR A 7]



REPORT OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Coninved
EEgHE®

(II) INTENSE COMPETITION () BUBmS

We are now operating in a highly competitive environment
and competing with both local and global competitors.
The Group competes with its competfitors on various factors
such as product variety, product performance, customer
service, quality, price, new product innovation, timely
delivery, global presence and brand recognition. If we do
not respond timely to our customers’ needs, our competitors’
reactions, technologies advancement and industrial and
market change, the Group's sales orders or its customer
demand for its products may decline and our revenue and
profits will be affected. The Company's market leader
position will also be affected.

(1I1) FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has to import glass substrate tubes, silica jacket
cylinders and various chemical gases from overseas for
use in the production of optical fibre preforms. All these
purchases from overseas have fo be settled in US Dollars or
Euro, which resulted in the Group facing foreign exchange
risk exposure. The Renminbi exchange rate fixing reform
on 11 August 2015 led to unexpected devaluation of
Renminbi against US Dollars and Euro and resulted in
foreign exchange loss to the Group. This foreign exchange
risk impact has set off part of the profits earned. It is
therefore crucial for the Group to enter info some hedging
arrangements in order to minimise this exposure and its
impacts towards the Group's profit.

(IV)REPUTATIONAL RISK

The Company is one of the leading optical fibre
preform, optical fibre and optical fibre cable suppliers
in the world and is operating under the brand name of
"YOFC”. YOFC was recognised as the “Most Valuable
Brand in Communications Industry in China” by China
Communications Industry Association in November 2012,
the Most Competitive Enterprise in Optical Fibre and
Optical Fibre Cable Industry in both China and one of
the most valuable enterprises in the World in the industry.
Should there be any negative impact towards the brand,
the Group would lose its high ranking when participating
in the central bidding organised by the three state-owned
felecommunication operafors in China. To safeguard and
manage the brand, it is important that the Group continues
to uphold its brand value, corporate image, product
quality and safety as well as maintain high ethical business
standard. In addition, it is also crucial that communication
with our shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.
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Further details of the risks associated with our business and our
industry and the uncerfainties which we face are discussed in the
section headed “Risk Factors” in the Prospectus.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(I) EMPLOYEES
Skilled and professional personnel are one of the valuable
assets of the Group and the Group regards people
development as highly important. The Group has built up
itself to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate employees with a clear
career path, opportunities for developing their talent and
improvement of their skills. The Group has engaged an
independent human resource consultancy firm fo assist the
Group in refaining our skilled and committed employees.
With the assistance of that consultancy firm, the Group has
developed its own successor training programme and other
in-house training courses. Besides, the Group has conducted
employee engagement survey once a year and members
of the senior management have seriously considered
those feedbacks from employees so as to enhance the
overall harmony, productivity, loyalty and morale. Further
details regarding employees, staff costs and emolument
policy of the Group are discussed in the section headed
“Management Discussion & Analysis — Employees and
Remuneration Policy” and in the paragraphs below headed
"Emolument Policy” of this report.

(II) SUPPLIERS

The Group has developed long term relationship with
its key suppliers both in China and overseas and taken
great care to ensure that all these suppliers deliver high
quality raw materials and share our commitment to offer
high quality products to our customers. The Group has
to make use of some independent third party optical
fibre cable manufacturers to produce optical fibre cables
when our production capacity on optical fibre cable has
been fully utilised. The Group has carefully selected these
manufacturers so as fo ensure that they can deliver the same
quality standard as required by the Company and their
quality controls are effectively executed in accordance with
the Company's requirements. Further details of our major
suppliers are set out in the paragraphs above headed
"Major Customers and Suppliers” of this report.
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(Ill) CUSTOMERS

The Group is committed to deliver good and high quality
products to our customers. The Group stayed connected
with our customers though its 30 sales representative offices
located in the capital cities of most provinces across Ching,
which are monitored by eight regional sales and customer
service offices located in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Wuhan, Chengdu and Xi'an.
All these regional sales offices are strategically positioned
fo serve each of the key regions in China and the local
subsidiaries of the three state-owned telecommunication
network operators located in each of these regions. We
have also increased our overseas sales offices from 8 in
2014 to 22 in 2015 so as to provide quality and value-
added affer sale customer services to our customers in
overseas. Further defails of our major suppliers are set out
in the paragraphs above headed "Major Customers and
Suppliers” of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is subject to environmental protection laws and
regulations promulgated by the Chinese Government. The
Group's production facilities discharge pollutants such
as industrial gaseous waste and waste water as well as
industrial solid wastes and hazardous wastes. The Group has
implemented stringent waste treatment procedures in all its
production facilities. The Group has also engaged professional
waste management company fo dispose of industrial solid
waste and has its own procedures in place and designated
special staff to treat and dispose of any hazardous wastes.
We also strive to minimise our environmental impact by saving
energies like power, gas and water and encourage the recycling
of office supplies and other materials. The Group is in strict
compliance with the relevant environmental regulations and rules
and possesses all necessary permission and approval from the
relevant authorities in China. The Group has registered each
bafch of its hazardous wastes with the Ministry of Environmental
Profection in accordance with the requirements of applicable
laws and regulations.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Company was established in the PRC and its H shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Group's operations are mainly carried out in China and
in overseas. All its establishments and operations in China or
outside China shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in the countries where they operate. During the year ended 31
December 2015 and up to the date of this report, the Group
is in compliance with all the relevant laws and regulations in
China, Hong Kong and in the countries where the Group has its
establishment or operations in all material respects.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the subscription of domestic shares and H shares of the
Company pursuant to the ESOP as described in the paragraphs
headed “Share Capital” and “Connected Transactions” of this
report, at no time during the year was the Company, or any
of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement fo enable the Directors,
Supervisors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates or close associates (as respectively defined under
the Hong Kong Llisting Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate, nor did the Company enfer into any other
equitylinked agreement.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions

totalling RMB80O,000 (2014: RMB792,500).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company during the

year and up to the dafe of this annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wen Huiguo (the Chairman)

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee (the Vice-Chairman)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ma Jie
Mr. Yao Jingming
(appointment effective on @ June 2015)
Mr. Philippe Claude Vanhille
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony
Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng
Ms. Zheng Huili
Mr. Sun Jiming

(resignation effective on 9 June 2015)*

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ngai Wai Fung

Mr. Ip Sik On Simon

Mr. Li Ping

Mr. Li Zhuo

SUPERVISORS
Mr. Jiang Zhikang
Mr. Liv Deming

(appointment effective on @ June 2015)
Ms. Li Chang'ai

(appointment effective on @ June 2015)
Mr. Yao Jingming

(resignation effective on 9 June 2015)
Ms. Yu Jiaxuan

(resignation effective on 9 June 2015)

*

Mr. Sun Jiming resigned due fo changes in work arrangement.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Direcfors, the Supervisors and senior
management of the Group are sef out on pages 41 to 56 of this
annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules and the
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent pursuant to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
has entered into a service contract with the Company on 14
November 2014, except for Mr. Yao Jingming whose service
contract with the Company was entered info on @ June 2015.
Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment on 14 November 2014. Pursuant to our
Articles of Association, the term of office of the Directors shall
be 3 years. The principal particulars of these service contracts
and lefters of appointment are (a) for a term commencing from
their respective effective date of appointment until the day
on which the next general meeting of the shareholders for re-
election of Directors is held, and (b) are subject fo ferminafion in
accordance with their respective terms.

Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract
with the Company on 14 November 2014, except for Mr. Liu
Deming and Ms. Li Chang'ai whose service confracts with the
Company were entered info on @ June 2015. As required under
the Opinions on Further Promotion of Standardising Operations
and Intensifying Reform of Overseas listed Companies
(Guojingmaogai No. [1999]230), the Company shall have
a number of external Supervisors comprising one half or more
of the board of Supervisors, among whom, two or more shall
be independent Supervisors. The Company has fulfilled this
requirement since @ June 2015.
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None of the Directors and the Supervisors had entered into any
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS” AND SUPERVISORS' INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors and the Supervisors, or any entity
connected with them had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31
December 2015 or subsisted atf the end of the year ended 31
December 2015.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts conceming the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered info or existed during the year ended 31 December

2015.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

A nomination and remuneration committee was set up for,
among others, reviewing and making recommendations on
remuneration policy and scheme for Directors, Supervisors,
senior management and employees, taking into account
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme or
share option scheme. On 19 October 2015, the Company
approved to adopt the ESOP, pursuant to which target
participants of the scheme may subscribe for scheme units and
the target participants of the scheme are core personnel playing
a crucial role in the Company’s overall performance and mid
and longterm development, including Directors, Supervisors,
senior management personnel, middle-level cadres and key
employees of the Group [excluding independent non-executive
Directors and external Supervisors).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors
(including the past Directors, the past Supervisors and the chief
executive) and five highest paid individuals are set out in notes @
and 10 fo the financial statements.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’, Supervisors’
and Senior Management's Profiles” in this annual report, during
the year ended 31 December 2015, there were no changes
in the information which are required to be disclosed and has
been disclosed by the Directors and the Supervisors pursuant to
paragraph (a) fo (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of
the Directors, Supervisors or the chief executive in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFOJ as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise be
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code (for this purpose, the relevant
provisions of the SFO will be inferpreted as if they applied to the

Supervisors and the chief executive) were as follows:

Capacity

Class of Share

Number of
Shares interested
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the relevant
classes of
Shares of the
Company
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Nature of interest

............................................................................................................................................................ .

Directors

Bz

Mr. Wen Huiguo
NeBxtE

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee
BemELE

Mr. Yao Jingming
PhHFEREE

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony
BEBEE

M:r. Xiong Xiangfeng
RRmgf 4

Ms. Zheng Huili
BEELL

Beneficial owner

Domestic Share

NER

H Share
Hi&

Domestic Share

NER

H Share
Hi%

Domestic Share

NER

Domestic Share

NE R

2,350,000

500,000

500,000

705,000

705,000

705,000

0.34%

0.07%

0.07%

0.10%

0.10%

0.10%

0.71%

0.14%

0.15%

0.20%

0.21%

0.21%

long position
)

long position

e

long position
)

long position

e

long position
)

long position
)
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EEGREW

Capacity

Class of Share

Number of
Shares interested

BEREEZ
RG#A

Approximate
percentage of
inferest in the

Company
EARNT
BN
BOL

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant
classes of
Shares of the
Company
EARAFER
BRIRMZ
BRHEA

Nature of interest

............................................................................................................................................................ .

Supervisor

£z

Mr. Jiong Zhikang
TEREE

General Manager

RS

Mr. Zhuang Dan
LS

Note:

Beneficial owner

ExBBA

neficial owner

Be
EREEA

Domestic Share

NER

Domestic Share

NER

723,000

2,350,000

(1) Denotes the number of underlying domestic shares represented by the units
in Wuhan Ruitu Management Consulting Parinership Enterprise (Limited
Parinership) held by the relevant Directors, Supervisor and Mr. Zhuang.
Wuhan Ruitu Management Consulting Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) was established under the PRC laws on 4 December 2015
for the purpose of holding domestic shares for the Directors and senior
management members of the Company under the ESOP.

(2)  As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 682,114,598, among which 351,566,794 were H
shares and 330,547,804 were domestic shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, none
of the Directors, Supervisors nor the chief executive of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any of the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant fo the Model Code.
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(1)

0.11%

0.34%

0.22%

0.71%

long position

HE

long position

HE

BHEPES EFEREAEMBOIETEE IR
HEBLE(BRAE)LENEMRKERNERAE
BEE - REEEEZARNGBRLOE(BREB)RN
“E-AF T ANARBERBRIERKT - KIZH
MRREETHEABEREFTRSRNERARRSE

HF351,5606,7941% "H

PIER -
20 R=F-RE+=A=+—B KRABHTRH
4EER682,114,598% -
18 5.330,547 804 BAEMR -
fREXPBMEEN  R=F

—hRF+=A

=t—H BEEE EERAQAEENT
BABRARRHEAFERREE(EE R E
7 RHIE GRPIEXVER) 2 B fn - BB B
FHBEBEANLHERAARREBEESMBE
fFRBIEIS2IRMRTEFE < Bl mtE s &
KR RARBRETAZIMBHARE R
FEBRXER KRR °
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EEgHE®

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

FERRREMA LRI G KR HEER
Dz EERAR

RZZE—RAF+A=+—8B  TIAL(K
NAESE  BEFEHTBTRAB)RARRK
D REEERDTRBEARBREZEZLHAE
{155 33616 A T 177 B W) & rC il AT A SR AV 12

= MR E

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

percentage of classes of
Number of interestinthe  Shares of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity Class of Share ~ Shares interested Company Company  Nature of interest
RN Y Nl
BEEGC B2 BL Bhkt 2
RRER 5t k] RGHE BOL BHESIL ERME
China Huaxin Beneficial owner Domestic Share 179,827,794 26.36% 54.40%  long posifion
hEER EREAA NER HE
China Reform Holdings Interest of @ controlled ~ Domestic Share 179,827,794 26.36% 54.40%  long posifion
Corporation Lid'" corporation NE R 58)
hEEHNEREREERR RmEEER
Yangtze Communications Beneficial owner Domesfic Share 119,937,010 17.58% 36.28%  long position
RL&E ERBEAA NEK HE
Draka Beneficial owner H Share 179,827,794 26.36% 51.15%  long position
ERBEAA H HE
Draka Holding B.V.% Interest of a controlled  H Share 179,827,794 26.36% 51.15%  long position
corporation H& HE
RmEEER
Prysmian S.p. A" Interest of a controlled ~ H Share 179,827,794 26.36% 51.15%  long position
corporation H& HE
RmEEER
Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.L.¢  Inferest of a confrolled  H Share 179,827,794 26.36% 51.15%  long position
corporation H& HE

REEEES

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant
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EEgREm®

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of
the relevant

percentage of classes of
Number of interestinthe ~ Shares of the
Name of Shareholders Capacity Class of Share ~ Shares interested Company Company  Nature of interest
RN Y Nl
BEERC R BL Bhkt 2
RRE® 5 RER RHHE BOL BHESIL EEME
Value Partners Group Limited Interest of a controlled ~ H Share 27,273,000 4.00% 7.76%  long position
EREEARAR corporation Hi& e
REEEER
Value Partners High-Dividend Beneficial owner H Share 27,908,500 4.09% 7.94%  long position
Stocks Fund EHHEBA HA e
BERRRRED
Integrated Asset Management Beneficial owner H Share 20,000,000 2.93% 5.69%  long position
[Asia] Limited®! EHEBA H HE
Yam Tak Cheung® Interest of a controlled  H Share 20,000,000 2.93% 5.69%  long position
EEEs corporation Hi& HE
REEER
Notes: M -

(1)

(6)

China Huaxin is wholly-owned by China Reform Holdings Corporation
Lid. China Reform Holdings Corporation Llid is therefore deemed to be
interested in 179,827,794 Domestic Shares held by China Huaxin.

Droka is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Draka Holding B.V.. Draka Holding
B.V. is therefore deemed to be interested in 179,827,794 H Shares held
by Draka.

Draka Holding B.V. is held as to 52.165% by Prysmian S.p.A. and
47.835% by Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.L., a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Prysmian S.p.A.. As set out in note (2) above, each of Prysmian S.p.A.
and Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.L. is therefore deemed to be interested in
179,827,794 H Shares held by Draka.

Value Partners Group Limited is deemed fo be interested in 27,273,000
H Shares held by Value Partners Limited. Value Partners Limited is wholly-
owned by Value Partners Hong Kong Limited, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Value Partners Group Limited.

Infegrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Yam
Tak Cheung and Mr. Yam Tak Cheung is therefore deemed fo be interested
in 20,000,000 H Shares held by Integrated Asset Management (Asial)
Limited.

As at 31 December 2015, the total number of issued shares of the
Company was 682,114,598, among which 351,566,794 were H
shares and 330,547,804 were domestic shares.

(1)

(2]

(3]

(3]

(6]

mEEEAREENEREREAANSEES -
BB FE R IR (A A A AR A R B A
B2179,827, 79AIRMA ek 5 s -

Draka % Draka Holding B.V. & & & [t & 2 & -
Draka Holding B.V. & M # 1% /&  Draka $5 A 2
179,827,794 HIR P A e -

Draka Holding B.V. B Prysmian S.p.A. & &
52.165% * K H#Prysmian Sp A ZEEWNE AR
Prysmian Cavi e Sistemi S.r.l. 5 47.835% ° #
i E TR EE(2) FT &L - Prysmian S.p.A. & Prysmian
Cavi e Sistemi S.r.L.EM % B #18 &5 Drakats A #)
179,827, 74 HAR A 4

SEEEERARKEAEFEBESER AR
£227,273,000kHE 2 s - BEESER AR
HEBEASCERFEARARZERA  MEBE
CEBEEARARAREEEEERARAZEE
MEBARE -

Integrated Asset Management (Asia) limited /&
BEXAERERE  IRELELEEAMHEEA/R
Integrated Asset Management (Asia) Limited$§ 7 &9
20,000,000 HAS A 2 -

REB-—RF+-_A=+—H KRBEHITRNH
BEH682,114,5980% + 351,566,794 73H
% %330,547 804 "N E MK °
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EEgHE®

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Save for the issue of H shares and domestic shares of the
Company under the Private Placement as described in the
paragraph above headed “Share Capital” of this report, the
Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of listed securities of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptfive rights under the Arficles of
Association of the Company or the Companies Law in the PRC,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro
rata basis fo the existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the lafest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report and based on information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the minimum public float of 25% as
required under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined under section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
Directors, Supervisors and officers of the Company was in force
in 2015 and is sfill in force up to the date of this report.

BE - HEXEEAQRZ EHES

BAZBEZEERE EX[RA]—E&ATM Z R IE
EAFBEEEITARAHK MAERIN - K
NRAIRENBRARREBEZE_ZT—hF+=A
T+ ALFEHMEREE  HEREBEOAR
I ETESH o

BEBERE

ARRBERKITEARREMEERELEE
BRMEX  REARABAREBRR 2
P EL 17138 B BCR B TR AD ©

ARFEREKT

RTERFHAOREATAY  REAR
AAFAIBZERRBESRMAM  ARFE
BEALTRAUBZRBRRFRELEFTNR
R25%H)7KF o

EETHE

NEE BEENARRSREIRZEAN
—IREFAIRERR(ERRBERRGDE
49N —FE—RHFEEN - BHEAREAH
HATI SRR -
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, none of the
Directors or their respective close associates had engaged in
or had any inferest in any business which competes or may
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group except for Mr. Philippe Claude Vanhille who has been
serving as the senior vice-president of telecom business of the
Prysmian group and primarily responsible for its global telecom
business. He holds/held several positions in certain subsidiaries
of Prysmian S.p.A. (together with its close associates, the
"Prysmian Group”) as more particularly described below. The
Prysmian Group produces a complete range of optical fibres,
optical and copper cables and accessories for connectivity
systems. The Prysmian Group has similar business serving the
telecom sector as the Company and therefore competes with
the Company. In relation to the competing interest of Mr.
Philippe Claude Vanhille, although he is involved in the high
|eveFo|ecision making of the Company's important strategic and

olicy matters, he is not involved in the daily management and
Eusiness operation of the Company. Further, the Board operates
in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association which
require Mr. Vanhille not to be entitled to vote on (nor be counted
in the quorum in relation to) any resolution of the Board in respect
of any confract, fransaction or arrangement in which Mr. Vanhille
or any of his close associates is materially inferested. During
the year, given his position in the Prysmian Group, Mr. Vanhille

EENHEEBNERS

HE-_ZT-—HE+t-A=1T—HBILFE &
EYAREZENETHEAMENLSEME
REBXBHFHAIHF(TimEEKE
BINEBINBEEEPHEAEMNEE
HIEFE « BAMEEETIESTRZEESE
AEBEREER  TEAaRARMEME
7 o &M Prysmian S.p. A GEREERHE A
i EERESEEDETETHEBRRE
£/ 2EEZEBRM(EZFHBHNTX) -
EEFSEELESRAE  KERFRE
BUNERRGRY  -EFEFSEEER
RAFRUNEEER - FULEARFEK
BF o MIENE e BHEREENHEFERM
o ORARBEARNFERRBNBEKRER
MBERR  HERILISEARFNAEE
BREBEE I EEEGRBEARAE
BITE  EHRRECABEETSHEFD
FEBHSREEMNEZHEATEAERZD
ERIEH  RPALHEROEREZTGR
BRER(NTFABBET AR - FA
HREREERISEENRBMA  BSHRELE
B A BB R E R 00% 2R KB FT
FRIEEBENMRRLEENHERERHFE
FTRNEEFGRBZENERTE - EEFEBH
MIX [EERXS | — -

was required fo abstain from voting on the board resolutions in
relation to the acquisition of 60% interests in NK Wuhan and
the revision of the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions with the Prysmian Group and YOFC Shanghai,
further details of which are sef out in the section below headed
"Connected Transactions”.

Name of company Nature of interests

NCIEY: BEEE

Draka Executive Director
WITES

Draka Comteq Fibre B.V. Non-executive Director
FERITES

Member of Comité de Controle

Comité de Controlefk 8

Non-executive Director [position no longer held
since May 2015]

A TEF(RN_ZE—RFRARET)

Chairman of the Board of Directors

EE o

Non-executive Director [position no longer held
since December 2015)

INTEE(R_Z—RF+= A#)

Non-executive Director

EHITES

Non-executive Director

ERTEF
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Draka Comteq France S.A.S.

Draka Comteq Iberica S.L.U.

Fibre Ottiche Sud S.r.l.

NK Wuhan Cable Co., Lid.

Prysmian Cables and Systems USA LLC

Precision Fibre Optics Ltd.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the list
of directorships provided by Mr. Vanhille and note that there is
no change in details previously so disclosed in the Prospectus
and the 2014 annual report except for the resignation from the
directorship of Draka Comteq Iberica S.L.U and NK Wuhan
during the year. The Company has put in place corporate
governance measures to manage the conflict of interests arising
from the competing interests of Mr. Vanhille and to safeguard
the interests of the Company, details of which are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 96 to 119 of this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH SANCTIONS UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company and the Directors
have undertaken to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange that they will
not use the proceeds from the Global Offering, as well as any
other funds raised through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, to
finance or facilitate, directly or indirectly, activities or business
with, or for the benefit of any sanction countries such as Cuba,
Iran, North Korea, Sudan and Syria (collectively, “Sanctioned
Countries”) or certain targeted persons or entities, including,
without limitation, those named on the US specially designated
nationals list or the US foreign sanctions evaders list and any
entity owned or contfrolled by any of the foregoing (collectively,
“Sanctioned Persons” and together with Sanctioned Countries,
“Sanctioned Targets”). The Company and the Directors have
also undertaken to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange that they
will not engage in any future business dealings with or relating
to Sanctioned Targets, in each case except to the extent that
economic sanctions are liffed against such Sanctioned Targets.
The Directors confirmed that both the Company and the Directors
were in compliance with the Sanctions Undertakings as at the
date of this annual report. At the same fime, the Company
has already implemented internal control measures to ensure
the compliance with the Sanction Undertakings. For details
of the internal control measures, please refer to the section
"Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report. In light
of the small volume (both in terms of dollar volume and as a
percentage of the Company's total sales) of the Company'’s
past dealings with Sanctioned Targets and Myanmar (Burmal
and the above-mentioned undertakings made to the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, the Company is of the view that the
Company'’s business activities and operations are very unlikely
fo subject any of the shareholders and investors, the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited and
HKSCC Nominees Limited to any liability under United States
economic sanctions, European Union economic sanctions and
United Nations economic sanctions.

BYRTEFEEMEFRTERMNE
EBAIER - THABEMRBRERER-F
—OEFHRARECABLEES - ERF
B EDraka Comteq lberica S.LUREEZ
SLEERIN - ARARIDRME T EEE QR
B ARIESERBEEN R B REMELN
MNEFR  URFREARBNE - BHEFS
HNAFHREQOE N 10B Z EBERME °

HEAEREZERENR

HINBREREAEE  ARARNMEZECRE
BER A TEHRAERBEEMSNIA
REMEREARIMEENESHE LM
EEPFRERTAZHHER(HlIEE -
FEA - B8 - & RARCNIEE ) (FehE [ X HIE
BERDEETEREALTHER(EEENRER
FEREERAEHXEEINGIE LR EE
PO AL ER » mpdEMALHE
BEASEFNETAER) (R [ ZHEA
T BRZHRERS [ XHEBER]DE
MEBHER  HB/WELZNETE - AR
AN ERNAE B - BRIFL 6
HEEMEEERER  SRAARIEEST
HlEL B RETTR R AN EARBERS
EEMRARAFERAY  ARRMEFHE
ST ARE o EULRIE - ARFEEEAER
ST - ARERE T B AR - BRAAED
ERERNFS  F2HAFERIEREAR
H1—8 c ERARREZFIE B F LA
BEXZAE N (AKX SR RIGARRFEH
EEALME) KA E BB RAEHNE
TG - ARBIRRANR RN ER B &
ETIRARERSEABERREEE - BB
RF - BEMRIMLEMEZES - BEPRE
BBERRALBETREE(REANBRA
AIAERBIE S E - BRERREH RS
B EBI M EREIE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
NON-EXEMPT ONE-OFF CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
ACQUISITION OF 60% INTERESTS IN NK WUHAN

On 18 June 2015, the Company entered into an equity fransfer
agreement with NK China Investments B.V. ["NK China”)
for the acquisition of 60% equity interests in NK Wuhan at
a consideration of RMB18 million. On the same date, the
Company and NK China also entered into the framework
agreement pursuant to which the Company agreed to provide
to NK China a bank guarantee of RMB18 million to secure the
payment of the consideration. At the date of the equity transfer
agreement, NK China was an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of Prysmian S.p.A., thus a fellow subsidiary of Draka, and was
therefore an associate of Draka and a connected person of
the Company. Accordingly, the acquisition and the provision
of bank guarantee constituted a connected transaction and
a continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules. As all the relevant
percentage ratios under the Hong Kong Listing Rules in respect
of the acquisition (after taking into account the indemnification
provided by the Company to NK China of a maximum amount
of RMB 10 million when calculating the consideration ratio) and
the provision of bank guarantee are more than 0.1% but less
than 5%, the acquisition and the provision of bank guarantee
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but are exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’
approval under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

On 25 December 2015, the acquisition was completed and the
bank guarantee was released. Further details of this acquisition
and the arrangements in respect of this acquisition are set out
in the Company’s announcement dated 18 June 2015 and are
disclosed in note 17 to the financial statements.

FHRRE—RBRERXS
W BB EE R L60% AR 1

RZE—RHFEXXATNAB » XAFENK
China Investments B.V.(INK Chinal)&] 3%
BEEGE  UWIEREZI 0% E -
BRARKISEEIL -AAB  £A—X ' K
AAENK China7NeT 3 THEZR ek - BUL -
AABIREENK ChinalgtE ARBI8HEE T
RIRITTREARBREMN I - RIREEZE
e B H - NK China&ZPrysmian S.p. AR H
BE2EMBAT - FILEDrakaMBERMBE A
7] BN Draka MBS E A RN QA RIMEEE A
T o MEBRBLMHARNEL4AZTIET - B
RARMIRITIR MK AR BRI BER 5 M iF
BRAERS - BRIE (Tt EREL RS -
B2 EARQAMNK ChinalgfitHH&xe AR
10,000,000 T EEEEES ) A RIRHIRTT
REHFFEDE LEMANETHMEBBE D
EHFRON%BEERRE% - W iE R Ie iR 7T
RHUEBRBEBELTHRNETERERREAME
ko MAlARETBRHRBEIRRMENE
3]2 o

R-ZT—AF+-A=+HA KELDR
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ATNBZAMmERMBERER ZME17H
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CONNECTED H SHARE SUBSCRIPTION AND CONNECTED
DOMESTIC SHARE SUBSCRIPTION

The Company considers that the adoption of the ESOP can
further enhance the Company's corporate governance structure,
incentivise the Company’s management and core personnel
team and it is a sound mid- to long-term incentive plan that
provides for both incentives and restrictions. The purpose of
the Private Placement, which involves, among other things,
the Connected H Share Subscription and the Connected
Domestic Share Subscription (as respectively defined below),
is to implement the ESOP and the placing of the H shares to
independent institutional investors.

On 28 July 2015, the Company entered into two H share
subscription agreements (the “H Share Subscription Agreements”)
with each of the two Directors (the “Connected H Share
Subscribers”) pursuant to which the Connected H Share
Subscribers have conditionally agreed to subscribe for in
cash, and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, a total of 1,205,000 new H shares of the Company
(the “Connected H Share Subscription”). The name and
positions of the Connected H Share Subscribers, the number
of H shares subscribed by the Connected H Share Subscribers
(the “Subscribed H Shares”) under the H Share Subscription
Agreements and the total subscription price as subsequently
determined are set out below:

Name Position

## Bz

.............................................................................................

Frank Franciscus Dorjee
BeEE RRABMITES
Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony
155 BN 33 RRAFFERTES

The subscription price for the Subscribed H Shares was
subsequently determined to be HK$7.15 per Subscribed
H Share. Pursuant to the H Share Subscription Agreements,
each of the two Connected H Share Subscribers undertakes
to the Company that, without the prior written consent of the
Company, he will not, and, where applicable, will procure
that his nominee(s) will not, at any time during the period of 24
months following the date of completion of the subscription of the
Subscribed H Shares, directly or indirectly, dispose of any of the
Subscribed H Shares and any shares or other securities of the
Company deriving from the Subscribed H Shares, including but
not limited to any bonus issue or capitalisation issue.

Executive Director of the Company

Non-executive Director the Company

FREHRABRERERNERZE

ARABIRBHEME TRBE N E-FEE
ARBEEERARE  BEAARAEEER
OB TITHM - ERARBERS - BEE@
2T RAHMBIES - SFRHREE(AF 8K
BREHERBREBENERRB(EED
FRTX))ERBETEIRFKRE MEEH
BT EIEBRESE -

R-ZZFE-—RFLA-t/\B  ARARHEME
E=([BHEEHRRBAD 2RI ZMMNH
BRBEwE(THRRBERE]) - Bt - B
BEHEABACAEGREHRABARSRE
MARAREBGE R B HERBEITE R
1,205,000 5T HEL ([ B RAEHRRBE ) -
ﬁ?@@HH& AR MG - BREH
i A TR IBEHARRE a8 P et 8 2 HAR BB
(fE RREHE ) AR E R TEEMARBEED
£

Number of Subscribed Total Subscription
H Shares Price
ERBHREA %@aﬂﬁﬁ
500,000 HK$3,575,000
3,575,000 7T

705,000 HK$5,040,750

5,040,750% 7T

ERBEBHRZRBEERETSERERE

HELZ 1587 - RIBHRRB RS - MEEH
EHHx%%}\iXQIﬂ$ AAGE - RERFAK
NRIFLAEHRREN - RETEREERB
AT A EREERBAARE RBHER
BB RR24E A REMER  BEEX
B LS A RBHR REE RBHRER
(BREETRMMEMARETHENCETT)
ZARRBEABR D SR EMES -

Annual Report 3k 2015 83



REPORT OF.THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Coninued
EEgHRE®

On 28 July 2015, the Company entered into eleven (11)
limited partnership unit subscription agreements with each of
Mr. Wen Huiguo, Mr. Yao Jingming, Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng,
Ms. Zheng Huili, Mr. Zhuang Dan, Mr. Jan Bongaerts, Mr.
Zhang Mu, Mr. Yan Changkun, Mr. Luo Jie, Mr. Yu Jianwu
and Mr. Zhang Yanxiang (collectively and together with Mr.
Jiang Zhikang, the “Connected Domestic Share Subscribers”),
and on 29 August 2015, the Company entered into a limited
partership unit subscription agreement with Mr. Jiang Zhikang.
Pursuant to the limited partnership unit subscription agreements
entered between the Company and the Connected Domestic
Share Subscribers (the “LP Unit Subscription Agreements”), the
Connected Domestic Share Subscribers have conditionally
agreed to indirectly subscribe for new domestic shares of the
Company by subscribing for units (the “New Domestic Shares [P
Units”) in the Limited Parinership (as defined below) representing
a total of 14,252,000 underlying domestic shares and the
Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue a total
of 14,252,000 domestic shares (the “Subscribed Domestic
Shares”) to the limited Partnership (as defined below| as part
of the new domestic shares to be issued under the ESOP,
at a price of HK$7.15 per underlying domestic share. The
limited partnership established under the laws of the PRC on 4
December 2015, namely Wuhan Ruitu Management Consulting
Partnership Enterprise (Limited Partnership), for the purpose of
holding, among others, the SubscribefDomech Shares, is
herein referred to as the “Limited Partnership”. The names and
positions of the Connected Domestic Share Subscribers and the
number of underlying new domestic shares represented by the
New Domestic Shares LP Units subscribed by the Connected
Domestic Share Subscribers under the LP Unit Subscription
Agreements are set out below:

Name Position
e B
Wen Huiguo Chairman of the Board and Executive Director

of the Company

XeH EXSIEMARTMTES

Yao Jingming Non-executive Director of the Company
2k AR RAFBEAITES

Xiong Xiangfeng Non-executive Director of the Company
RE[A] 14 RAFFERTES

Zheng Huili Non-executive Director of the Company.
Py RAFFERITES

RZEBE—RFLtA-+N\B " ARRHEYXS
Bl « PhFFRALE « BRRIEL A - LR
ZE - BEAEE - BEREE RBELE
BRELE  B#BALE BWERAEENKE
rE(EBRIEREESEEA [ AEER
ERRBADZSEITLT—(11OEREE
TENERERE  ERZZE—RFNA
ZtABR ARREIEERETIERA
BEENBEREDZE - BREXAAFHERHE
NERRBRBAFILZBERABRTCENTERE
(I BREBRLCENBERERHZ]) - 5H
HENEBRRBACERKGLRAEERBER
ARCE(EERA T ) zhEmEEREN
RNER(FTANEREREELENRRE]D - &
HHEK 14,252,000 +BRERER - MARF]
ERBRENIEITE 14,252 0000 K" E
BIERBERNER] FTERAECE(EER
TX) - {EREIREER THR 2T 25K
Rz —8n  SREBANEREE158
T BRAENCEN_Z—RE+_-_AWMA
BIEFPBAZEKY FAREEEEEEN
ARLCX(BEREE) 8E(EF8E)EFA
EREBRER  ANBAE[BREBLE] -
EEBRERABEAZ MR RBAARE
HNEBRRBARBEREBLENDERE
BRI RBCTANERBEREREENENR
KZMBEAFTRNERZEBHEOT ¢

Number of
Underlying New
Domestic Shares
represented by the
New Domestic Total
Shares LP Units  Subscription Price

HANERBRER
EEMBERRZ
HEHANERBE HABE
2,350,000  HK$16,802,500
16,802,500% 7T
500,000 HK$3,575,000
3,575,000 7T
705,000 HK$5,040,750
5,040,750/ 7T
705,000 HK$5,040,750

5,040,750 7T
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EESHRE®
Number of
Underlying New
Domestic Shares
represented by the
New Domestic Total
Name Position Shares LP Units  Subscription Price
HRERERER
TEAERRZ
HmE B HEHFRNERHE BABE
Zhuang Dan General Manager, director of Yangtze Optical Fibre 2,350,000 HK$16,802,500
AT and Cable Company (Hong Kong] Limited, 16,802,500/ 7T
EverPro, EverProsper Technologies Company Limited,
Yangtze Optical
Fibre and Cable (Shanghai) Co., lid., Yangtze Zhongli
Optical Fibre and Cable (Jiangsu) Co., lid., Yangize
Optical Fibre and Cable Sichuan Co., lid., Yangtze
Optical Fibre and Cable Shenyang Co., lid., Yangize
Optical Fibre and Cable lanzhou Co., lid. and PT
Yangtze Optical Fibre Indonesia
BE - RRAEHE(EB)BRRAR - REE - &
SR (BEB)RHBERAR - RARKENE( 8B
PRAF IR RPAIEABEARAF - "KM
FEBUIBRAR - KRR ELEERLAR - &
RAGENERMNERABRERACBENEEATHR
NAZESE
Jan Bongaerts First Deputy General Manager, direcfor of Yangtze 2,350,000 HK$16,802,500
BER Optical Fibre and Cable Company (Hong Kong) 16,802,500/ 7T

Limited, Yangtze Zhongli Optical Fibre and Cable
liangsu) Co., lid. (TERERP RS EFR Q)
and PT Yangtze Optical Fibre Indonesia (R4 ENE
[ERz BRAT)

FElRKE  RRCEAE(FE)BRAR - T
RRPAFEABER AR RERIBENEEAER
RAFIZES
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BEgREwW
Number of
Underlying New
Domestic Shares
represented by the
New Domestic Total
Name Position Shares LP Units ~ Subscription Price
FREREREE
EMERRZ
®E B HBEFANEREE WREE
Zhang Mu Deputy General Manager and the general manager of 1,015,000 HK$7,257,250
B the strategic center, director of EverPro, EverProsper 7,257 25087

Yan Changkun
BRES

Luo Jie
EN

Yu Jianwu

ey

Technologies Company Limited, Yangize Optical Fibre
and Cable (Shanghai) Co., lid., Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Shenyang Co., lid. and PT Yangize Optical
Fibre Indonesia and supervisor of Yangtze Zhongli
Optical Fibre and Cable (Jiangsu) Co., Lid.

BB RIS ORKIE - RIS - RISE(ES)
BMEARAR - RREEAE (LB BERARF - K
RAENELSERRBERRABENEEATHR
NAIZESR  URIEHRRP ARG HEFERAFZ
E=

Deputy General Manager and the general manager of 972,000
the manufacturing center, director of EverPro, Yangtze
Optical Fibre and Cable Lanzhou Co., ld. and PT
Yangtze Optical Fibre Indonesia

BlARAIE M BLER DELIE - RIS - R ER
MERRFRERABHNEEATERAGRZES

Chief Technology Officer, supervisor of 863,000
EverPro Technologies Company limited

wffress » ROE(FUR)MRBRARZES

Chief Marketing and Strategic Officer, director of 872,000
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable (Shanghai) Co., lid.

TiIZEBR AR  RRCECE(LB)BRARIZE
=
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Number of
Underlying New
Domestic Shares

represented by the

New Domestic Total
Name Position Shares LP Units  Subscription Price
HRNERBREE
TEAERRZ
mH B HEHFRNERHE HABE
Zhang Yanxiang Chief Sales Officer and the general manager of the sales 847,000 HK$6,056,050
RIEFD center, director of Yangtze Zhongli Optical Fibre and 6,056,050/ 7T
Cable {Jiangsu) Co., lid. and Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Sichuan Co., L.
HERENHEDLALRE  ITHRRRPAE N ER
RARRERIENEQNERAFZES
Jiang Zhikang Supervisor of the Company and the general manager of 723,000 HK$5,169,450
STEE the operation management center of the Company 5,169,450 7

RRAREFENARNFBEEEIRROAKLIE

Pursuant to the LP Unit Subscription Agreements, each of the
12 Connected Domestic Share Subscribers undertakes to the
Company that, without the prior written consent of the Company,
he/she will not, and, where applicable, will procure that his/
her nominee(s] will not, at any time during the period of 24
months following the date of completion of the subscription by
the Connected Domestic Share Subscribers of the New Domestic
Shares P Units and the issue and allotment of the Subscribed
Domestic Shares to the Limited Partnership by the Company,
directly or indirectly, dispose of any of the New Domestic Shares
LP Units, the Subscribed Domestic Shares and any shares or
other securities of the Company deriving from the Subscribed
Domestic Shares, including but not limited to any bonus issue or
capitalisation issue.

REERAGEEXNERBHE - +-%28
BENERBBALEBRMARE AR K
BEARRZELAERRE  BETERE
HEREBEAT  STeREEARBAREGHE
NEBRBBALRBHAERBRABLE
MBRARRETREZERBENERTE
RABEETKARE =+ @A BMEIMA
R BERIERLETAHFAERBRE
BEENE CRBREBRERCECABBEARE
REF(BREETRNEMAKRETHESL
BAT) 2 AR R R EME S -
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The Connected H Share Subscribers include two Directors,
namely Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee and Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki
Anthony. The Connected Domestic Share Subscribers include
four Directors, namely Mr. Wen Huiguo, Mr. Yao Jingming,
Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng and Ms. Zheng Huili, seven senior
management members of the Company, namely Mr. Zhuang
Dan, Mr. Jan Bongaerts, Mr. Zhang Mu, Mr. Yan Changkun,
Mr. Luo Jie, Mr. Yu Jianwu and Mr. Zhang Yanxiang, who
are directors and/or supervisors of the subsidiaries of the
Company and a supervisor of the Company, namely Mr. Jiang
Zhikang. The Limited Partnership is wholly and beneficially
owned by four Directors and certain senior management
members of the Company. The Connected H Share Subscribers,
the Connected Domestic Share Subscribers and the Limited
Partnership are connected persons of the Company under the
Hong Kong Llisting Rules and the transactions contemplated
under the H Share Subscription Agreements and the LP Unit
Subscription Agreements constitute connected transactions of
the Company and are subject to the annual reporting, annual
review, announcement, circular and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. The H Share Subscription Agreements and the LP
Unit Subscription Agreements were approved by independent
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 19 October 2015.

Further defails of the relevant share subscriptions are set out in
notes 31 and 32 fo the financial statements.

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The continuing connected transactions of the Company are also
related party transactions, which are disclosed in note 36 to
the audited consolidated financial statements in accordance
with International Accounting Standards 24 “Related Party
Disclosure.”

Summarised below are the nature of transactions, the annual
caps and the fransaction amount of the confinuing connected
transactions for 2015:

BREHRRBALEEMLES BB « 12
BRERGRBRL ARERERZEA
TEREMRES  AIXSEELEE - SHHFHL
£RAERERBEBRZLE  UREHRAR
NAEREREKRE  BEALLE  HER
A RBELE  BRBEL  BENKLE
WMEREERREDLE  REHBEALQF
MBARZEER HEE  URARFE
BITSEEE -AREBLEEANRES
RARRETERERBEKREZENERE
B-REEBLMARA - BEEHBRREA
T BEERNEBRRBRBALINRAEREBLE
RARBIREANT - MBEHEREHELER
EREENERBEHRBRET RS BX
ARABIZEER S ABTEBLEMRASE
THAEZ FERE - FEEN 25 BXK
KB BREERTE - HERBIHZERBRA
BEENBERBHREESEARAN_T—1
FTATNABETZEBRERRAS LEEFT
BERALEE -

HEBRNRBZEZFBHANMBHRER M
31 K32 -

FHERAMEXS
ARBRNFHEREZZNREB IS - B

ERIEER S ER L2457 [ BB TR E IR
REZA G HRER 2 MESOWE -

TXHR—E-—RFHEREXZH 22X H M
g FELRERXZEHE
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SALES OF OPTICAL FIBRES AND OPTICAL FIBRE CABLES TO
CHINA HUAXIN AND ITS ASSOCIATES (COLLECTIVELY THE
“HUAXIN GROUP”)

China Huaxin is a substantial shareholder of the Company and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. China Huaxin also held 50% equity interests
in Alcatel-lucent Shanghai Bell Co., lid (“Shanghai Bell”) and
therefore Shanghai Bell is an associate of China Huaxin and is
also a connected person of the Company under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules.

The Company entered info a framework agreement with China
Huaxin on 13 November 2014 o regulate the sales of optical
fibres and optical fibre cables with the Huaxin Group (the
"Huaxin Sales Framework Agreement’). Pursuant to the Huaxin
Sales Framework Agreement, the pricing ferms of each sales
fransaction shall be determined with reference fo the prevailing
tender price announced by the state-owned telecommunications
operators in the PRC and where such tender price is not
available or inapplicable, the price shall be determined on o
fair and reasonable basis which is equivalent or comparable to
those offered to or quoted by third parties independent of the
Company for similar products.

The Huaxin Sales Framework Agreement became effective on 10
December 2014 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) the date on which China Huaxin ceases to
be our connected person, whichever comes earlier. The parties
to the Huaxin Sales Framework Agreement may negotiate fo
extend the agreement for a further term of three years within two
months before the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement
unless the agreement is terminated earlier due to China Huaxin
ceasing to be the connected person of the Company.

During the year, the annual caps of the continuing connected
transactions with China Huaxin and Shanghai Bell for 2015
as permitted by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange were
RMB 10,000,000 and RMB 15,000,000, respectively, and
the actual transaction amount for 2015 with China Huaxin
and Shanghai Bell was RMB590,000 and RMB3,023,000,
respectively and the annual caps have been kept.

AFREFRBEAR(RE[EEFKE]) B
EXERAE

THEEERARTNTIERR  AMALR
AMEALTRTOEEAL - REEE
NEHAELBEBERNBERAR( LSRR
S50%BHE - FHit - RIEFHR LEWHRA - £E
ERATHEEENBEA  TAKRRAZH
BAL e

ARBR-_F-—OFE+—A+=HEPHEE
ERISER W= ([EEHEERRZE]) - A
EANREEEREN B IOCEEE - R
BEEHEERDZE  SHHEENEEHRK
ASEREBRAEEEERERAMNIRIET
& - B XS REEXRFEER - A
EEBARFRE  ERIEAANRBEL
FZTBEAHERNEERNRE -

EEHEERGER T —NF+ A+
BAX YR THBEHAAER(AREER
) (|=FHRERSL()FEEEIBR/E
NRAEAIMBEALER - EEHEERBZS
#1737 A1 0B B thp sk = F AR JE T AT AR L A
EEEN=F  EBZATEEETER/A
NEIRREE AT MEEATAR LERIBRSN

- BEEBER LERBR-_T—AE
B0 45 0 B 34 B O B R T O B 2
EIR % 31A AR 10,000,0007 & AR5
15,000,0007¢ + MR EEEN HBR R
—E-RENERISLBEANRBARE
590,000t & A E#3,023,0007T © RFE
FRRBETE -
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OPTICAL FIBRE TECHNOLOGY COOPERATION AGREEMENT
(THE “TCA”")

Draka is a substantial shareholder of the Company and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The Company entered into the TCA with Draka on 13 October
2008, which was further revised on 27 August 2013 and 30
May 2014. The TCA came into effect on 1 June 2008 and shall
expire on 22 July 2024 unless terminated earlier by one party
by written notice in case of breach of confract by other party,
provided that in the case of any breach capable of being made
good, the agreement shall not be terminated unless and until
such breaching party has failed to make good the breach within
sixty days affer it has been served with a writtlen notice specifying
the breach and requiring it to make the breach good. The TCA
sefs out the terms and conditions of the cooperation between
the Company and Draka in relation to the joint development
of optical fibre technology, the grant of a license over Draka’s
patents, the geographical delineation of sales market and the
provision of technical services. Further details of the terms and
conditions of the cooperation between the Company and Draka
are set out in the Prospectus.

Pursuant to the TCA, with respect fo the grant of license, the
Company has agreed to pay to Draka semi-annual royalty
fee equivalent to 1.3% of the net selling price of each optical
fibre product manufactured under the licensed patents that the
Company sells or disposes of. The Company is not required to
pay any royalty fees if the relevant products are sold to Draka
or its affiliates. If either party wishes to use any improvements,
upgrades, modifications made in the working methods,
manufacturing processes and manufacturing equipment that the
other party applies or uses in its mass production of optical fibre
products, then it may file a request with other party and, if the
other party accepts such request, additional royalties shall be
payable as agreed upon the parties.

During the year, the annual cap for the royalty fee paid or
payable to Draka for 2015 as permitted by the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange was RMB31,000,000 and the actual

transaction amount with Draka for 2015 was RMB30,982,000
and the annual cap has been kept.

The Company has obfained a waiver from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange from strict compliance with the requirement of limiting
the term of the TCA to three years or less. For details of the
waiver, please refer to the Prospectus.

ST A A R ([ AR T S 1t )
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BLETRATEOREAL -
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MITENEMBENEASTARDARUETEELD
115 ° HREIMA 1EHZ & AR R EDraka
BRI LA - Fr]{EADrakaE A -
HEMSNMERE D - W RIRESMT RS
BEIER R AFE » AN QB EDrokaZ B 1EIEEK
MGGz EZHBHNBRER -

RS MA EHZE - UREFFAME -
AR REEMDraka@FF X —REFE -
TEBERARRHE RN ERBEFFAEF
SUEMBERNBEMNFEEN.3% K18
FEmIIHE Fhoka HEEB AL - BIR
AEBBMERMERNE o W0 — 5 E
AE—NTERABERAELERERSL(E
RAERIESR  AETZREERKBZ
HR - ARKFEER - ARE—HREE
Ko T EMZER BN ETHE
ZEINERE -

FA -+ WDroka AT ST & F BB FTHEE
MNEFEBENFE ERAEARKE31,000,000
L MR ZE—RAFHDrakar BER R 5 ¢
AARKE30,082,0007T © RFE FREFT
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SALES AND PURCHASES OF OPTICAL FIBRES, OPTICAL FIBRE
CABLES, RAW MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT AND COMPONENTS
TO AND FROM PRYSMIAN AND ITS ASSOCIATES (THE
“PRYSMIAN GROUP”) AND YOFC SHANGHAI

Draka Comteq Frances S.A.S ("Draka France”), Draka Comteq
Fibre B.V. ("Draka Fibre”), Singapore Cable Manufacturers
Pte Ltd. ("Draka Singapore”), Prysmian Wuxi Cable Co., Lid
(“Prysmian Wuxi") and Prysmian Draka Brasil S.A. ("Prysmian
Brazil”) are indirect subsidiaries either of Draka Holding B.V.
or Prysmian S.p.A. and thus they are all fellow subsidiaries of
Draka, and is therefore an associate of Draka and are connected
persons of the Company under the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

YOFC Shanghai is held as to 75% by the Company and 25%
by Draka, the substantial shareholder of the Company and is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

During the year, the Group sells and purchases optical fibres,
optical fibre cables, raw materials, equipment and components
fo cerfain members of the Prysmian Group and YOFC Shanghai
in the ordinary and usual course of business.

The Company entered into two framework agreements with
Prysmian S.p.A. and two framework agreements with YOFC
Shanghai, respectively, on 13 November 2014 to regulate
each sales and purchases transaction with the Prysmian Group
and YOFC Shanghai. Pursuant to the terms of these framework
agreements, the pricing of each sales transaction shall be
consistent with the following guidelines:

(i) the prevailing tender price announced by local
telecommunications operators at the place where the
relevant purchaser is located (the “Llocal Tender Price”); or

(i) the latest average export (from China) price made available
to public by the General Administration of Custom of the
PRC, at the time of the relevant transaction (the “Export
Price”);

where neither the Local Tender Price nor the Export Price is
available, the pricing ferms shall be consistent with Tﬁe prevailing
tender price announced by the state-owned felecommunications
operators in the PRC (the “PRC Tender Price”) and where none of
the Local Tender Price, the Export Price or the PRC Tender Price
is available or applicable, the price shall be determined on a
fair and reasonable basis which is equivalent or comparable to
those offered to or quoted by third parties independent of the
Company for similar products.

EPRYSMIANK EERA ([ EERASEME )
RAH

Draka Comteq Frances S.A.S. ([ Draka France ]) »
Draka Comteq Fibre B.V. ([ Draka Fibre 1) -
Singapore Cable Manufacturers Pte Ltd.
([Draka Singaporel) * Prysmian Wuxi Cable
Co., lid.(TEHERRE |) KXPrysmian Draka
Brasil S.A. ([ Prysmian Brazil | ) /% Draka
Holding B.V.ZkPrysmian S.p. A BIEEH B A
al - Bt BDraka® B ZKTBRF - #ARE
8 LR B ADrakaB B R A R AR R H#
BAL e
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With respect fo the pricing of each purchase transaction, it shall
be consistent with the following guidelines:

(i) the latest average import (into China) price made available
fo public by the General Administration of Customs of the
PRC at the time of the relevant transaction; or

i) the prevailing tender price announced by the state-owned
telecommunications operators in the PRC;

where none of the above is available or applicable, the price
shall be determined on a fair and reasonable basis which is
equivalent or comparable to those offered to or quoted by third
parties independent of the Company for similar products.

Fach of the above mentioned framework agreements entered
into between the Company and Prysmian S.p.A. or YOFC
Shanghai became effective on 10 December 2014 and is
valid either (i} until the expiry of a period of three years or {ii)
the date on which Draka ceased to be a connected person of
the Company, whichever comes earlier. The parties to these
framework agreements may negotiate to extend the agreement
for a further term of three years within two months before
the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement unless the
agreement is terminated earlier due to Draka ceasing to be our
connected person.

During the year, the annual caps for the continuing connected
transactions with the Prysmian Group and YOFC Shanghai
were revised and approved by independent shareholders at
an extraordinary general meetfing of the Company held on 5
August 2015, further details in relation to the reasons for revision
of annual caps for the continuing connected fransactions with
the Prysmian Group and YOFC Shanghai are set out in the
Company's circular despatched to shareholders dated 19 June
2015.

The revised annual caps of the continuing connected transactions
with respect fo sales transactions with each of Draka Fibre,
Draka Singapore, Prysmian Wuxi, Prysmian Brazil and
YOFC Shanghai for 2015 as approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company were RMB2,000,000,
RMB24,000,000, RMB 120,000,000, RMB 13,000,000 and
RMB243,000,000, respectively, and the actual transaction
amount for 2015 with Draka Fibre, Draka Singapore,
Prysmian Wuxi, Prysmian Brazil and YOFC Shanghai was
RMBNIil, RMB13,594,000, RMB57,941,000, RMBNIl and
RMB242,746,000, respectively.
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The revised annual caps of the continuing connected transactions
with respect fo purchases fransactions with each of Draka Fibre,
Draka France, Prysmian Wuxi and YOFC Shanghai for 2015
as approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
were RMB42,000,000, RMB36,000,000, RMB 12,000,000
and RMB272,000,000, respectively, and the actual
transaction amount for 2015 with Draka France, Draka Fibre,
Prysmian Wuxi and YOFC Shanghai was RMB27,746,000,
RMBT11,699,000, RMB5,481,000 and RMB224,493,000,
respectively.

In respect of the sale transactions with Huaxin Group and the
transactions under the TCA, the Company has obtained a waiver
from the Hong Kong Stock Exchange from strict compliance
with the announcement requirement under Rule 14A.35 of the
Hong Kong Listing Rules. In respect of the purchase and sale
transactions with the Prysmian Group and YOFC Shanghai, the
Company has obtained a waiver from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange from strict compliance with the announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Rule 14A.35, 14A.36, 14A.46 and 14A.53(3) of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed each
of the above-mentioned continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that the transactions have been entered info:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3] according to the agreements governing them on terms

that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.
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EEgHRE®

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules, the
Board engaged the auditor of the Company to conduct a limited
assurance engagement on the above continuing connected
fransactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has reported their conclusion to the
Board stating that:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
fransactions have not been approved by the Board;

b. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services
by the Group, nothing has come to the auditors’ aftention
that causes the auditor to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group;

c. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
fransactions were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions; and

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of continuing
connected transactions set out above, nothing has come
to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the 2015 annual caps as disclosed above.

The auditor has issued their unqualified lefter containing their
findings and conclusions in respect of the abovementioned
fransactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. The Company has provided a copy of the said letter
to the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

In respect of the above-mentioned continuing connected
fransactions, the Directors also confirmed that the Company was
in compliance with the compliance requirements under Chapter
14A of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the
accounting principles and policies adopted by the Group and
discussed the Group's risk management, internal controls and
financial reporting matters with the management. The audit
committee has reviewed the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The material post balance sheet events are disclosed in note 38
fo the financial stafements.

AUDITORS

The Company has appointed KPMG and KPMG Huazhen LLP
(collectively "KPMG") as the international and the domestic
auditors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2015. KPMG retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
both infernational and domestic auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting, which will

be held on 7 June 2016.

By order of the Board

Wen Huiguo

Chairman

Wouhan, China
24 March 2016
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Shareholders
BRER

Board of Directors (2 executive Directors (“ED”), +
6 non-executive Directors (“NEDs”) + 4 independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”)

EZe(MERTES(HTES D+ EFATES(3*
BOTES)+OEBFATES(BULFATES )

Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

(1 ED + 2 INEDs)
RERFMZER
(—BHITES+
MEBILIHITES)

: : Strategy Committee
Board of AU Commilice (1 ED + 2 INEDs)

Management (3 INEDs} BREES(—BH

o EHESE TEBREBYE
REZR (CEBIFHTES) gt hcieon

Independent External
Auditor (KPMG)
B SRR ED

EFRE BB

Internal Audit and Risk

Management Department
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EEERHE @

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed fo maintaining high level of corporate
governance. The Board is responsible for performing corporate
governance dufies, including: (a) formulating, developing and
reviewing the corporate governance policies and practices of
the Company; (b) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of the Directors and senior
management; (c] reviewing and monitoring the policies and
practices for the compliance of legal and regulafory requirements
by the Company; (d) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual for employees
and the Directors; and (e] reviewing the compliance with the
CG Code by the Company and the disclosure in the corporate
governance report. The Board believes that an effective
corporate governance system can safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company and promote the value and
accountability of the Company.

The Company has adopted all the code provisions in the CG
Code which are applicable to the Company and the manner in
which the principles and code provisions in the CG Code were
applied during the year ended 31 December 2015 and up
to the date of this annual report is explained in this Corporate
Governance Report. The Company has complied with all the
code provisions under the CG Code during the year.

The Board will continue to review and improve the Company’s
corporate governance system fo ensure its compliance with the
CG Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Coniinued)

DEERRE D

BOARD

DUTIES AND DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board shall act in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and shall be accountable to the shareholders of the
Company. The Board shall be responsible for the implementation
of the resolutions approved at general meetings of the
shareholders; formulation of the Company's investment strategies
and business development plans, formulation of annual financial
budgets and final accounts, formulation of profit distribution
plans and loss recovery plans and the provision of strategic
advice and making recommendations on the operations and
management of the Company. The Company has established
three Board committees to oversee specific matters of the
Company, namely (i) the Audit Committee, [ii] the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee, and |iii) the Strategy Committee.
The Board has delegated the relevant duties to the respective
committees, which are contained in the terms of reference of
the relevant committees. The management of the Company
will provide sufficient information to the Board and the Board
committees when appropriate to facilitate the Directors in making
decision.

The Board is responsible for decision making on important
strategic matters of the Company. The senior management of
the Company is authorised to manage the daily operation of the
Company.

CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The Company does not have the position of chief executive
officer, the duties of which are performed by the general
manager. Mr. Wen Huiguo is the Chairman of the Board while
Mr. Zhuang Dan is the general manager of the Company. They
have clear division of duties. Mr. Wen Huiguo shall oversee
the works of the Board and monitor the implementation of the
resolutions approved by the Board while Mr. Zhuang Dan is
primarily responsible for strategic development and planning,
and day-to-day management of the Company. There is no
financial, business, family or other relationship between the
Directors, the Supervisors, the Chairman of the Board, the
general manager of the Company and the senior management
of the Company.
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COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises 12
Directors, including two executive Directors namely, Mr. Wen
Huiguo (the Chairman) and Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee (the
Vice-Chairman), six non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ma Jie,
Mr. Yao Jingming, Mr. Philippe Claude Vanhille, Mr. Yeung
Kwok Ki Anthony, Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng and Ms. Zheng Huili,
and four independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ngai
Wai Fung, Mr. Ip Sik On Simon, Mr. Li Ping and Mr. Li Zhuo.
With effect from @ June 2015, Mr. Yao Jingming replaced Mr.
Sun Jiming as a non-executive director of the Company after Mr.
Sun Jiming resigned from the position on 13 May 2015.

Particulars of the Directors are set out in the section “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and Senior Management's Profiles” in this annual
report.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Board has complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10 (1) and
3.10 (2) of the Hong Kong Listing Rules fo have nof less than
three independent non-executive Directors, including at least
an independent non-executive Director who has the relevant
professional qualification or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In accordance with Rule 3.10A of
the Hong Kong Listing Rules, at least one-third of the Directors
shall be independent non-executive directors. The Company
had four independent non-executive Directors during the year,
representing one-third of the total number of Directors and was in
compliance with the relevant requirement.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Directors (including non-executive Directors) are elected by
shareholders at o general meeting for a term of three years,
which is renewable upon re-election and re-appointment.

POSITIONS IN OTHER COMPANIES HELD BY
DIRECTORS

Other than those disclosed in the section headed “Directors’,
Supervisors’ and Senior Management's Profiles” in this annual
report, none of the Direcfors holds any directorship in other listed
companies.

TIME COMMITMENT OF DIRECTORS

In addition fo attending meetings of the Board, the Directors
shall also review reports of the management and regular reports
of the Company, inspect the operation of the Company and
understand all matters of the Company through various channels
so as to effectively perform their duties. After making particular
enquiries, the Board is of the view that the Directors had devoted
sufficient time and efforts to perform their duties.
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DEERRE D

TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the year, all existing Directors had participated in a
formal and comprehensive training program organised by the
compliance advisor with respect to the latest developments
on the Hong Kong Llisting Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations so as to refresh all Directors’ knowledge and
skills towards legal and regulatory requirements and to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. Training will be provided to the Directors
when necessary to ensure that the existing and any newly
appointed Directors understand the business and operation of the
Croup, and their duties and obligations under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.

INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS

The Company pays much attention to the prevention of risks in
relation fo the liabilities of the Directors. The Board has resolved
fo maintain liability insurance for all the Directors, which has
been in place since 10 December 2014. Directors’ liability

insurance policy has been renewed for another year from 24
November 2015.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals. Notice of at least 14 days should be
given of regular board meeting. According to the Arficles of
Association of the Company, in the event of any of the following
circumstances, the Chairman will convene extraordinary
meeting: (i) when it is proposed by two or more Directors; and |ii)
when it is proposed by the general manager of the Company.

All Directors are provided with all relevant information for matters
to be discussed at the Board meetings in a timely manner, and
they may seek independent professional advice and services
from the company secrefary and senior management of the
Company. Upon reasonable request to the Board, the Directors
may seek independent professional advice, as and when
necessary, aft the Company’s expenses.
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SRERRE

During the vear, the Board had held eleven meetings to discuss
the overall strategic related matters including new investments
and possible acquisitions as well as the operational and
financial performance of the Group. All these matters did not
constitute notifiable transactions or connected transactions of
the Company under Chapter 14 and Chapter 14A of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules except for (1) the acquisition of additional
60% equity interests in NK Wuhan from NK China, a connected
person which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Prysmian
Group, (2] the revision of annual caps for the continuing
connected transactions with the Prysmian Group and YOFC
Shanghai in respect of 2015 and 2016 and (3) the ESOP and
the Private Placement of which the latter two had been further
approved at the extraordinary general meetings held separately
during 2015.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of
each member of the Board during the year.
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Number of Number of Number of Number of
board meefings  board meetings  board meefings - general meetir:Jqs*
requiring attended in attended attendled
Name attendance person (Note) by proxy in person
ERHE HREILESE ZARRULE BELE
®E EEPN R (M) SERE  REAERZ
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Wen Huiguo XEBREE 11 11 0 3/3
Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee BeBELAE 11 11 0 2/3
Non-executive Direcfors FBTES
Mr. Ma Jie SAEE 11 11 0 0/3
Mr. Yao Jingming* PkFRR LA 7\ 7 0 0/2
M. Philippe Claude Vanhille FERE e BABLE 11 9 2 0/3
Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony HERELE 1 1 0 1/3
M:r. Xiong Xiangfeng REmB LA 11 11 0 0/3
Ms. Zheng Huili BEELL 11 11 0 3/3
Mr. Sun Jiming* IR AR S A 3@ 2 0 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. Ngai Wai Fung REBEE 11 11 0 0/3
Mr. Ip Sik On Simon EHThE 11 Q 0 0/3
Mr. Li Ping FEESE 11 ] ] 0/3
Mr. Li Zhuo Ty 11 11 0 3/3
Note: Attendance includes on-site attendance and attendance through Mir: HEOEAERABREFS SR (MEEeE)H
electronic means such as telephone conference. B o
# Mr. Yao Jingming was appointed as non-executive director of the # BIERAE SR - E—RER A+ =B REELD
Company with effect from @ June 2015 to replace Mr. Sun Jiming after FEHMITES HB R -ZE—RENAAB
Mr. Sun had resigned as non-executive director of the Company on 13 MkHRRE AR EFARATIENTESE - KRB
May 2015. RS -
* During the year, the Company had three general meetings. * ER - AATEFTTSAREAS o
(1) Since 9 June 2015. ) BE-ZT—hFANBRE-
(2) Upto 12 May 2015. (2) BEEZT-RAFHAA+=H-
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EERERE )

The Chairman also held meetings with the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without
the presence of executive Directors during the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has three committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and the Strategy
Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The major duties of the Audit Committee are to (1] make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of external auditors; (2] to review
and monitor the external auditors” independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with
applicable standards; (3) to develop and implement policy on
engaging external auditors to supply non-audit services; (4)
fo monitor integrity, accuracy and fairness of the Company’s
financial statements including annual reports and infterim
reports and if prepared for publication, quarterly reports; (5) to
review the Company's financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; (6] to review the Group's financial
and accounting policies and practices; and (7) to review
arrangements which employees of the Company can use, in
confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties in
financial reporting, internal control and other matters.

The Company has updated the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee reflecting the changes to the CG Code in respect of
the Company's risk management and internal control systems,
and which became effective on 1 January 2016. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee are posted on the websites of
the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ngai Wai Fung, Mr. Ip Sik On Simon and
Mr. Li Zhuo. Mr. Ngai Wai Fung acts as the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

Five audit committee meetings were held during the year at
which the proposals in relation to (a) 2014 annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2014, (b) three
quarterly voluntary disclosures of inside information on selected
financial information for the three months ended 31 March 2015
and for the nine months ended 30 September 2014 and 2015,
and (c] 2015 interim results announcement for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 were discussed and approved. The Audit
Committee also assessed the risk management and internal
confrol measures of the Company.

AEE  EFEMTEFNTER(BRBLIFN
TEF)ELENTEFHFEZBRTRITE

2
AR ©

EEZAT
EXER TREAETZES  RAEFMZ
BEelkBRLZEelEEEE -

FHERE

EFREENIBREEE  (10EE &
g/ BRSmRESSRMES (2
12 IR AR R B & BRSNS X B ) 8 3L
- FEENARBRBRNEARIE  ()HE
HE 51ES 122 R AD 12 €1 SR 2 A AR 75 6 7T S E MBI
B UERARAMBHRR(BEFR -+
HHERFTERE (HERAHTIE)) 2 -5
o EEERAFYE  (S)BAARRR ZHMH
B NEEEMAREEGE  (O)FHA
SEBBEREFABREESR  R(7)BHAARQ
ARBREANURE TIRLBEY B RE
NEEEREMEEZAIENETR IR -

ARAREEHNBAZESNRERE - UK
MR ERTRI T AREA R B E R EE MK
MERRRNEE)  AREHCN TN
F-A—BAEX - B ZBEEeZBESRE
RAR A R E BB S Fra8E E &R -

BEHRECHRBUFNTESTEN B
EREELE EHRAERFERE - R
BIEBTEETEAZEGER -

FRBOTRARBIZES SR SLEUBRE
HEBBATEECEZ BEZE_T—NF
A=+ —ALFEN_ZE—NFFEE
BENE bR E_E—RE=A=+—81
HF=EArEE—ZE—NFE_ZFT—AF N
A=Z+tRULEAEAMESHEEREMH =D
TEAENEEEREE  MJEBEE-Z—TA
FERAZTBHLEANEAAN T — RS HE
BRE - B ZEBE2NEHARAIRKBRER KX
N EPES IR I /E H AT o

102 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company =R 4 K &% (5 B R A



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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The table below sefs out the details of meetfing attendance of
each member of the Audit Committee during the year.

Name of Director

EEpE

Mr. Ngai Wai Fung (Chairman) HEBSTE(FE)
Mr. Ip Sik On Simon BHLts

Mr. Li Zhuo FEEL

Note: Attendance includes on-site attendance and attendance through
electronic means such as telephone conference.

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The Audit Committee has also reviewed with the management
and the Company’s auditors, KPMG, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
control and financial reporting matters including the audit of
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 as sef out in this annual report. The Audit
Committee is of the view that the audited consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and all the relevant and
required disclosures are adequate.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The major duties of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are fo (1) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skill, knowledge and experience] of the
Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy; (2) to identify suitable candidates and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment and
succession planning for Directors, general manager and
other senior management; (3] to assess the independence
of the independent non-executive directors; (4) to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company's policy
and structure for all Directors’ and Senior Management's
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (5) to
assess the performance of the Directors and Senior Management
and evaluate and assess their performance; (6] to consider and
decide the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and
Senior Management under authorisation of the Board; (7] to
supervise the implementation of the remuneration system of the
Company.
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The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model described in code provision B.1.2(c|(i) of the CG Code
in its ferms of reference, i.e. the Committee has the delegated
responsibility to determine the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management.

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board,
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee will consider
candidates on merit against objective criteria and with due
regards fo the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of two
independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Ngai Wai
Fung and, Mr. Ip Sik On Simon and one executive Director, Mr.
Frank Franciscus Dorjee. Mr. Ngai Wai Fung, an independent
non-executive Director, acts as the chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee.

Two meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
were held during the year to review the remuneration packages
of employees of the Company as well as the nomination
of a director to replace Mr. Sun Jiming and the change of
composition of the Strategy committee.

The table below sefs out the details of meetfing attendance of

each member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
during the year.

Name of Director

Ex=E8

Mr. Ngai Wai Fung (Chairman) BEELE(EE)
Mr. Ip Sik On Simon BHLts

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee B e EBSLLE

Note: Attendance includes on-site attendance and attendance through
electronic means such as telephone conference.

HFr BN &

EREFSHRBEREAR  RREFMEZE
ER2REBEESIERETEZTEN
BREBIREAER -

RAEFHZENBEDEIRARR R
EBH R PTAEL E B -

REEFMEZESHMBBUIIFNTESTR
BEEENEHRELE 2R TES
SEeRBELALEAR - RERFMEZES TR
RV IFRITEFRER R EET -

RER  RERFHEESCANMARH
NEMARAEE 2 HMAALREEHE
EERAERFENLEREEEEENRE
£ -

TERINERAEFHEZESSKERFAL
FEFENFE -

Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings
requiring attended in attended

attendance  person (Note) by proxy
ERHE HBEHEEER ZERAREE
BRRE IRB(HEE) BRRHY

2 2 0
2 1 0
2 2 0

M HEeRESREBEFAIA(MEFEH) L
o
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In accordance with code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code,
the remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015 can be
classified into the following ranges:

Band (Notes) Remuneration (RMB)
ARl FHM(ARYET)

1 0-500,000

2 500,001-1,000,000

3 1,000,001-1,500,000
4 1,500,001-2,000,000
5 2,000,001-2,500,000
6 2,500,001-3,000,000
7 3,000,001-3,500,000
8 3,500,001-4,000,000
Q 4,000,001-4,500,000
10 4,500,001-5,000,000
Notes:

Band 1 includes ten Directors, four Supervisors and one senior management member.
Band 2 includes one Direcior.

Band 3 includes one Director, one Supervisor and one senior management member.
Band 4 includes one senior management member.

Band 5 includes two senior management members.

Band 6 includes three senior management members.

Band 8 includes one Director.

Band 10 includes one senior management.

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors, the
Supervisors and the five highestpaid employees are disclosed
in notes @ and 10 fo the financial statements as required under
Appendix 16 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

RIEEFEATAZTARKE. 1.5 - RILH
E_P-AF+-A=S+—RILFEES -
EFRBRERARZFWAHBANTA
Al

Number of
persons

AB

............................................................... .

]

— ] WN— W — W

i

FIARBETAES NEEFR-BEMERAR -
BUARDIE—REF -

B OE—REF  —REFRABERERAL -
FARRIBE—AERERAS -
ESHEBRE-ABRERAS -
BOMBIBHE=RERERAR -

FEOMRIBE—REE -

B0 BE—BERERAR -
REFBLMAAMEICATREAHRE

= EERTERSFMEEZE -
HBEHENY BRI ZMEORIO -

Annual Report 3 2015 105



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Coniinued)

EERERE )

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy to enhance
its effectiveness. In designing the Board's composition, Board
from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge, length

diversity has

been considered

of services and time to be devoted as a director of the

for the Board to be effective. At the committee meetin
18 March 2016, the Nomination and Remuneration

ompany.
The Company will also take into account factors relating to its
own business model and specific needs from time to time. The
Board strives fo ensure that it has the appropriate balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of ifs business strategies and in order
held on
ommittee
has reviewed the composition of the Board in accordance with
the Hong Kong Listing Rules and concluded that the composition

B 4t

et o 1ep B8

38
50 o .
3 Bt

W

0 A sl

\

e

>}:

R D S T i

-y
(23

=

I8) S Y o1 4
D e B s o 18 4t

S
= B

W R - S

o

S N

TR

b EBRTARSTE
R R
Ko R-Z—AF=FT)
g% RERFHEEE
ERUEFRKEBRET
EEREEFE HEEE -
B RBEMBHE Ao
EMBR - AARE AR E

et 558 3>
pugel]

8 > it

—

5§ 0 18 i 18 I+

o
it ) 2 4§18 ot 5

>t

a0

3

=

BRE SIS ELE
C BIRETRRIER - F
FBELR il

ZIALER - LATRTTH
8 77
2

I Py
- O ) S B O HE

=t

I8) 18

of the Board is in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy IR TR
in terms of age, educational background, industry experience,

eographical location and duration of service. Members of the

oard as at the date of this report are set out in the following
table:

Geographical Duration of service

Name Age  Education Industry experience location (joined since)
s R ¥B TRER e MAZREE B
Executive Direcfors
HITES
Wen Huiguo [Chairman) 62 Master Telecommunication Wouhan, China October 2008
XeB(EE) il ikl PRI E —TTN\FTA
Frank Fanciscus Dorjee 55 Master Telecommunication, Netherlands January 2011

[Vice-Chairman) Bt Finance and accounting  f&# —T——%—R
B RE(BIEE) B MBREE
Non-executive Directors
FHITES
Ma Jie 45 Doctorate Telecommunication Beijing, China August 2011
SR Bt ikl Rl R —T—F\A
Yao Jingming 51 Doctorate Telecommunication Beijing, China June 2015
tkHHeR Bt B BN —T-RFRA
Philippe Claude Vanhille 51 Master Telecommunication Italy May 2013
FERE o BHRA - ikl BEAA —T-=F1A
Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony 70 University graduate  Accounting and audit Hong Kong, China January 1992
HEB : ERET mEEE —NWh=%—HA
Xiong Xiangfeng 51 Master Telecommunication Wuhan, China August 2013
FEIRIE il B PR E —T-=F)\A
Zheng Huili 56 Master Telecommunication Wouhan, China April 2006
gEE Bt ikl PRI E —ETRFAA
Independent non-executive Directors
BYFHTES
Ngai Wai Fung 54 Doctorate Finance and accounting Hong Kong, China September 2014
w2 e Mg R ast hEEE “T-MERA
Io Sik On Simon 67 Doctorate legal Hong Kong, China September 2014
£35S Bt R REEE “T-MENA
Li Ping 62 Master Telecommunication Beijing, China September 2014
=¥ Bt ikl R R “T-MEAA
li Zhuo 46 Doclorate Education Wuhan, China September 2014
Fe Bt ¥A REHE “T-MFEAA
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STRATEGY COMMITTEE

The major duties of the Strategy Committee are (1) to carry out
research and give advice on the plan of longferm development
strategies of the Company; (2) to carry out research and give
advice on the major investment and financing plans which shall
be submitted to the Board for approval in accordance with the
Articles of Association of the Company; (3] fo carry out research
and give advice on the major projects of capital operations and
asset management which shall be submitted to the Board for
approval in accordance with the Arficles of Association of the
Company; (4] to carry out research and give advice on the other
major matters that will impact the development of the Company;
(5) to examine the implementation of the above matters; and (6)
to perform other matters as authorised by the Board.

The terms of reference of the Strategy Committee are posted
on the websites of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

The Strategy Committee consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Ping and Mr. Li Zhuo and one
executive Director, Mr. Wen Huiguo. During the year, Mr. Li
Zhuo replaced Mr. Ngai Wai Fung as a member of the Strategy
Committee with effect from 27 March 2015. Mr. Wen Huiguo,
the Chairman of the Board, acts as chairman of the Strategy
Commitfee.

Four meetings of the Strategy Committee were held during the
year at which the feasibilities of some new investments, capacity
expansions and possible acquisitions and mergers were
discussed.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attfendance of
each member of the Strategy Committee during the year.

Name of Director

EENE

Mr. Wen Huiguo (Chairman) XE@EAE(FE)
Mr. Li Ping FPEE

Mr. Li Zhuo* RS

Mr. Ngai Wai Fung” BREIE S

Note: Attendance includes on-site attendance and attendance through
electronic means such as telephone conference.

# Mr. Li Zhuo, an independent non-executive director of the Company,
was appointed as a member of Strategy Committee to replace Mr. Ngai
Wai Fung with effect from 27 March 2015.

m Since 27 March 2015.

2) Up to 26 March 2015.

BRERE

BREZEENIZRIEE  (1|HARAER
HZEREBRBETHRLREEZSR (2%
ARRERREARZEFSHENEKRNEK
BRBMENRETHRLRBEEZ - (3)EA
NREABREAETARLEFTSMHENERER
BiE - BEEEEBETHRLRLES
(AHEMBZERNRRERNBEANFHET
MIRAIRHEZE  (S)H U EFHNEHETT
BE ROBTEFSREHEMER -

BRZEBSNBBERE I NARR REBH
RFrA8uL EER] -

BREZESAMABYIIRTEETFEE
RFEELE  R-R2RTEEXEELLMA
e RNERN BT —RF=A=+tAH
B BUFATEETERERRARESL
EEABREZESLE - EZTRXNEH
EEETERZESTE -

FRBTURBBEEZERSE  FLAWE
THRE  EfBERIEAURHFBEEEISSY

7 o

TRIHBRZEEENENFALFEEH
HIFIS e

Number of Number of Number of
meetings meetings meetings
requiring attended in attended

attendance  person (Note) by proxy
ERHE HBEHESE ZERRUE
SRR RB(HEE) BERHY

4 4 0
4 4 0
30 3 0
1 0 0
MEE ﬁ%@%ﬁ%&i@i@%?ﬁﬁ(KZD;?-E%@%) ]
% o
# B-Z-—AF=A-ttHIE  ARABIIH
TEEFIRERZTERBRERENRE - {7
MEIESTE -

(1) BE-E-AF=A-++tHKE-

(2) BEE-ZT—AF=A=1+X~B-
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DIRECTORS
APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Direcfors) shall be elected by the shareholders in
general meeting for a term of three years. Upon the expiration
of the current term of office, a Director is eligible for re-election
and re-appointment. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the
Board shall be elected and removed by more than one-half of
the Directors. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board
shall have a term of three years and shall be renewable upon re-
election. Each of the Direcfors has entered info a service contract
or lefter of appointment with the Company on 14 November
2014 except Igr Mr. Yao Jingming whose service confract with
the Company as the non-executive Director of the Company
was entered info on @ June 2015. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association of the Company, the term of office of the Directors
shall be 3 years. The principal particulars of these service
confracts are (a) for a term commencing from their respective
effective date of appointment until the day on which the next
general meeting of the shareholders for re-erecﬂon of Directors is
held, and (b) are subject to termination in accordance with their
respective terms.

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any member of the Company
which is not determinable by the relevant employer within
one year without payment of compensation [except statutory
compensation).

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the intention to nominate a candidate as a Director and the
written nofice of such candidate regarding his/her willingness
fo accept the nomination shall be given to the Company on or
after the date of notice of the relevant general meeting of the
Shareholders but not later than 7 days prior to the date selected
for holding that general meeting for approval of the nomination.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has four independent non-executive Directors and
as at the date of this annual report, none of them has served
as independent non-executive Director for more than six years.
The number and qualification of the independent non-executive
Directors are in compliance with the requirements of the Hong
Kong Llisting Rules to have at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board and the
Atticles of Association of the Company. Their independence is
further guaranteed as none of the independent non-executive
Directors has any business and financial relationship with the
Company or ifs subsidiaries and has no management function in
the Company.

BEE
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All of the four independent non-executive Direcfors have given his
written confirmation of their independence in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Hong
Kong Listing Rules. Having confirmed, the Board considers that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND THE RELATED EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the Company Securities Dealing
Regulations on Directors, Supervisors and Related Employees
(the "Company’s Code”) as its own code regarding securities
transactions by Directors and Supervisors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code.
Having made specific enquiries in writing of the Direcfors and
Supervisors of the Company, all Directors and Supervisors of
the Company have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the Company’s
Code regarding securities transactions throughout the year

ended 31 December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ COMPETING INTEREST

Defails of the Directors’ competing inferest have been disclosed
in the section headed “Report of the Board of Directors —
Directors’ Interest in Competing Business” on pages 80 and 81
of this annual report. To address any potential competing inferest
of the Directors, the Company has implemented the following
corporate governance measures to safeguard the interests of the
Company and the shareholders of the Company:

(a) each of the Directors is required to attend fraining sessions
fo strengthen his/her awareness of his/her fiduciary duties
as a Director which require, among others, that he/she acts
for the benefit and in the best inferests of the Company when
a potential conflict of interest arises;

(b) any conflicted Director must abstain from voting (and not
being counted in the quorum in relation) to any resolution
of the Board in respect of any contract, transaction or
arrangement in which such conflicted Director or any of his/
her close associates is materially interested;

(c) the independent non-executive Directors will review the
competing inferests held by any Directors who are involved
in business in competition with the Company, and such
Directors must provide all the information necessary for the
review to the independent non-executive Directors; and

(d) the decisions on matters reviewed by the independent non-
executive Directors will be disclosed in the annual reports of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 to give a true and fair view of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. According to code provision C.1.1
of the CG Code, the management shall provide necessary
explanation and information to the Board so that the Board can
have a preliminary assessment of the financial statements before
they are submitted to the Board for approval. The Company
has also provided monthly reports on the results, positions and
prospects of the Group fo all members of the Board.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is sef
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 122 to 123 of
this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS" MEETING

The Company is committed fo ensure that all shareholders of
the Company, are treated equally and are able to exercise all
their rights. General meeting of the Shareholders is the highest
authority of the Company and performs its dufies in accordance
with all applicable laws.

To safeguard the interests and rights of the shareholders,
all major matters of the Company shall be proposed as
separate resolutions at the general meeting for consideration in
accordance with the applicable laws and the Hong Kong Listing
Rules. The rights of the shareholders and vofing procedures of
the general meeting shall be contained in the relevant circular
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Hong Kong Listing Rules, which shall be despatched to
the Shareholders within a specified period of time and shall be
posted on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company.

During the year, one annual general meeting and two
extraordinary general meetings were held by the Company to
approve, among other things, financial statements, appointment
of new director and supervisors, revisions to the annual caps
of the continuing connected fransactions and the ESOP. The
Company's circular dated 24 April 2015, 19 June 2015 and
2 September 2015 were despatched to shareholders for review
before the relevant shareholders’ meetings were held.
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CONTROL SYSTEM

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

The Board of Supervisors is the supervisory authority of the
Company and shall be accountable to the general meetfing of
the shareholders. Supervisors shall act independently to protect
the legal interests of the Shareholders and the Company in
accordance with the laws.

The maijor functions and powers of the Board of Supervisors
are (1] to examine the financial affairs of the Company; (2)
to supervise the performance of Directors and other senior
management members, and monitor as to whether they had
acted in violation of any laws, administrative regulations,
Articles of Association of the Company or the resolutions of
general meetings in the performance of duties; (3] to request
Directors and senior management members to rectify actions
which are harmful to the Company's inferests; and (4] to exercise
other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the laws,
administrative regulations and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

The board of Supervisors consists of three members, including
two Supervisors elected by the shareholders [Mr. Liu Deming
and Ms. Li Chang'ai) and one Supervisor elected by employees
(Mr. Jiang Zhikang). Mr. Jiang Zhikang acts as chairman of the
board of Supervisors. Mr. Liu Deming and Ms. Li Chang'ai were
appointed by the shareholders at a general meeting held on @
June 2015 and they replaced Mr. Yao Jingming and Ms. Yu
Jiaxuan who resigned from their positions on 27 March 2015.
Mr. Yao Jingming and Ms. Yu Jiaxuan still continued their duties
as Supervisors until the date the appointment of Mr. Liu Deming
and Ms. Li Chang'ai as Supervisors was approved because the
number of Supervisors had fallen below the number provided by
the Articles of Association of the Company immediately after their
resignation.

Supervisors who are representatives of the Shareholders shall
be elected and removed by shareholders at general meeting.
Supervisors who are representatives of employees shall be
subject to democratic election by staff and the number of
employee representative Supervisors of the Company shall
not be less than one-third of the Supervisors. Each Supervisor
shall have a term of three years from the date of approval by
shareholders’ general meeting or employee conference. The term
of office of a Supervisor shall be renewable upon re-election and
re-appointment.

BB

EEe

EFSRAQANEEHRE  HERASE
B BRESREBUTEEER  RERR
RARBMEEZNBEIZRE

EFENIEREMENS  (1|FEARAF]
MBIRR  RQEBEEREMEREEEX
BERETRE  IURERERETRERESD
BEREAAZ  TEUAR - RARIERH
BERAGRE  QEREEREREEEK
BHAEABRARRMBENEATS - R4)1T
AR TBUARRARBERE THEAM
B BEENBE -

EEER=-AKEAN B  BRERD
THMEBAER(FERAEERFREL L)
FBIRKREE-—ROIERELEE) - IER
AERBEEFELIR - ZRAXRERTE
ELIR _ZT-AFANANARTHRRK
SRBRRERME RERER_FT—AF=FH
“tEHABENRAREERERE R L -
MHAREERERELTHRBEEEET &
ERRALERFTFREL LN EELE
AREBRERTR EFABKEERAK
NEERRREZAH

BRAREENEEHARRNGEEME
2 BMIRKESFEEBRIRIERESL
ARABIEEARABTEIRESE AR
M=nz— BEEFTIH=F EF2fF
HARRAEXBIRRASRABBZA
Fith - EEEHA RN BRECREER IR
B -

Annual Report 3 2015 111



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Coniinued)

DEEREE D

Particulars of the Supervisors are sef out in the section "Directors’,
Supervisors' and Senior Management's Profiles” of this annual
report.

During the year, two meetings were held by the board of
Supervisors. The work of the board of Supervisors is set out in the
Report of the Board of Supervisors in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board shall have the decision on all operation matters and
is committed fo establish and improve the internal control system.
It shall also supervise the implementation of the internal confrol
system to safeguard the investment of the shareholders and the
assets of the Group.

The Company has adopted a number of rules and regulations to
govem ifs daily operation and business since its establishment as
a joint veniure company so as to create a well-organised infernal
control and business environment for the development of the
Company's businesses. Some major measures are as follows:

- stringent authority delegation, approval procedures, division
and supervision system to ensure the security and proper use

of funds;

- collective decision and comprehensive assessment are
required for major investments and the proposal, evaluation,
decision and implementation procedures are under strict
control to minimise investment risks:

- sfrong segregation of duties within each department and
infra-department on all sales, procurement, contracting,
inspection and delivery, collection and payment
applications so as to prevent abuse of power;

- strict control on the size, structure and sources of funding
as well as the use of significant amount of fund fo minimise
finance costs and ensure the efficient use of funds; and

- highly regulated procedures for connected fransactions fo
specify the preliminary examination by independent non-
executive Directors before submitting for approval by the
Board.

EENREABEHINAFR [EF - &F
KM EEANBBE|—& -

RER EFSCRMASH  AHEFS
M TEBRASIRNAF R [EEEHRE | —

#f o

AR EREE
EZQUTUEERRE  YHNEIR
HENBEZER - UREBERMEERS
MEMR  WRERRREEAEEEE -

ARRBKRILIBEERTAR  ERANZ A
RAIMERNEERARZERER  EHES
ARBEBEREEHH A RO RIETE R
EBERR - TREEOT

- BEERE HRERF IBLEEH
B ERESERLEAE

- BRAZREEARERRNEERRELE
ERHEIEF - eI - FHE - RER R
HITHPORRRR 7 BUREIMR BRI

— JEMFERBMZEAABHEE KB -
B mBERYR  KNERXNERT
T 7> TRRHE - DA 505 AR AE

- MBRHEERE BELRELAEER
TERANES - AREESKA - R
EeWBRER &

- FHARTREXZHEM@IREF  AEE
FRTESTERERFRIEFERR
R IESEEZEAL ©

112 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company R4 &A% (5 B R A 7



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

SRERRE

During the year, the above procedures were effectively
implemented and the effectiveness of the infernal control system
of the Group was reviewed to ensure that a sound system s
maintained and operated by the management in compliance
with the agreed procedures and standards. The review was
made by giscussions with the management of the Company,
its external and internal auditors and the assessment conducted
by the Audit Committee. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and listing rules compliance.

The Audit Committee will continue to review and evaluate the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and
fo report the findings to the Board. The Board will review and
evaluate the imemo?comrd system af least once a year to ensure
that no material infernal control loophole exists.

On 19 December 2014, the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
published the Consultation Conclusions on Risk Management
and Internal Control: Review of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report. The Company as well
as the Board have formed an assessment and have decided
that the Audit Committee shall also take up the risk management
function. At the same time, the Company had set up its own in-
house internal audit and risk management department which
primarily carries out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's risk
management and infernal control systems, and report its ?i/ndings
to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. Up to the date of this
report, the internal audit and risk management department has
two personnels. During the year, the Company has engaged
KPMG Advisory (China) Limited as its independent advisor to
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the existing internal
control and risk management systems for the year ending 31
December 2016. Preliminary assessment has been carried out

by KPMG Advisory (Chinal Limited.

The Company has continuously monitored and evaluated its
business and taken measures to monitor ifs exposure fo risks
related to transactions with Sanctions Targets (as defined in
the Report of the Board of the Directors in this annual report).
To protect the interests of the Company and the shareholders
oncffo comply with the Company’s sanction undertakings to the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Company has implemented the
following internal control policies and procedures:

(a) the legal and marketing department of the Company
continuously monitors new sanctions law or any change to
the existing sanctions laws and seeks advice from external
legal counsel as necessary, to confirm that the Company's
business activities do not subject us to risks relating to
Sanctions Targets;
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(b) the senior management of the Company, including the
general manager, first deputy manager, deputy general
managers and chief financial officer reviews and approves
the Company's future business opportunities and defermines
whether such business involves any Sanctions Targets;

(c) the strategic center of the Company checks and ensures
that the relevant employees who are involved in overseas
businesses understand and comply with the infernal control
policies and procedures as fo economic sanctions and the
undertakings and regular training or update have been
provided to such employees;

(d) the legal and marketing department of the Company
prepares regular overseas sales status reports and other
information related to the overseas customers and economic
sanctions and Sanctions Targets for review by the Board;
and

(e) if the sales personnel believe that any potential transaction
would put the Company, the shareholders and investors,
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the Listing Committee of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and HKSCC Nominees Limited
fo risks of being subject to transactions with Sanctions
Targets, such fransaction will need to be submitted to the
Board for approval.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

KPMG and KPMG Huazhen LLP (collectively referred to as
"KPMG") were appointed by the Company as the international
auditors and the PRC auditors of the Company for 2015,
respectively. Their respective appointment shall expire upon the
conclusion of the 2015 annual general meeting. The Board is
authorised to defermine the remuneration of the auditors which is
in line with the market practice.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees paid or
payable to KPMG for annual audit services RMB3.10 million.
Besides, the fees paid or payable to KPMG in relation to non-
audit services were RMB1.52 million in relation to agreed upon
procedures work on inferim reports, internal control advisory, due
diligence work and certain other services.

Save as disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December
2015, the Group did not pay any fee to KPMG and KPMG

Huazhen for non-audit services.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Han Qingrong, secretary of the Board, is responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
ensuring that the Board's policies and procedures, and the
Qpp|ico%|e laws, rules and regulations are followed.

The Company has appointed Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk of Tricor
Services limited, external service provider, as the Company's
company secretary on 3 June 2014. For the purpose of code
provision F.1.1 of the CG Code, Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk keeps close
contact with Mr. Han Qingrong, being the person with sufficient
seniority at the Company.

Particulars of Mr. Han Qingrong are set out in the section
"Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Management's Profiles” in
this annual report.

Both Mr. Han Qingrong and Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk has confirmed
that each of them has received not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional fraining during the year ended 31 December 2015
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Shareholders of the Company may demand to convene,
chair, attend (in person or by proxy) the general meefing of the
Shareholders and exercise voting rights thereat.

Shareholder(s) individually or jointly holding 10% or more
of the Company's shares with voting rights may request in
writing fo hold an extraordinary general meeting or a class
shareholders’ meeting. The Board shall convene such meeting as
soon as practicable affer receipt of the demand. The following
procedures shall be followed when shareholders demand the
convening of an extraordinary general meeting or a class
shareholders’ meeting:

(1) Shareholder(s), individually or jointly, holding 10% or more
of the Company’s shares carrying votfing rights may sign
one or more written requests of the same form stating the
object of the meeting and demanding the Board to convene
an extraordinary general meeting or a class shareholders’
meeting. Upon receipt of the request, the Board shall
convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
shareholders’ meeting as soon as practicable. The number
of shares of the Company held by the abovementioned
shareholder(s) shall be calculated as at the date when the
Shareholder(s) put forward such written request.
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(2) In the event that the Board fails o issue a notice to convene
a meeting within 30 days from the date of receipt of such
request, the shareholder(s) shall be entitled to propose to the
Board of Supervisors in writing for the purpose of convening
an exfraordinary general meeting or a class shareholders’
meeting. The Board of Supervisors may convene such
meeting on its own within 4 months upon receipt of such
request by the Board:; if the Board of Supervisors does not
convene and chair such meeting, shareholder(s) individually
or jointly holding 10% or more of the Company’s shares
carrying the right to vote for more than consecutive 90 days
may convene such meeting on their own and in which case,
the procedures for convening such meeting should follow
those provided for convening a general meetfing by the
Board as closely as practicable.

If shareholders convene a meeting due to the failure by the Board
to duly convene the same upon receiving the abovementioned
written requests, all reasonable expenses so incurred shall be
borne by the Company, by deducting from such sums owed by
the Company fo the Director who is in breach of his duty.

To safeguard shareholder interest and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for shareholder to propose a person for
election as director is available on the Company's website
(www.yofc.com|. Shareholders may lodge written proposal
at the registered office of the Company, No. 9 Guanggu
Avenue, East Lake Hightech Development Zone, Wuhan, Hubei
Province, the PRC, for the atfention of the Company Secretary,
provided that the minimum length of period, during which such
writlen nofice is given, shall be at least seven days and that the
lodgement of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven days prior to the
date of such general meeting.
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In order to ensure that other shareholders would have sufficient
time to receive and consider the information of the nominated
candidate(s), shareholders are urged to submit their nominations
as early as practicable in advance of the relevant general
meeting and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as
defined in the Hong Kong listing Rules, i.e. day(s|] on which the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange is open for business of dealing in
securities) before the date scheduled for holding the relevant
general meeting, so that the Company can complete the
verification procedure with the Company'’s share registrar, and
procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to shareholders in compliance with
the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event
that any such nomination is received by the Company later than
the 12th business day before the dafe of holding the relevant
general meeting, the Company will need to consider whether to
adjourn the relevant meeting so as to give shareholders a notice
of at least 10 business days of the proposal in accordance with
the Hong Kong Listing Rules.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

According to the Arficles of Association of the Company,
shareholders of the Company shall have access to the Articles of
Association, the personal particulars of the Company's Directors,
Supervisors and senior management, minutes of general
meetings and published financial statements.

Request for information, materials or enquiries fo the Board shall
be forwarded to the Company's board secretary at the same
address as sef out in the section of Corporate Information under
the heading “Contact Information” of this annual report or sent fo
the mail box ir@yofc.com. A shareholder is required to provide
written proof of his/her holding of shares in the Company
(including the class and number of shares) for verification when
submitting the enquiry.

PROPOSAL AT THE GENERAL MEETING OF THE
SHAREHOLDERS

Shareholder(s) holding an aggregate of 3% or more of the
Company'’s shares with voting rights are entitled to propose ad
hoc motions in writing to the Company and the ad hoc motions
by the shareholders should be proposed 10 days prior to the
holding of the general meeting and be submitted or delivered in
writing to the Board. Contact details of the Board are sef out in
the paragraph headed “Enquiries to the Board” above.

Shareholders attending the general meeting are entitled to
speak. Shareholders who require to speak shall make registration
before voting.
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AMENDMENT OF CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The current Articles of Association of the Company were
adopted by the Company on 6 May 2014 at the 2013 general
meeting and became effective from the Listing Date, the gote on
which the H shares of the Company were ?isfed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. During the year and up to the date
of this report, no changes have been made to the Articles of
Association except for those amendments made on number of
shares issued as a result of the Private Placement. The Articles
of Association are available on the website of the Company
(www.yofc.com) and that of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH INVESTORS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONSHIP

Through non-deal roadshow presentations around the globe, its
investor relations mailbox and frequent update of information on
the Company’s website and other communication channels, the
Company maintains close relationship with investors worldwide
in a Timeg and efficient manner. Moreover, through corporate
visits and various other channels, the Company maintains
proactive and frank exchanges with investors and analysts.
The Company has attached great importance to listening
and accepting reasonable suggestions and opinions from
shareholders and investors. It strives to continuously enhance
its operating results, present a frue picture of the Company's
financial and operational status o shareholders and investors,
actively facilitate the internal communications in respect of the
feedback from the capital market, and continuously perfect
and enrich the system aiming to canvass information in relation
fo investor relations. The management over investor relations
involves an allfaceted interactive communication process.

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance and
strategies. The Company also recognises the importance
of timely and non-selective disclosure of information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the informed
investment decisions. In 2016, the Company will further step
up communications and exchanges with investors, in a bid fo
increase their understanding of the Company, whilst canvassing
the support and atfention from investors, so that they may provide
more valuable opinions. The Company will also put great efforts
on its investor relations management to bolster the Company's
position in domestic and overseas capital markets.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an
opportunity for shareholders to communicate directly with the
Directors. The Chairman of the Board, the general manager of
the Company, the chairman of each of the Board Committees
(or their respective duly appointed delegates) and the external
auditor of the Company, KPMG, would attend the annual
general meeting fo answer shareholders” questions.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopted a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing
a two-way relationship and communication between the
Company and its shareholders and maintains a website at
www.yofc.com, where upfo-date information on the Company’s
business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access. The Company also maintained
frequent contacts with shareholders and investors through various
channels such as meetings, conference calls, roadshows and
emails. For example, the Company has set up an investor
relationship mail box ir@yofc.com to collect constructive
feedbacks and advice through emails and answer enquiries
from shareholders and investors. In addition, the Company has
arranged on-site visits to the Group's projects and non-deal
roadshows for investors and research analysts.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company strictly complies with the legal and regulatory
disclosure requirement to allow local and overseas investors to
have prompt and full access to information of the operation and
development of the Company by organising various investor
relationship activities. In the future, the Company will maintain
regular communication with local and overseas investors through
telephone, mail and personal interview. The Company will also
voluntarily and promptly disclose information of the Company
on the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the
Company in accordance with the requirement of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. The Company will maintain its good corporate
governance reputation by enhancing the transparency of the
Company.

The Company has an investor relationship department to
strengthen and regulate the communication between the
Company and its investors and potential investors as well as
improve the understanding of the Company by the investors.

Corporate governance is a permanent strategic system of
the Company. The Company will further improve its risk
management and internal control in accordance with the
regulatory requirements of the jurisdiction in which its shares
are |isTeJond the chances in the capital market as well as
the expectation of investors. The Company will continue to
review and improve its corporate governance and enhance
the transparency of information disc?osure fo ensure the stable
and healthy development of the Company and the increase in
shareholders’ value.

2015 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting and exercise their rights to vote.
Notice of the annual general meeting will be despatched to the
Shareholders together with this annual report and posted on the
websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the Company .
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Dear Shareholders,

During the reporting period, all members of the Board of
Supervisors conscientiously performed their supervisory duties
and earmestly safeguarded the inferests of the shareholders and
the Company in accordance with the requirements of the relevant
laws and regulations such as the PRC Company law and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

During the reporting period, the information of the Board of
Supervisors Meetings is as below:

Meeting Date
EEER ERRE

.............................................................................................

4th meeting of the 1st Term of the Board of March 26th, 2015
Supervisors

F-EEFSENRSH

5th meeting of the 1st Term of the Board of November 19th, 2015

Supervisors

FEEFEFLREH

—E-HF=A_-1+/"H

—2—HFET—A+NA

AREHRN  EFSERHNERR(PEAR
HMERBPE) MR ERERMAE  BEF
By REBTEERE VEEERRE

AHEHAN EFSZARIBTRAT

Resolution Remark
BERE maF

................................................................

Resolutions on 4th meefing of the 1st No
Term of the Board of Supervisors
FEEFSENRGEARAZE i

Resolutions on 5th meeting of the 1st No
Term of the Board of Supervisors
F-EEFSFERARGHAZ i

During the reporting period, the other issues that the Board of
Supervisors has noticed are as below:

The Board of Supervisors is of the opinion that, all members
of the Board and senior management of the Company have
complied with the laws and regulations, and performed their
duties in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company in 2015. In addition, they have also safeguarded
the interests of the shareholders, earnestly carried out various
resolutions of the general meetings and the board meetings, and
operated strictly in accordance with the regulatory requirements
for a listed company. The Board of Supervisors was not aware
of any violation of relevant national laws and regulations and
the Articles of Association, or any acts which would violate the
interests of the Company.

The Board of Supervisors carefully reviewed the financial
statements of the Company for 2015 which were audited by
external auditors who have issued an unqualified opinion, and
is intended to be submitted by the Board to the general meeting,
and other relevant information. The Board of Supervisors is of the
opinion that the financial statements give an objective and true
view of the Company’s financial position and operating results.
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REPORT OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS (Coniinved)

EEglRE®

In 2016, to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and the —E-REF AEFeREERBEKR(PE
interests of the Company and emphasize the fulfillment of the ARKAFMBERRE)MARERNE AT -
promises made fo the shareholders, the Board of Supervisors N ERRERNARFNRREE - UEE
will continue fo perform its supervisory duties diligently over the NREEEHBRRIEAGERER & — 0
major decisions and key operating activities in accordance with BHBARRNEERLEEINEBERED
the PRC Company law and the Arficles of Association of the B REBITIFRE -

Company.

By order of the Board of Supervisors EEEEE

Jiang Zhi Kang STEER

Chairman of the Board of Supervisors EFeFE

Wuhan, China FERE

24 March 2016 —E-RF=ZAZ 1WA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AR E

icoliG

To the shareholders of
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set
out on pages 124 to 230, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2015,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards Board
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
defermine is necessary o enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
fo obtfain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BRARAEABBRHBRATAEZTRR
(R EA R FIB LM 8) B R 2 A7)

AR (ATERE[HMAD EFRTRE
1242 F 230 ERMRABIERNDBR QA
(TEARDEEMBAR (SR EEE]H
BHPBRER  HAHMBRREER_-F
—hE+ A=t HNEHEBKHRRKE
BEZHLEFENAHGEaRaR A2
SEPHRVNAHRASRER  URETBEGF
BRI E R E A R

EENAOMBHRRARENSE

BERAEZAAERBEAKGHEAEES
B (B FREEA) REB(ARME
) 2 WERERHEEM DA NG GRIER
K UHERBREEHUBHRRNBED
T 7 i 0 B RE 2K 8 AR T S B A B K8 AR PR
PR BHIREZEH AR

RBETREE

BPNEERBREBERMNEZEZETE Y
BHRERER - RAEABRBRRBRSE
BRUEASD - RPIOIBE TR AIEE ML A -
BB IR ARENAD - HEMEMAL
BEIFEBEREL -

B REEE SRS RMNCEBET
RN ETER - RFLERBRRAIETER
RE - WHBIRRITERE - LREAHMBER
KRBT FEEMERERRAERS BR

K
A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Coniinved
B M A% AR ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a frue and fair view in order fo design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s intemal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015 and of the Group's financial performance
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

24 March 2016

BEiP RAITIEF AR IA RS H SRR
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HEAHUBHRROBEII®mSA -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

PAN = AN b 2

SOt lam%

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE-T-RFT-A=+—BHEFEGAREIIR)

2015 2014
—2-H% —E-mf
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
I 5E AR®T T ARET T
Revenue A 4 6,731,114 5,676,782
Cost of sales $HE KA (5,426,904) (4,589,224)
Gross proFit EF 1,304,210 1,087,558
Other income E Uz 5 87,196 31,633
Selling expenses HEEM (162,994) (124,271)
Administrative expenses EEER (551,452) (441,173)
Profit from operations FEg=—F 1P| 676,960 553,747
Finance income BEUA 6 31,475 52,041
Finance costs RPN 6 (156,371) (99,244)
Net finance costs FRLE A (124,89¢6) (47,203)
Share of results of associates N E 268 (1,021)
Share of results of joint ventures E(EEERARIEE 79,690 29,215
Profit before taxation BR 4 A1 5 7 632,022 534,738
Income tax Fris#i 8 (73,788) (70,701)
Profit for the year R F 558,234 464,037
Other comprehensive income for the year KREHMERS W
(item that may be reclassified subsequently (IEHZTEEREN
to profit or loss): HE) :
Availableforsale securities Al H &S 51,065 22,648
Income tax relating to availablefor-sale securities B H & & A 1B FT SR E (7,660) (3,398)
Exchange differences on translation of HNESSRR
financial statements of overseas subsidiaries FrE =% 2,566 -
Other comprehensive income for the year REHMERES W 45,971 19,250
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEWREEE 604,205 483,287
Profit for the year attributable to: FEAL A< SRR
Equity shareholders of the Company RARERSREFEA 570,722 466,344
Non-controlling inferests FEFE PR RE S (12,488) (2,307)
Profit for the year AR5 558,234 464,037
Total comprehensive income for EhARFLREWSALE
the year attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company RAREREFEA 615,923 485,594
Non-controlling inferests FEFE PR RE S (11,718) (2,307)
Total comprehensive income for the year REZEWZEE 604,205 483,287
Earnings per share (RMB) BREMNARYETT)
Basic and diluted EAXRREE 11 0.89 0.95
The notes on pages 131 to 230 form part of these financial F131E2HE 230 BN LB A B HRK A —
statements. Defails of dividends payable fo equity shareholders of Mo o RRBMAFINBRMERITE AR
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in MEFISESI R M EES2(b) ©
Note 32(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SO BRI R

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

R=Z—AF+=A=+—HUAARKIIT)

2015 2014
—E2-HF —E—IUF
Note RMB’000 RMB'O00
{hE=a ARET T NS
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - MEREE 13 982,027 782,530
Construction in progress EEIRE 14 88,743 93,888
Intangible assets EEEE 15 146,300 151,019
Lease prepayments HEFENFE 16 166,225 117,788
Interest in associates B &N B RE RS 18 10,747 28,712
Interest in joint ventures NE B ARl 19 720,312 655,003
Other non-current assets Hi3ERe&E 20 429,670 124,310
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 29(b) 10,442 25,964
Total non-current assets ERBEEHTE 2,554,466 1,979,214
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =8 21 678,062 697,461
Trade and bills receivables FERBE T R 4 22 2,119,178 1,745,118
Deposits, prepayments and Ze - BRRER
other receivables H b pE U 3508 23 177,117 152,530
Other financial assets Hib e EE 24 6,861 5,840
Cash and cash equivalents HERBSZEY 25 2,047,125 2,010,953
Total current assets REEEHRE 5,028,343 4,611,902
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans RITER 26 1,636,609 1,465,229
Trade and bills payables PR BR TR & 24K 27 852,334 699,903
Accrued expenses and other payables TaiR B A & H M e IR 28 468,047 411,956
Income tax payable e FTIS L 29(a) 19,877 7,179
Total current liabilities HREEEHAE 2,976,867 2,584,267
Net current assets BREBEE 2,051,476 2,027,635
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERE 4,605,942 4,000,849
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans IRITER 26 820,820 1,018,878
Deferred income ELEWES 30 53,447 76,480
Total non-current liabilities R EERAE 874,267 1,095,358
Net assets FBEE 3,731,675 2,911,491
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continved
& OF I RS AR R 3R ()

At 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
RZE—AFTZA=1T—HAARK?ITR)

2015 2014
—E-AHF —EF-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=2 AR®T T ARET T
Capital and reserves AR A#

Share capital A% 2R 32 682,115 639,463
Reserves e 2,892,744 2,174,335

Total equity attributable to equity AAREREE AEML
shareholders of the Company A 3,574,859 2,813,798
Non-controlling interests JEIE R R 156,816 Q7,693
Total equity e 3,731,675 2,911,491

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on BN T R"E=ZA-THBERMAELF

24 March 2016. AIEEH o
Wen Huiguo Zheng Huili
XEH EEEE
Director Director
- e

o

EUd?

The notes on pages 131 to 230 form part of these financial 131 EF 230 MM E B A B B MKy —
statements. B e

of
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BOHEREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BE_Z-RAFT_H=+—ALFERARKIIT)

Afributable fo equity shareholders of the Company
ESNG S N LT )

Statutory Non-
Share  Capitol supls ~ Fairvalue  Refained confrolling Totol
capital reserve reserve feseve  eamings Totol inferests equity
RAfEE FiEh

RE  AADE  EEERS wE  REET e B ERER
RVMBIOO0  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO  RMB000  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETRT ARETT ARETR
[Note 32(c]]  [Note 32(d)}  [Note 32(d]]  [Note 32(d)]

(HE32le))  (RaEs2d) (RHsEsld)  (ME321d)

.............................................................................................................................................................

At 1 January 2014 R=E-MmE-A-A 479,593 608,922 = 6,09 415041 1,509,652 - 1,509,652
Tofal comprehensive income FRUzEs
Profi for the year AREF| - - - - 466,344 466,344 2,307) 464,037
Other comprehensive income 2 Al - - - 19,250 - 19,250 - 19,250
Total comprehensive income Ealies - - - 19250 466,344 485,594 (2,307) 483,287
Transactions with equity shareholders AR REREHAN

of the Company 2%
Contribution and distribufions: HERAE -
Issue of new shares, net of issuing BOHR(NGETER)

expenses [Note 32(c]i (KE32(0i) 159,870 732,539 - - - 892,409 - 892,409
Appropriction B - - 91467 - [91.467) - - -
Dividends declared =V - - - - 73857 173857 - 1738y
Capital confribufion from FBRERREA

noncontrolling equity owners i - - = = = - 100,000 100,000
Total fransactions with equity BRRAEEREAN

shareholders of the Company R 585 159,870 732,539 91,467 - [165,324) 818,552 100,000 918,552
At 31 December 2014 RIE-MEFZB=+-0 639463 1341461 91,467 25,346 716,061 2,813,798 97,693 2911491
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Share
caopifl

e
RMB'000
ARETT
(Note 321c])
(MEE32()

682,115

Copitel
feserve

B3R
RMB'000

AREBTR
(Note 32(d])

(H32d)

157,524
3

208,637

208,637

1,550,098

Atributabl fo equity shareholders of the Company

KATRESEARL

Statutory
surplus
feserve

e
RMB'000
ARBTR
Note 32(d)|
(W32d)

168,547

Exchange
fesenve

EifG
RMB'000
ARBTT
(Note 32(d)|
(K321

Fair value
reserve
MEE
i
RMB'000
ARETT
Note 32(d)|
(HEE320d)

Refoined
eamnings

REER
RMB'000

ARRTR

570722

50722

(77,080)
(106,151)

(183,231

(183.231)

1,103,552

70722
45,001

615,923

189,912
61777

(10151)

145,138

145,138

3574859

Non-
controling
interests
¥k
&
RMB'000

ARRTR

(12,488)
770

(11.718)

54,183
54,183

16,658

70,841

156,816

558,234
459N

604,205

189,512
61,777

(10151)

94183
199,321

16,698

15979
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ORI RER

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_Z-RAFT-_A=+—HALFEURARKIT)

2015 2014
—E-RE —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Fit s ARBTR ARB T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHNRER
Profit before taxation CS RN 632,022 534,738
Adjustments for: AEIRE
Depreciation e 116,032 113,648
Amortisation 3] 8,452 328
Finance income BMEWA (31,475) (31,650
Finance costs BB A 145,299 .
Dividend income from availablefor-sale A H EEF R E R
equity securities WA (156) (3,655
Share of results of associates iy h/NEIE (268) 1,021
Share of resulfs of joint ventures AR NCTE S (79,690) (29,215)
Unrealised profits on downstream HAELRNABERR ZH
fransactions with joint ventures AELFIE 3,529 (25,307)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEDE - BERRENE
plant and equipment 1BFH 2,189 3,422
Net gain on disposal of available-for-sale & Al S B AF A e
securities R (4,915) -
Gain on the remeasurement fo B ERAIGENER
fair value of pre-existing inferest DR BEMKES 171ii) (425) -
Gain on bargain purchase E e 17(ii) (29,974) -
Changes in working capital: LEBCNEE
Decrease in inventories FERD 34,583 23,842
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUIR R« o FEUEIA &
and other financial assets H &5 &E EL N (384,186) (236,044)
Increase/|decrease] in trade and other JE A~ BR R I LAt R S 3R IB
payables and non-current liabilities EREBE BN CHD) 193,740 (184,022)
Cash generated from operations RETHELNRE 604,757 258,352
Income tax paid ENAEHR (53,937) (58,175
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELENESFE 550,820 200,177

Annual Report 3 2015 129



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Coniinced

EHERERER®

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

BE_Z-—RAF T -_A=+—HLEFERARETIR)

2015 2014
—B-IF —E-EE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BiEE ARMET T ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELNRER
Payment for property, plant and equipment BAYE  EEMEE
Y RIE (281,551) (180,463)
Payment for intangible assets BABRNVEEXNTIE - (83,519)
Deposit paid for infangible assets BEBVEERME (23,200) -
Payment for lease prepayments X NHEENRIE (37,570) (84,278)
Payment for investment in a joint venture KREEERAIMNKIE (12,323) -
Payment for available-for-sale debt securities BARHEEREES
Y RIE (93,070) (397,200)
Payment for availablefor-sale equity securities BARTHBEZEFEE
X0 (210) -
Bank deposits placed EFMARITER (205,000 -
loans to a joint venture RTEERAIER (20,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BE REE
plant and equipment PSR 25 -
Proceeds from matured available-for-sale & S B n] 1 E B E 5
debt securities S a0R 93,910 391,360
Proceeds from disposal of available-forsale HEAHEERSRE
equity securities G 12,780 -
Nef cash inflow from acquisition of WE—KHEAREEN
a subsidiary BEFRA 171ii) 14,217 -
Inferest received B HFILR 25,541 9,299
Dividends received from associates REVEA-YNSEll - 2,400
Dividends received from joint ventures B & A B RA 18,462 22,041
Dividends received from availableforsale BRAIHHEZFIRE
equity securities A 156 3,655
Net cash used in investing activities REZHMANERS (507,833) (316,705)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHNRER
Proceeds from new bank loans FrR1TE KPS RIE 4,728,089 3,161,823
Repayments of bank loans EERITER (4,861,632) (2,276,281)
Proceeds from issue of new shares, BTG RIA
net of issuing expenses (MR ETER) 32(c) 251,289 892,409
Payment for listing expenses X EmER (16,784) -
Contribution from non-controlling equity owners MR IER R AT E 54,183 100,000
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ENADRERFAA
of the Company FCA (106,151) (573,857)
Interest and other finance costs paid BERFIEMEMEREER (82,173) (81,789)
Net cash (used in)/generated from METEE(ER), EE
financing activities HERE (33,179) 1,222,305
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BeRBSEEYN
RN 9,808 1,105,777
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A-BHNRER
REZEY 2,010,953 906,378
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HIEERBBNTE 26,364 (1,202)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December RTt=ZA=t—-H®HEE
BESZEY 25 2,047,125 2,010,953
The notes on pages 131 to 230 form part of these financial FI13NEF20ENMEBAMBHRERH —
statements. ;o e
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND
ORGANISATION

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited
Company (the “Company”] was formerly known as
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Company lid. and was
established in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”)
on 31 May 1988 as a sinoforeign equity joint venture.
The Company was converted to a joint stock limited
liability company in the PRC on 27 December 2013 (the
"Conversion”) and was renamed as Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company. The Company
converted its equity info 479,592,598 ordinary shares with
a par value of RMB1.00 each on 27 December 2013.

The Company issued 159,870,000 H shares with par
value of RMB1.00 each at a price of HKD7.39 per share
by way of a global initial public offering of the Company's
H shares to Hong Kong and overseas investors. The
Company's shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10
December 2014.

The Company completed the private placement of
30,783,000 domestic shares and 11,869,000 H shares
on 18 December 2015. Please refer to Note 31 for further
details.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the research, development,
production and sale of preforms, optical fibres, optical fibre
cables and related products.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards ("IASs”) and Interpretations
promulgated by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ERAR MY EE

RAEENEBES
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—ttHAXHAEERBEARGHERE
FERAR([H ) » WERZERRICHK
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#1007z °
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[ EE N BIMEERERT 39BTZ
B3 17159,870,000k B IR EE A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(a)

(b)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 2(c) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries and the Group's interest in
associates and joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that securities held for trading and financial instruments
classified as availablefor-sale (see Note 2(g)) are
stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with [FRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Nofe 3.

2 FESHBEw@

(a)

(b)

SREH)
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¥ AT MRS AT 9 (B BR B 75 3R o5 2
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Y6 FE R B L3 7] AR IS AT O 2 R
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Rk - BRAEREIINMEE2(c) -
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FENEHMBHRRBELRRFM
B ARARKEEMTA LB

BATHA D AR -

MERRABEXAERREE
£ EENMTEARRTBEENR
FUERBFMOEAATHEESRT
H(RME29) A AR BEZIK
BN o
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WAMS H R REBRBERTEDN
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HEABRZERBEAEERMERE
AEERBEARSAENZIAEM
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EEAKBEMECHNREMEE
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o BRERAIBEA B R EF &
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AR : RIS R 2RI AR R
RBBZE  AEFELETNERE
FIAR R FERR ©

EEEEEANR(EENERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

()

(d)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group:

* Amendments to IAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefit plans: Employee contfributions

®  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle

®  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior periods have been prepared
or presented. The Group has not applied any new
standard or inferprefation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

Subsidiaries are entities confrolled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability fo affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
fransactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from infra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg-ﬁ_ﬁ%F

(d) SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING (d) BMELTFMIEREES (&)

INTERESTS (Continved)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-confrolling interests either at fair value
or at the non-confrolling inferests’ proportionate share of
the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling
interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with Notes 2(n) or (o) depending on the
nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity fransactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of confrolling and non-controlling inferests
within consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
[see Note 2(g)] or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture (see Note 2(e)).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

(d) SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING

(e)

INTERESTS (Continved)

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(k)), unless the investment
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).

ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control
or joint control, over its management, including
participation in the financial and operating policy
decisions.

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or the Company and other parties contractually agree
to share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for in the consolidated financial statements
under the equity method, unless it is classified as
held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale]. Under the equity method,
the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted
for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee's identifiable nef assets
over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in
the Group's share of the investee's net assefs and any
impairment loss relating fo the investment (see Notes
2(f) and (k). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the
Group's share of the postacquisition, postfax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the year are
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition
post-fax items of the investees’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg-ﬁ_ﬁ%F

(e) ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES (Confinved)

(e) BIEATRAEAR ()

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate or the joint venture, the Group's inferest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose,
the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the
Croup's longferm inferests that in substance form part
of the Group's net investment in the associate or the
joint venture.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the investee, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, retained inferest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have
significant influence over an associate or joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire inferest in that investee, with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest refained in that former investee at the date when
significant influence or joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see

Note 2(g]).

In the Company's statement of financial position,
investments in associates and joint venture are stated
at cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k]), unless
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal
group that is classified as held for sale).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

(f)

(9)

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assefs and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When [ii) is greater than [(i], then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is
allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of
cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination and is tested annually
for impairment (see Note 2(k)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

OTHER INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY
SECURITIES

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and that
fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability or based on a
valuation technique that uses only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs,
except where indicated otherwise below. These
investments are subsequently accounted for as follows,
depending on their classification:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 Iggﬁfﬁ%m

(g) OTHER INVESTMENTS IN DEBT AND EQUITY (g) RtfRHFMEREBHRE ()

SECURITIES (Continued)

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assefs. Any affributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of
each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
eamed on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in Notes 2(tiii)
and (iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and infention to hold
fo maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses.

Investments in securities which do not fall info any of
the above categories are classified as availablefor-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain
or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
fair value reserve. As an exception to this, investments
in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in
an active market for an identical instrument and whose
fair value cannot otherwise be reliably measured are
recognised in the statement of financial position at
cost less impairment losses (see Note 2(k)). Dividend
income from equity securities and inferest income from
debt securities calculated using the effective inferest
method are recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policies set out in Notes 2(t)(iii) and (iv).
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of debt securities are
also recognised in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognised or impaired
(see Note 2(k)), the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments
are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group
commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Eggaﬁ_ﬁ%(*ﬁ}

(h) PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (h) 3% - BE 5 i

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see

Note 2(k)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing
costs (see Note 2(v)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
defermined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight line method
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 20 years
-~ Machinery and equipment 8-16 years
- Office equipment 4-8 years
- Motor vehicles 5-8 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

(i)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN
GOODWILL)

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as
an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
infenfion to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs, where applicable. Capitalised
development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see Note 2(k]).
Other development expenditure is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses
(see Note 2(k)). Expenditure on internally generated
goodwill and brands is recognised as an expense in
the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assefs with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straightline basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following infangible
asset with finite useful life is amortised from the date it
is available for use and its useful life is as follows:

—  Patents 8 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an infangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to defermine whether events and
circumstances continue fo support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change
in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for prospectively from the date of change
and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as sef out above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
g S BN IE))

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg-ﬁ_ﬁ%ﬁ

(i) LEASED ASSETS (i) AERE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or confains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

IMRAKEL AR - B8R
RHBX—RINRS  ERE K
BEHRERE R LBTEEE
MEMRE AR —FHZEN

fime in refurn for a payment or a series of payments. F o REERHERSSHE - BE
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation REASE AL ELMIERT 4

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent renfals are charged fo profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straightline basis over the
period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

(i)
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Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified
as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
Obijective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— @ significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below ifs cost.

I any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
defermined and recognised as follows:

—  For investments in associates and joint
ventures accounted for under the equity
method in the consolidated financial
statements (see Note 2(e)), the impairment
loss is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its
carrying amount in accordance with Note
2(k)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with Note 2(k|(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg%ﬂ_ﬁ%f?ﬁ?

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Coninued) (k) BERBE®)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity (i) EEEEZIFRENELE

securities and other receivables (Continued) W R BRI ()

For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial asset and the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset where the
effect of discounting is material. Impairment
losses for equity securities carried at cost are
not reversed.

For frade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate [i.e.
the effective inferest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such
as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assefs
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in o subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an
impairment loss shall not result in the asset's
carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg-ﬁ_ﬁ%F

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued) (k) BEBRE)
(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity () EREEZISFRENHME

securities and other receivables (Continued)

—  For availablefor-sale securities, the cumulative
loss that has been recognised in the fair
value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.
The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit or
loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumsfances are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of trade
debtors and bills receivable, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed af the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assefs may
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

- properly, plant and equipment;
—  construction in progress;

— intangible assets;

- lease prepayments;

- goodwill; and

—  investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures in the Company's statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assefs that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Cadlculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
fo their present value using a pretax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific o the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (Confinued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), or value in use |if
determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not
reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset's carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

(k) IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (Confinued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Llisting Rules, the Group is required fo
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year

(see Notes 2(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period
in respect of goodwill, availablefor-sale equity
securities and unquoted equity securities carried
at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period.
This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss,
would have been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the financial year
to which the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-forsale equity
security increases in the remainder of the annual
period, or in any other period subsequently, the
increase is recognised in other comprehensive
income and not profit or loss.

() INVENTORIES
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(

INVENTORIES (Confinued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

(m) TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective inferest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(k(i]), except
where the receivables are interestfree loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

Interestbearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable fransaction costs. Subsequent
fo initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings, together with any interest and fees
payable, using the effective interest method.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with Note 2(s)(i), trade and
other payable are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.

2 FESHBEw@

(

FE®

HEFER  EERmSBEMRRBAY
ANEBROBERNERASEH - 17
EHEMRETEZRFENTEN
FrEEEHEE LR REXEERN
HRAER AL - TENERE
B2 o] 2 1£ 82 [O] /Y HA 8 9 AR 51 1
T HMFERE -

() B LT R 39k % L fth PR AT %

(n)

(o)

(p)

& M5 B R AN B At FE M R IR X e (BB
MIRTER - HERUBEREN TR RE
HEARAREREFREERF (25
AE2(k)(iI)) RATS B AR : BE
YRR A B A T B B 7 30 TR Bl E R
RPN R EERSLENRTEL T
ERRIBRSN - HULIER T - B
SRR ERFBEEFBEAF
YN

BRI
TEBRIRZAAEBERERERS
PRANR NG TERR © WIIATERR IR © 7%
BREFRIABFER AT - ¥4
RNBFEREEREE MO ERE
£ BREFMENFEMER 15
UNEBRHNBZRERBRERET
HERR o

FE £ R 3% 0 3 fth FE £ 3%
ENRFIMEMENRIZRAEBE
VIR TER o BRIRPIEE2(s)(I) St E AL
BHER - BNRKME M RER
HHERAANE - SN RTETE
KRR AN AR

BeRieFERY
BehkReEEBYRERITERM
BE  FRRRITHNEMDSBEE
EEHIER - UREHNSRE T
IRE - EURETUBRHBER
ERMNEAEESE  EEEFHTEHE
RAK  YEBARS=1EAAZ
H o

148 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company F ¢ 4t 8 A 15 A FR A 7]



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
g S BN IE))

(q) EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or sefflement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

Share-based payments

The grantdate fair value of equity-settled share-
based payment arrangements granted to
employees is generally recognised as an expense,
with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the vesting period of the awards. The amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the number of awards for which the related
service and non-market performance conditions
are expected to be met, such that the amount
ultimately recognised is based on the number of
awards that meet the related service and non-
market performance conditions at the vesting
date. For share-based payment awards with
non-vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value
of the share-based payment is measured fo
reflect such conditions and there is no frue-up for
the differences between expected and actual
oufcomes.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
fermination benefits.

2 FESTBRw

(q) BEREF

(i)

(ii)

(i)

EHESRAMERMATEAK
=T EIR K

e FREES  AHFFR
TE R FGRRGT B My R A IR
B EM AT B B e AR R
RIBEOFR AR - MRTE
NRAEEGERERNT
- RAlEeZBEeARET
HE o

LR RERB M
RTREUERGEENURN
REROIN LT - RERDH
EEASBHRAURTENAR
EBEBASXH @ BRI EH
FEIE N - ERERBX LMK
SELAE  URMEBEHES
AE 88 BR 7% N0 2E T 355 48 UG A Y
REHE - XEREIRFH
BFERIZ R B B A HEREIRE
FIETH 35 48 R 1 O SR B B B
FHE o BLAT R T BE5R B 5 Y
B XA REN M E - B8
AEURODINORTFEAAR
BERRRAEBES - X EH
BRETAEBHIRERGERZ
IRV ZERE

BHRER
HRBRNEEAKRETHBERN
TR [E] AT HR O B AR AR ) S FERR
W K BRAR M R A AR
(AP E B FHER

Annual Report 3 2015 149



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg%ﬂ_ﬁ% &

(r) INCOME TAX (r) FRBR

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except o the extent that
they relate fo items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of fax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment fo tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from cerfain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods info which a tax loss arising from the deferred
fax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when defermining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be ufilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
g S BN IE))

2 SlGNlFlCANT ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) 2 E\Egg-ﬁ_ﬁ%ﬁ

(r) INCOME TAX (Continued) (r) FRE®

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assefs or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they
are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
seftlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
fo the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, it the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current fax assets against current fax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group infends either to setile on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and setfle the
liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(I‘) INCOME TAX (Confinued)

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
it they relate o income faxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and seftle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(s) FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED,
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(i)

152 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company RRY 4 K &% (5 B R A

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments fo reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
The fair value of financial guarantees issued at the
time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm'’s length transaction for similar
services, when such information is obtainable,
or is otherwise esfimated by reference fo interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of
the guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

(s) FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED,
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continved)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised in accordance with Note 2(s)liii) if
and when |i] it becomes probable that the holder
of the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and |ii) the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected fo exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in
respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities assumed in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination which are present obligations at the
date of acquisition are initially recognised at fair
value, provided the fair value can be reliably
measured. After their initial recognition at fair
value, such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation where appropriate,
and the amount that would be determined in
accordance with Note 2(s)(iii). Contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination that
cannot be reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the dafe of acquisition are disclosed
in accordance with Note 2(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to seftle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected fo settle
the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(s) FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED,
PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(t) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises or collected by the
customer which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue excludes value added tax and other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any frade
discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
use of the leased asset. lease incentives granted
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

(1‘) REVENUE RECOGNITION (Confinued)
(iii) Dividends

dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment is esfablished.

— dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

(iv) Interest income

(v)

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statfement
of financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them. Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic basis
in the same periods in which the expenses are
incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are recognised initially as
deferred income and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis
over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

(u) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES
Foreign currency transactions during the year are
franslated at the foreign exchange rates ruling af the
fransaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
franslated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
fransaction dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(u) TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES

(v)

(Continued)

The results of foreign operations which have a
functional currency other than RMB are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling af the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rafes at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the assef for ifs infended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to
prepare the qualifying asset for ifs intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

(w) DERECOGNITION OF NON-DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contfractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or it fransfers the rights to receive the contractual
cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not refain control over the transferred asset.
Any interest in such derecognised financial assefs that
is created or refained by the Group is recognised as a
separate asset or liability.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or
expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

(w) DERECOGNITION OF NON-DERIVATIVE

FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (Continved)
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Group has a legally
enforceable right to offset the amounts and intends
either to seftle them on a net basis or to redlise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

(x) RELATED PARTIES
A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(a)
(b)

(c)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third

entity.

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(X) RELATED PARTIES (Continued)

(y)

[i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies: (Continued)

() The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in {i.

(g) A person identified in (i){a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(h) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or fo the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
SEGMENT REPORTING

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
g S BN IE))

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES 3 EstHEMEE

(a) JUDGEMENTS (a) P

In preparing these financial statements, management
has made accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s accounting policies. Information about
judgements made in applying the accounting policies
that have the most significant effects on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is disclosed in the
following notes:

* lease classification (Note 2(j) and Note 35)

e Derecognition of non-derivative financial assets
and financial liabilities (Note 2(w) and Note 33)

(b) ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION

UNCERTAINTIES

Note 34 contains information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value measurements
in the acquisition of subsidiary, share-based payment
arrangements and financial instruments. Other key
sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts

(b)
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(i) RERBEESE

The Group estimates impairment losses for bad AEBBRERER REMERA
and doubtful debts resulting from the inability of the EORIZARE [ SR B R A R IR
customers and other debtors to make the required R EBIEETHE - AEE

payments. The Group bases the estimates on the
aging of the receivable balance, debtors’ credit-
worthiness, and historical write-off experience.
If the financial condition of the customers and
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs
would be higher than estimated.

(ii) Provision for diminution in value of inventories
When making estimates of net realisable value
of inventories, the Group takes into consideration
the use of inventories held on hand and other
information available to form the underlying
assumptions, including the inventories’ market
prices and the Group's historical operating costs.
The actual selling price, the costs of completion
and the costs necessary to make the sale and
relevant taxes may vary based on the changes
in market conditions and product saleability,
manufacturing technology and the actual use
of the inventories, resulting in the changes in
provision for diminution in value of inventories.
The net profit or loss may then be affected in the
period when the provision for diminufion in value
of inventories is adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(b) ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
(iii) Impairment losses of non-current assets

(iv)

160 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company R4 &A% (5 B R A 7

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain of the Group's assefs which
include property, plant and equipment, intangible
assefs, lease prepayments, investments in joint
ventures and associates and unquoted equity
investments, recoverable amount of the asset
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and
the value in use. It is difficult to precisely estimate
selling price because quoted market prices for
these assets may not be readily available. In
determining the value in use, expected cash
flows generated by the asset are discounted to
their present value, which requires significant
judgement relating to items such as level of sale
volume, selling price and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available
information in determining an amount that is
reasonable approximation of recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items
such as sales volume, selling price and amount of
operating cosfs.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, after taking info account the
estimated residual value. The Group reviews the
estimated useful lives of the assets regularly. The
useful lives are based on the Group's historical
experience with similar assets and taking info
account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(Continued)

(b) ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTIES (Continued)
(v) Income tax

The Company files income tax with local tax
authority. Judgement is required in determining
the provision for taxation in respect of certain
caleulations (such as the additional qualified tax
deduction relating to research and development
costs) for which the ultimate tax determination is
only certain when approval from the local tax
authority is obtained. For the 15% preferential tax
rate available for an approved hightech enterprise
([see Note 8], in determining the applicable tax
rate for calculation of current income tax and
deferred income tax, after receiving the subsfantive
approvals, the Company uses the expected tax
rate that would probably be approved by the tax
authority according to the tax rules and regulations
enacted at the reporting period end date. If the
final tax outcome were different from the amount
originally recorded, the difference would have
impact on the current income tax and deferred
income tax provision in the period in which the
final tax outcome became available.

REVENUE

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and
sales of optical fibre preforms, optical fibres, optical fibre
cables and other related products and services. Revenue
represents the sales value of goods supplied fo customers,
net of value added tfax.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group had
two customers (2014: one) with whom fransactions have
exceeded 10% of the Group's annual revenue. Sales to
these customers (including sales to entities, which are under
the common control by these customers) during the year
ended 31 December 2015 are as follows:
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25T

......................................................................................................................................................

Customer 1 ZE1

Customer 2 BE2

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT
751,437 1,208,736

Less than 10%

of the Group's

annual revenue
ERAEE

727,169 FEEWAR0%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

5 OTHER INCOME 5 Hbzs
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARET T
Dividend income from availablefor-sale AHEEBRFEEN
equity securities AR A A 156 3,655
Royalty fees R AE 5,900 6,300
Government granfs BT 6 B 47,788 24,080
Rental income from operating leases KEHER S WS 822 822
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - WFEMEE
equipment EiE R (2,189) (3,422)
Gain on the remeasurement to fair value of EHFTE A ERNER AN
pre-existing interest (Note 17(ii)) EER W (FEE7(i) 425 =
Gain on a bargain purchase [Note 17/(ii)) EBUEE WS (BRET7(i) 29,974 =
Gain on disposal of availablefor-sale HEAHEERESFRED
equity securities e 4,915 -
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading RHUEFNEER K
securities REREEFE (595) -
Others HAth - 198
87,196 31,633
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued

B 7 SR 2R BT R ()

6 NET FINANCE COSTS AR E 7R

2015 2014
—E-EHF —TSEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT

(a) Finance income (o) AEEWA
Interest income 2 A 31,475 Q9,209
Net foreign exchange gains b 5 a5 58 - 42,742
Finance income BEUW A 31,475 52,041

(b) Finance costs (b) A& AR A
Interest on bank loans IRITE T E (64,786) (68,632

less: interest expenses capitalised into B ETAERIECER

construction in progress™* LR EER* 1,087 1,500
(63,699) (67,132)
Net foreign exchange losses PE HABKHER (84,664) -
Other finance costs Hitnpt & & A (1,099) (24,120)
Bank charges RITFEE (6,909) (7,992)
Finance costs BbE A A (156,371) (99,244)

*

(2014 3.24%) per annum.

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.52%

*

EERABRFENE2.52%(=ZF —M4F :
3.24%)EAAL -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

7 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7 BRFATAE

BRBATRIEE M (ETA

Profit before taxation is arrived at affer charging/(crediting):

(a) STAFF COSTS* (a) BIRi®E*

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
Salaries, wages and other benefifs e TEFMEMER] 425,802 355,484

Contributions to defined contribution TE BRI G A K
refirement plan 41,710 35,229
467,512 390,713

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Company and its subsidiaries in the PRC
participated in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the relevant local government authorities
for their employees. The Company and ifs subsidiaries
in the PRC are required to make contributions to the
defined contribution retirement schemes at 20% of
basic salaries of the employees. The local government
authority is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to retired employees.

The Group also participated in a social security
scheme for its employees of the subsidiary in Indonesia
according to the relevant regulation. Under such
social security scheme, the Group is required to make
contributions to the social security scheme at 6% of
the employees’ relevant income. Contributions fo the
scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits beyond the annual
contributions described above.

REBTEBBEBRANEAE - &
REARERTENOHNBARRERE
28 mPEEMBTEE A
A 0 TE BRR IR SR ET B (TR IR
gl) - ARARRERTEMNHER
AR B B EARFH £ 20% MR IR
PEMEL MR - EMBTHERE
2 EREMEREBHRRER -

RERBEIRNER  AEE/HE
RENZEEAGMEBLARNETLHE
HEREFE - REZTEGRET
g "EEAREERBIRANOYL
& REF IR - %8I
< B9 G SR B A2 2 o

B bt S R RIASN - REE I &
H il ERARR A RN E A
NEE-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

(b) OTHER ITEMS (b) HfthIHH
2015 2014
—E-EHF —TmEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
Amortisation e s
— lease prepayments —HEMENKE 3,733 328
— infangible assefs —BVEE 4,719 -
Depreciation* e
— property, p|onf and equipment held for —REREHEENYE -
use under operafing leases = K& 345 461
— ofher property, plant and equipment —Hibs - BMENEE 115,687 113,187
Operating lease charges: minimum lease KREMEER - RIEAE
payments ¢ 17,069 8,896
Write-back of provision for impairment losses i B /518 # (& 82 [0
— trade receivables — FEUBR K (135) (4,802)
Auditors’ remuneration Z SR B &
— audit services — ZH RS 3,100 2,980
— other services — E b AR 1,518 140
Research and development costs* B9 J2 B B ko AN 196,891 153,713
Cost of inventories* (Note 21(b)) FERRA(KEE21(b) 5,447,344 4,605,552
& Cost of inventories and research and development costs # GERARMERRAERANBES BIEE
include RMB315,592,000 and RMB7 1,863,000 (2014: IRA BERTEEAEENARY
RMB266,255,000 and RMB57,482,000) respectively 315,592,000 cMARY71,863,0007t(=
relating to staff costs, amortisation and depreciation expenses, T—F : AR¥E20606,255,000TFAREE
of which the amounts are also included in the respective total 57,482,0007T) - BRABETRE DR B ER
amounts disclosed separately above or in Note 7(a) for each R (IR SR R -

of these types of expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 EHEEWRERARNAEHR
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) TAXATION IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(a) EHFESBRIRABMTRE :

REPRESENTS:
2015 2014
—F-IF —TmF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBT T
Current tax B EAT 1E
Provision for the year FEHE 66,635 66,489
Deferred tax EEBIE
Origination and reversal of femporary TR EERENELE
differences N #E E) 7,153 4,212
73,788 70,701

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE (b) MERXAFHFARREARE
AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT AT APPLICABLE EHEAYEEED ¢
TAX RATES:
2015 2014
—E-RE —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFR ARETT
Profit before taxation B 5 B A 632,022 534,738
Notional tax on profit before taxation at PRC  BrFE AT A E IR BE AT
corporate income fax rate of 25% THER25%T R B ENIE 158,006 133,685
Tax rate differentials MEER (47,042) (43,453)
Effect of non-deductible expenses TR A & 199 5,340
Effect of non-taxable income FEREFL UL A Y R/ 22 (7,639) (914)
Effect affributable to the additional qualified & B #&AFFE & B ZER A A5
tax deduction relating to research and HBRE 2
development costs (21,011) (18,689
Effect of share of results of associates and JERERE S N R AR
joinf ventures 7 (19,990) (7,049)
Effect of unrecognised tax losses RERT RN E 11,265 1,781
Actual fax expense BIRBIAR X 73,788 70,701
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

8 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 8 EHGRESRERMTNAESw
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

(b) RECONCILIATION BETWEEN TAX EXPENSE (b) RERXAEHAAZRREARE

AND ACCOUNTING PROFIT AT APPLICABLE
TAX RATES: (Confinued)

The Company and its PRC subsidiaries are subject o
PRC corporate income tax af the statutory rate of 25%.

Pursuant to the corporate income tax law and the
relevant approval documents, the Company obtained
the “"high-tech enterprise” status in October 2014 for
3 years. According fo the approval documents, the
Company is an approved hightech enterprise and is
entitled fo a preferential income tax rate of 15% during
the year, subject to the fulfilment of the recognition
criteria. Accordingly, the Company’s provision for PRC
corporate income tax for the year is calculated at 15%

(2014:15%).

Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the
relevant countries and regions.

B SRR © ()

ARERERTRBENNERBEER
25%HVEERRMMPBREEARFT
i o

REBELEMBERIARBRHLLAEX
- ARFAR_ZB-—NFE+AERF
TREB=ZFMSMRMEE]E
& o RIBMBRBAHLAE XM - RRFIR
RERBDHBEMEE  YRAFE
FRISUNBERE - Filt * AR
AARFEREBEEHRKIS%HERE
PRIEB(—F—PU%F : 15%) °

BN B A B 2 BIR TR E R B K
Kb [ 3R 1738 E TR -

Annual Report 5k 2015 167



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued

B 765 g 3 B & ()

9 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’” emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

9 EEM=

KEBCERB RRDE) F383EFE —HRIAK
RAVERF _BD EREETMERER
BIMBRENEZHEFBEET :

2015
—Z-n%
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R RIKEH
e REMERN BERA  EMXR Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT ARETR AR¥TR
Directors Bz
Wen Huiguo Y& - 902 2,830 22 3,754
Frank Franciscus Dorjee B-BE 468 - - - 468
Ma Jie BA 468 - - - 468
Yao Jingming (appointed on HHAB(R=T—RENANHR
9 June 2015) EZ{T) 284 - - - 284
Philippe Claude Vanhille JERIE 5B 468 - - - 468
Yeung Kwok Ki 1B 468 - - - 468
Xiong Xiangfeng AR 468 - - - 468
Zheng Huili (Note] HEZE () 468 - - - 468
Sun Jiming (resigned on RIER(R=ZE—RF ANAB
9 June 2015) BE(E) 184 - - - 184
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Ngai Wai Fung mEE 468 - - - 468
Ip Sik On Simon EH% 628 - - - 628
Li Ping T 468 - - - 468
i Zhuo e 468 - - - 468
General manager B
Zhuang Dan 4 - 914 3,770 71 4,755
Supervisors E=x
Jiang Zhikang LER - 697 450 71 1,218
Liv Deming (appointed on 2ER(R=F—RFANAE
9 June 2015) EZ) 104 - - - 104
li Chang'ai (appointed on FREMZ=Z—RE~ANA
9 June 2015) BZE) 104 - - - 104
Yao Jingming [resigned on HHAR_T-RF ANRA
9 June 2015) BE(E) 74 - - - 74
Yu Jioxuan [resigned on ERE(R=_E—AF~ANH
9 June 2015) BE(T) 74 - - - 74
5,664 2,513 7,050 164 15,391
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S B R IE))

9 DlRECTORS, REMUNERAT'ON (Continued) 9 %%Mﬁﬂ#]
2014
—TmF
Salaries,
allowances Refirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
e 2H RIRREN
e REMEN  BEEL SR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Directors =
Wen Huiguo Y& = 894 1,050 21 1,965
Frank Franciscus Dorjee Ry 37 = = = 37
Ma Jie N 37 = = = 37
Sun Jiming HIEH 37 = = = 37
Philippe Claude Vanhille FEAE SEARR 37 = = = 37
Yeung Kwok Ki 1B 37 = = = 37
Xiong Xiangfeng AR 37 = = = 37
Zheng Huili [Note] HEE () 37 - - - 37
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Ngai Wai Fung (appointed on REEN_T—TFNLA=TNA
24 September 2014] EZE) 37 - - - 37
Ip Sik On Simon [appointed on  EHE(R=T-MEAA=TEA
24 September 2014] EZE) 50 = = = 50
Li Ping (appointed on FHRZZ-mEAA=THA
24 September 2014] EZE) 37 - - - 37
i Zhuo (appointed on ZE(RZ-MFNA-THA
24 September 2014] EZ) 37 - - - 37
General manager Eobdd
Zhuang Dan 35 - 906 1,050 67 2,023
Supervisors gz
Jiang Zhikang TER = 696 400 67 1,163
Yao Jingming Bkt 15 = = = 15
Yu Jiaxuan ERE 15 - - - 15
450 2,496 2,500 155 5,601

Note: Zheng Huili has been working with the Company and also serves
as deputy secrefary of the party committee during both the current
and prior years. Remuneration paid fo Zheng Huili in her position
other than as director of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2015 is RMB881,000 (2014: RMB1,298,000).

Hr BEERAFERUMFEEAQRIE
YHEFEERDNERL - 20155 EF LAz
MIEESMENHE A ARKEE81,0007T
(20144 : AR¥1,298,0007T) °

Annual Report 3 2015 169



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 EE#MEAL
The number of directors, chief executive, supervisors, non- RAFERN AEmxaMEe ALTANE
directors and non-supervisors included in the five highest FTHRAH  EF - FEFREEST
paid individuals during the year are set forth below: ABT :
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-F
Directors, chief executive and supervisors BE - (THEZKRES 2 2
Non-directors and non-supervisors FEERIEES 3 3
5 5
The emoluments of the directors (including chief executive BEE(BRTBEERES)NMEFS5
and supervisors) are disclosed in Note 9. The aggregate N - A aMe ALHBMe
of the emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid ERIT
individuals are as follows:
2015 2014
—E-fRfF T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Salaries and other emoluments FeAMAMME 2,515 2,558
Discretionary bonuses BISFEAL 5,700 2,600
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET 2R 189 180
8,404 5,338
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

10 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10 REME AL @

(Continued)

EEMEALTFOIFEERIFEFAM
SHEATEENR :

The emoluments of the non-directors and non-supervisors
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

2015: —E—RF:
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 7% 3,500,000/ 7T

(RMB2,441,001 to RMB2,813,000) (AR%2,441,001 TEAR¥2,813,0007T) 1
HKD3,500,001 to HKD4,000,000 3,500,001 %7t %E 4,000,000/ 7T

(RMB2,813,001 to RMB3,215,000) (AR%2,813,001 tEAR¥3,215,0007T) 2

2014: —T—mEF
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 % 2,500,000/8 7T
(RMB 1,585,001 to RMB1,981,000) (AR®1,585,001 tE AR¥1,981,0007T) 3

1T EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 8REF

(a) BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE (a) BEREZFRF

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders
of the Company of RMB570,722,000 (2014:
RMB466,344,000) and the weighted average of
640,981,710 ordinary shares (2014: 488,790,598

shares) in issue during the year, calculated as follows:

BERERABINRERADAE
BREFAABHENBARE
570,722,000t (=T —M%F : A
R#466,344,0007T) A RFAE
IR BAR640,981,710
PR (ZZF—M%F : 488,790,598%)

- HEWT

Weighted average number of ordinary shares INESE 39 E B R AR
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-F
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January R—HA— BB &ETEER 639,462,598 479,592,598
Effect of new shares issued under the public ~ AFZETHIA R 2
offering (Note 32(c)(i)) (BFEE32(c)(i) - 9,198,000
Effect of shares issued under the Employee  1R3% 8 T# A% 5T 21317
Stock Ownership Scheme (Note 31(b(i)) Mtn a2 2 (FIEE31(b)(i) 1,139,299 =
Effect of placing of shares (Note 31(b)lii)) AR E R E (M EES T (b)) 379,813 -
Weighted average number of ordinary R+=ZA=+—HnE¥EH
shares at 31 December IS I X 640,981,710 488,790,598

(b) DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
The Company did not have any potential dilutive shares
during both the current and prior years. Accordingly,
diluted earnings per share are the same as basic
eamings per share.

(b) BEHMERT
RAFERBEFE - KRFTF
EREREBERG - Bt - ki
SERANBEGRERBN -2 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

12 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages ifs businesses by products. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group's most senior executive management
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following two
reportable segments for the year. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following reportable
segments.

e Optical fibres and optical fibre preforms: this segment
produces optical fibres and optical fibre preforms
which are sold to external parties.

e Optical fibre cables: this segment produces optical
fibre cables which are sold to external parties.

The Group combined other business activities that are not
reportable in “Others”. Revenue included in this category
is mainly from sales of equipment, raw materials and other
related products.

(a) SEGMENT RESULTS
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group's senior executive management monitors the
results atfributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments. The measure used for reporting segment
results is gross profit.

The Group's assets, liabilities, other operating
expenses, such as selling and administrative expenses,
finance income and finance costs, and share of results
of associates and joint ventures, are not measured
under individual segments. Accordingly, neither
information on segment assefs and liabilities nor
information concerning capital expenditure, interest
income and inferest expense, efc. is presented.

12

i)

ok

PR &

AEEBBEMBEERT - FR - AR
BizRORER - FHEXRER &M R A
SERSRITHEREETREERMN

—EH TN RATMER 2 HD P
MES OHERKEDE - AAEBIA T #H
L£SHR o

o JtENFERE : WO BEEKER
TEITRSE - WARINH

. 7‘5% :

D BAEEE - AR

REBE G EMIFRED A HIA [ H A
275 hE B AETERIRENHER
B R E REMAEER o

(a) SEBEE
AEERETHREBABRTIE
HERZEREDMEMLOES
IERHE D BRERETHBEE
RO

=g}

E:Et BEDHOREE L - B
2% FDEMELNHEMZ

%BFﬁFEE’J%ﬁH - &
BRIERRER ©

&tﬁ:/'\

oE B O
}H‘ﬂ? tl; \}F

AEENEE - AR  HE=H
X HERERER ﬂé%k
ﬁ@ﬁﬁ$ AREIEBENE &

REAFEELRAZELOHLEE - B
- REFDBEEMD HBEAE -
MEEAH -~ FIEBBAMAME X
HEEH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

B 765 g 3 B & ()

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(0) SEGMENT RESULTS (Confinved|

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year is
set out below:

12 &

ER SR (W)

(a) SEBEE(2)

FR RHEAEBERSRTHE
BEEMAEETERDELH D EFE
BIEHF AR ARE T 2®RD
EBEERMT

2015
—E-hfF
Optical
fibres and Optical
optical fibre fibre
preforms cables Others Total
kExR
EHE *E Hit @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®TR AR®TR AR%TxR
Reportable segment revenue ] 23R D BULA
Gross revenue from external customers — IpERE B UE A 3,756,593 2,643,275 332,102 6,731,970
Elimination of revenue relating to HAENTBRRZ S
downstream transactions with A S
joint ventures (116) - (740) (856)
Revenue from external customers AN E U A 3,756,477 2,643,275 331,362 6,731,114
Reportable segment profit (gross profit) =] 2 & % &8 A8 (£ F)
Segment profit before elimination of EIEAREIRFERIAY
unrealised profits 2 2B 1,113,007 158,497 36,235 1,307,739
Elimination of unrealised profits on HIHEE E R F)A
downstream transactions with B BR 5 E
joint ventures (3,529) - - (3,529)
Reportable segment profit (gross profit) AT 2 5> ZBFE (FEF)) 1,109,478 158,497 36,235 1,304,210
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

BE R R M EE
12 SEGMENT REPORT'NG (Continued) 12 ﬁggﬁ%if‘ﬁ)
(0) SEGMENT RESULTS (Continved| (a) EBEE ()
2014
—T-MmEF
Opical
fibres and Optical
optical fibre fibre
preforms cables Others Tofal
REE HE Hth st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:T
Reportable segment revenue BES:Vik: 10N
Gross revenue from external customers MR B ULA 3,197,335 1,989,433 457,021 5,643,789
Elimination of revenue relating to RABNTIERR S
downstream transactions with L oNi%:=
joint ventures 32,317 - 676 32,993
Revenue from external customers SNEBREMA 3,229,652 1,989,433 457,697 5,676,782

Reportable segment profit (gross profit) ] 2% #5558 (EF)
Segment profit before elimination of WHEABE BRI

unrealised profits ARz b 815,727 173,908 72,616 1,062,251
Elimination of unrealised profits on HIHESENAINAER
downstream transactions with B3 32 5 F)E
joint ventures 25,307 = = 25,307
Reportable segment profit (gross profit) 7] 23R 2 2 FI;E (EF) 841,034 173,908 72,616 1,087,558
(b) RECONCILIATIONS OF REPORTABLE (b) SEBHERRAS HIRMATFIED
SEGMENT RESULTS TO CONSOLIDATED HRE :

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION:

2015 2014

—E—REF —E—QF

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AREET T ARBT T

Segment results DEFELE 1,304,210 1,087,558

Other income Hblas 87,196 31,633

Selling expenses HEER (162,994) (124,271)

Administrative expenses EEEHR (551,452) (441,173)

Net finance costs VAR (124,89¢) (47,203)
Share of results of associates and FE(GESE & A BIAD

joint ventures SN AUNCTE¥= 79,958 28,194

Consolidated profit before faxation SR AT 632,022 534,738
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

12 SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 12 ﬁggiﬁ%iﬁ?
(c) GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (c) WMERH
The following table sets out information about the TRIR() AN EBREINBEPH
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from WARMAEENYE  BER
external customers and (i) the Group's property, plant wRisERIE BEEE HE
and equipment, construction in progress, intangible BNRIE  REERRNAERA
assets, lease prepayments, inferests in associates and B R N H A TR AN FOE ([ 45 52 FEIR
joint ventures and other prepayments (“specified non- BEEEMEHLNEN - TP
current assets”). The geographical location of customers T Hb 72 12 12 £ AR 75 =X 78 m B0 30 B B
is based on the location at which the services were D ERBERRBEEMEL T
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical | W% BEERRBEREREE
location of the specified non-current assets is based MERMEME Y BPEE M
on the physical location of the asset, in the case of SRMFKIAREMBMNRIERER
property, plant and equipment, the location of the PO BCRIMEEE S o - MHE
operation to which they are allocated, in the case LERRMEERBMNEREER
of intangible assets, lease prepayments and other LEIEE S
prepayments, and the location of operations, in the
case of inferests in associates and joint ventures.
Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
RESBEF BB REFRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-RF —T—mEF —E-1F —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMF AR®ETT ARBTT  ARETE
Mainland China B R RE (R 7E )
[place of domicile] 6,201,465 5,278,671 2,151,277 1,869,336
Others HAt 529,649 398,111 34,488 =

6,731,114 5,676,782 2,185,765 1,869,336
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥1% - BERRHE

Machinery
Land and and Office Motor
buildings ~ equipment  equipment vehicles Total
T b 50 HEEE A
BEY ®tE  BORE Hij k|
RMB'0O00  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREBETT ARBTR
Cost: 2%
At 1 January 2014 R-Z—WFE—A—H 240,355 1,756,290 84,211 8,678 2,089,534
Additions #e 2,239 27,462 6,443 139 36,283
Transferred from construction  HEREITIZEA
in progress 8,762 34,109 836 - 43,707
Disposa|s BRE = (19,303) (10,274) - (29,577)
At 31 December 2014 R_E—F+-A=1+—H 251,356 1,798,558 81,216 8,817 2,139,947
At 1 January 2015 RZZE—RF—H—H 251,356 1,798,558 81,216 8,817 2,139,947
Additions we 39,488 62,425 9,163 1,337 112,413
Through acquisition of BBURE—ZXMBEAF
a subsidiary 17,700 9,189 446 - 27,335
Transferred from construction  HFERTIZE A
in progress 105,796 70,569 1,630 = 177,995
Disposals RE = (1,664) (3,257) (83) (5,004)
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RFT+_A=+—H 414,340 1,939,077 89,198 10,071 2,452,686
Accumulated depreciation and R ERBERE :
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZE—mF—H—H 120,028 1,103,248 42,759 3,576 1,269,611
Charge for the year RNEEF R 10,083 92,903 9,689 973 113,648
Wiritten back on disposals i e - (16,157) (9,685) - (25,842)
At 31 December 2014 R-Z—NF+-_A=+—~H 130,111 1,179,994 42,763 4,549 1,357,417
At 1 January 2015 R—ZE—HF—A—H 130,111 1,179,994 42,763 4,549 1,357,417
Charge for the year AEEHR 11,213 93.899 9,899  1.021 116,032
Wiritten back on disposals & - (1,471) (1,245 (74) (2,790
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—hAF+-_A=+—H 141,324 1,272,422 51,417 5,496 1,470,659
Net book value: BETE S E ¢
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RE+=-A=+—H 273,016 666,655 37,781 4,575 982,027
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—NOF+=-A=+—H 121,245 618,564 38,453 4,268 782,530

ASSETS LEASED OUT UNDER OPERATING LEASES:

The Group leased out cerfain properties under operating
leases. The aggregate net book value of these assets
which leased out by the Group as at 31 December 2015
amounted to RMBS5,477,000 (2014: RMB6,467,000).

DEEHERENEE

AEBNKEHERHETYE -1
—E-hAF+HA=+—B  x5HE
EBEEENREFELABRRARE
5477000 L (ZF—MF : AR¥
6,467,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued

B 765 g 3 B & ()

14 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

14 #8TiE

2015 2014
—E-AF —ET—UF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
At 1 January »w—H—H 93,888 40,030
Additions BE 172,334 Q7,565
Through acquisition of a subsidiary BBAKE-RKMNB AR 516 =
Transferred fo property, plant and equipment B AYE - BE NLEE (177,995) (43,707)
At 31 December R+t=-—A=+—H 88,743 93,888
15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BEEE
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREETTT
Patents =R
Cost: RS :
At 1 January R—A—H 151,019 -
Additions = - 151,019
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—H 151,019 151,019
Accumulated amortisation: RET#
At 1 January m—H—H - -
Additions = 4,719 -
At 31 December N+=—A=+—H 4,719 -
Net book value: BRI S{E :
At 31 December Wt+=—A=+—H 146,300 151,019

16 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

lease prepayments comprise inferests in leasehold land held
for own use under operating leases located in the PRC as

follows:

16 HERNRE

HEEMRECENCEHEES S
RMEFENHEE L i

E ]I

2014
—
RMB'000

......................................................................................................................................................

Land use rights held under medium-erm leases

2015

e

RMB’000

AREF T

B L E i 166,225
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coninued|

B 7% 3R 3 Bt aE ()

17 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

The particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31
December 2015 are set out below:

Name of company

KL

Place and date of

17 RSB R AINRE

R-ZZE—RAF+-_A=+—H  ARQF
MEARFFEHINET

Proportion of
ownership interest

Principal activities

TERK

......................................................................................................................................................

Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Company
(Hong Kong] Limited

EverPro Technologies
Company Limited

ROE (RE) R
BRAT]

EverProsper
Technologies
Company Limited

RIGE(BB)RE
BRAF

Shenzhen YOFC

Connectivity

Technologies Co., lid.

RIERE BRI
BRAA
PT. Yangtze Optical

Fibre Indonesia

incorporation/ Issued/registered
establishment and paid-up capital
i/ BRfT/
B 4t 26 A0 B 4 AfAYRER
Hong Kong HKD80,000
17 July 2013

BA 7%280,000
—E-=F+A++H

PRC RMB325,000,000
9 December 2013

i AE#325,000,000
—2-=F+"AfA

Hong Kong RMB6,800,000
6 June 2014

BB AE#6,800,000
—Z-MEAAAR

PRC RMB27,004,668
15 Apiil 2015

i AE#27,004,668
“Z-1FMA+THA

Indonesia USD8,800,000
22 May 2015

HERREE %718,800,000
iy

FEERE LA
Group's Held
effective by the

inferest ~ Company

AEEN  HARF
AXELS BR
100.00%  100.00%
100.00%  100.00%
69.23%  69.23%
69.23%  69.23%
69.23% =
69.23% =
75.00%  75.00%
75.00%  75.00%
70.00%  70.00%
70.00%  70.00%
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Trading of raw materials

RHHES

Production and sales of
optical fibres, optical
fibre cables and related
products

Fe i 8 AR R
HERHE

Trading of raw materials

RMHES

Production and sales of
premises disfributed
system

HEMREREER
HE

Production and sales
of optical fibres and
related products

T AR EE
FHRE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coninued

B 7 SR 2R BT R ()

]7 |NVESTMENT |N SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

Name of company

DAEB

Place and date of

17 RSB A RAHNRE )

Proportion of

ownership interest

Principal activities

......................................................................................................................................................

Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Shenyang
Co., ltd.

KRB EERS
BRAT

Yangtze Optical Fibre
and Cable Lanzhou
Co., ltd.

R ERM
BRAF

Yangtze Optical Fibre
(Qianjiang) Co., lid.

RRAGETIERAF
Ally First Optical Fiber
and Cable Co., lid.

AR S
BRART]

NK Wuhan Cable Co.,
ltd. [note i

RERSEBER AR
(BT

incorporation/ Issued/registered
establishment and paid-up capital
i/ BR8fT/
B 3t 36 B 4 AL ER
PRC RMB15,180,000
16 June 2015

i ARE15,180,000
I S A R AN

PRC RMB30,000,000
13 July 2015

s AE#30,000,000
—E-AF+A+=H

PRC RMB23,500,000
28 July 2015

s AER#23,500,000
“Z-RFtAZTNA

PRC RMB85,690,000
8 December 2015

i AERE85,690,000
“F-RFTZANA

PRC RMB7/3,351,200
1 December 1999

i AE#73,351,200

“hWANETZA—HR

FEERRLA TEEK
Group's Held
effective by the
inferest  Company
FEEN  BEXRF
AXER %R
100.00%  100.00%  Production and sales of
optical fibre cables and
related products
100.00%  100.00%  tEREBHGHOEE
NHE
100.00%  100.00%  Production and sales of
optical fibre cables and
related products
100.00%  100.00%  rtEREBHGHOLE
KRHE
100.00%  100.00%  Production and sales of
optical fibre cables and
related products
100.00%  100.00%  XEREBHGHOEE
KHE
51.00%  51.00%  Production and sales of
optical fibre cables and
related products
51.00%  51.00%  HEREESHNEE
KHE
80.00%  80.00%  Production and sales
of copper cable and
related products
80.00%  80.00% AN ABESMALE

K&
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

17 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES |

Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The English translation of the names of the PRC subsidiaries is for
identification only. Their official names are in Chinese.

On 18 June 2015, the Company and NK China Investments B.V.
(“NK China") entered info an equity transfer agreement, pursuant fo
which the Company agreed to acquire 60% equity interest in NK
Wuhan Cable Co., lid. ("NK Wuhan"), previously held as to 20%
by the Company, at a cash consideration of RMB18,000,000. The
Company also agreed to undertake to fully indemnify NK China or
any former and current directors of NK VWuhan appointed by NK
China ("NK Directors”) for any liabilities or obligations arising from
any third party claim against NK China in its capacity as an equity
holder of NK Wuhan and/or against NK Directors by reason of them
being a director of NK Wuhan, up fo a maximum aggregate amount
of RMB 10,000,000, within 36 months from 25 December 2015
the date of issuance of the new business licence of NK Wuhan. The
acquisiion was complefed on 25 December 2015. As a result, the
Company's equity inferest in NK VWuhan increased from 20% o 80%
and NK Wuhan became a subsidiary of the Company.

The following summarises the consideration transferred, and the
recognised amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed af the
acquisition date:

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

17 RSB R ANRE )

(i)

(ii)

TEIMBARNEXAEERER - AT
HWERFX -

R=ZZ—RAF~A+/A\B » NARENK
Chmo Investments B.V. ((NK Chinal) %5 #%
*}E?—r%ﬁ%% Bt ARAREBKEREL

*i‘:ﬁﬂﬁ’/}?(f*%ﬁ,}lj)ﬁ’jé@éﬂﬁ%($

NAEIZAFEB20%EHE) BReHEBEAAR
M]SOOOOOOTE AARERETEAE
NK Chinagk fE{a FANK ChinafEar B EEZ S
AMEFIREES(INKES ) EE=FRNK
ChinotE REVER I M E R FFE AMIERR
%f%ﬂ%?ﬁ'\]NK§$}?sﬂj%§ﬁ%ﬁﬁg\ﬂfi"]&@

ABEHET  ZRBAEAARK10,000, OOO
T BRERIEGSTFHNEEHRRBRB(ZE
—AF+=ZA=+HEA)B=1+EA W@J
B WEEER-_T—RAF+t=-A=+HAH

SEAKk o Btk - A2 AL B K 2 8L e A 2 4
20% MEBO% + K RYUA AAR AR HY
BAA -

P o 00 31 (B e i UK BB B R AT UK BB RO B EE AN
FEENEENERSRE7/0T ¢

KB A RBEER IARNEE

RMB’000

AE%?E

Property, plant and equipment e A 27,335

Construction in progress TEEZIRE 516

lease prepayments HEFFKIA 14,600

Inventories TE 15,184

Cash and cash equivalents Re LB EEY 32,217

Others Hth (6,562)

Total identifiable net assets acquired P BB PR R P B E AR 83,290
Measurement of fair value AREETE

The valuation techniques used for measuring the fair value of material
assets acquired were as follows.

Market comparison technique and cost technique have been
adopted for measuring the fair value of property, plant and
equipment and lease prepayment. The valuation model considers
quoted market prices for similar items when they are available,
and depreciated replacement cost when appropriate. Depreciated
replacement cost reflects adjustments for physical deterioration as
well as funcfional and economic obsolescence.

Market comparison technique has been adopted for measuring
the fair value of invenfories. The fair value is defermined based
on the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable
profit margin based on the effort required fo complete and sell the
invenfories.

AEMBBHNEREENRAABENMBER
flFanT o

WE - BERRKBREERARO R EE
RATSLEEMR AL & - HEERS
ZRFERE TS RE (A HERE) M
ESEXRACERAR) BENEEERARBR
HEBRCARINGE RAEBERENRE

FENAREBERATSLEETE - AE
BEBBETEFEERMGI T I REEK
Ao URERTERHEFEMFTNSHEH
MAEEMKREE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
g S BN IE))

]7 |NVESTMENT |N SUBS'D'AR'ES (Continued)

17 RSB A RHNRE )

Notes: (Continued) & ()
Consideration transferred: ERNYE:
RMB’'000
AREFIT
Cash e 18,000
Fair value of previously held equity interest SRIAEE R R LEAT
classified as an associate BEERNAREER 18,658
Total consideration transferred o B 4A5E 36,658
Goodwill: HE
RMB’'000
ARETIT
Consideration transferred R EE 36,658
Non-controlling interest, based on their proportionate  3E¥EiHEzS (R EIh & &
interest in the recognised amounts of the assets FEEEERETE
and liabilities KL BIEHE) 16,658
Fair value of identifiable net assets AIHRFEEN EE (83,290
Gain on bargain purchase HEEEE KR (29,974)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

The Group believes that the major reason for this bargain purchase is
that NK Wuhan had incurred loss for several years and the original
controlling shareholder of NK Wuhan is a connected person of the
Group. As a result, the Group was able to reach a relatively low
consideration with NK China and a gain was incurred accordingly.

Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the
acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

AEERRZHEBENETEREAENIE
ZIMAFELEER  RREBRBRRAANSE
EREAL - Fit - AEEEHER G HE
ERKAREBRIEREHE - WAL

FRKRBE-SHEBRARANRERASEEY
RAFENIMAOT :

RMB’000

AREFTT

Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBHEEED 32,217
Cash consideration R HE (18,000)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEYMRANERE 14,217

Further details of the acquisition of additional 60% equity interest in
NK Wuhan were set out in the Company’s announcement dafed 18
June 2015.

The Group did not have material non-controlling interest during both
the current and prior years.

All these non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group are established
in the PRC under confractual joint venture arrangements.

Al subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC are in the form of
limited liability company.

(iii)

(iv)

(vl

B R B EUE R PRI OO% B Z FE 1 -
REARBBHAR-ZT—HFAATNBZA

EA ©

AEBRARFE RBEFE L EERIFER

i -

AEERAESRAASE R RET B FEML
FREERMEAT -

AEBEFRBEKINMB ARG REREE

A -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coninued|

B 7% 3R 3 Bt aE ()

18 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

18 BEARER

........................................................................................................................................................

Share of net assets

RIEFEE

2015 2014
—E-I1F —EF-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
10,747 28,712

The particulars of the Company’s associate, which is an
unlisted corporate entity, at 31 December 2015 are set out

below:

Name of company

ACEL

R-ZE—A¥+_-_A=+—H "  AQA
BERR(ZARRFLTARER
FHEHIWT

Proportion of

ownership interest Principal activities

.......................................................................................................................................................

Wouhan Yunjingfei Optical Fibre
Material Co., lid.

REERRAGHHERA

Notes:

Place of

establishment Registered and
and business paid-up capital
AV S
30k BREFHE
PRC RMB45,000,000
i AR#45,000,000

(i)  During the year, the Company acquired additional 60% inferests in
NK Wuhan. Together with the original 20% equity inferests in NK
Wouhan, NK Wuhan has become a subsidiary of the Group upon the
completion of the acquisition on 25 December 2015. Further details

are set out in Note 17.

[il  The English translation of the name is for identification only. The
official name of the entity is in Chinese.

(i) The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in the
consolidated financial statements.

(iv) At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's associates is not
regarded as individually material.

FiEEER LA TERHK

Group's Held

effective by the

interest  Company
AEEN  HADRF
B =2 ]

20.00%  20.00%  Production and sales
high purity germanium
fetrachloride for the
opfical fibres

20.00%  20.00% HAREEEEN
HENEE

Fa

) REFEA - AREURIERER I Z BINOBAR
- ERRFANRER 2 20%K4E @ £
“E-RFTZA-TEBEEKRKEEZ R
ERIRAAEEZHERT - AEFER
MiFE17 ©

(i) HEXABEHEBR - ZEEEEBBEAT

(iii) LB & R BIRAE 2R E & T B R 5l

—EFER-_ZT-WOE+—A=+—
$%IH§%M"TT%}§Z¥EE1IEU§7K

(iv)

ikl
i e
mw=
B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

PR eI
19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 19 &8 AAEEmE

2015 2014

—E-AHF —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT ARETTT

Share of net assets B EEE 705,914 640,605

Goodwill GRS 18,528 18,528

724,442 659,133

less: impairment loss o OREER (4,130) (4,130)

720,312 655,003

The following list contains the particulars of joint ventures, R-ZFE-—AFE+-_A=1+—H &2

all of which are unlisted corporate entities, at 31 December A(2HHRIELTRARER)NFBELN

2015: T

Place of
establishment Registered and Proportion of
Name of company and business paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BIR 2
REER £33k BREARFE EE:E 3340 TEER
Group's Held
effective by the
interest ~ Company
AEEN  HAXDRF
A o2

Yangtze Optical Fibre and PRC RMB100,300,000  75.00%  75.00%  Production and sales of
Cable (Shanghai) Co., lid. opfical fibre cables
(note iii)

RFc#B(LR)BRRE & ARH100,300,000  75.00%  75.00% @ AERHEKE
(Fif&Eiii)

Yangize Zhongli Optical Fibre PRC RMB92,880,000  51.00%  51.00%  Production and sales of
and Cable (Jiangsu) Co., Lid. optical fibre cables
(note iii)

IRERPMAEBRAR  FE AKE#02,880,000  51.00%  51.00% HERHEELE
(BiS i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

184 Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company ¢ 4 ¢ 8 A 15 A BR A 7]

1 9 |NTEREST |N JOlNT VENTURES (Continued) 19 é%@ﬁ]*&é?
Place of
establishment Registered and Proportion of
Name of company and business paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BIR B
AL ES 30 BREXFHE FREEERLA FTEXHK
Group's Held
effective by the
inferest  Company
ZEEN  BERRH
By b22)
Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable  PRC RMB53,800,000 51.00% 51.00%  Production and sales of
Sichuan Co., Lid. (Note iii) opfical fibre cables
RARAG BN BRAT] i AR®53,800,000  51.00%  51.00% HERHEEXE
(PfaEiin)
Tianjin YOFC XMKJ Optical PRC RMB220,000,000  49.00%  49.00%  Production and sales of
Communications Co., Lid. opfical fibres
RERREXABEERAA f AR 220,000,000 49.00% 49.00% HERBEELH
Yangtze [Wuhan) Optical and PRC RMB47,500,000 46.32% 46.32%  Production and sales of
System Co., lid. opfical devices and
related products
RR(EZE )X RS e AR®47 500,000  46.32%  46.32% HEEREEXBRER
BRAT] HEER
Shantou Hi-Tech Zone Ao Xing PRC RMB170,558,817 42.42% 42.42%  Production and sales of
Optical Communication opfical fibre cables
Equipment Co., lid.
WERHREELBERE FE AR#170,558,817 42 42% 42.42%  EERBEENRE
BRRAT
Shenzhen SDGI Optical Fibre PRC RMB206,518,320  35.36%  35.36%  Production and sales of
Co., lrd. precise opfical fibres
A FEEEAGRRAA i AR#206,518,320  35.36%  35.36% AEREENE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
g S BN IE))

1 9 |NTEREST |N JOlNT VENTURES (Continued) 19 é%@ﬁ]%é?
Place of
establishment Registered and Proportion of
Name of company and business paid-up capital ownership interest Principal activities
BIR B
AL ES7 300 BREXFE e EERL A TEXHK
Group's Held
effective by the
inferest ~ Company
AEEN  BERLH
By b=2)
Tianjin YOFC XMK] Optical PRC RMB 100,000,000 20.00% 20.00%  Production and sales of
Cable Co., lid. opfical fibre cables
RERREXAEERAA i AR®100,000,000 20.00% 2000% HEREELE
Wouhan Guangyuan Electronic PRC RMB5,000,000 20.00% 20.00%  Products and sales of
Technology Co., ltd. precise mould and
electronic devices
REXREFRIRBRAT e AR®5000000  20.00%  20.00% AERHEERFEAR
&b
YOFC-Yadanarbon Fibre Co., Ud.  Myanmar USD4,000,000 50.00% 50.00%  Production and sales of
opfical fibre cables
e %714,000,000 50.00% 50.00%  HEREELE
Notes: &t

(i)

(i1

(iii)

The English translation of the names of the PRC entities is for
identification only. Their official names are in Chinese.

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Yangtze Optical Fibre and
Cable (Shanghai] Co., lid. ["YOFC Shanghai”), Yangtze Zhongli
Optical Fibre and Cable (Jiangsu) Co., Ltd. ("YOFC Jiangsu”)
and Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Sichuan Co., Lid. ("YOFC
Sichuan”), unanimous consent of all investors is required for decisions
of the entities’ financing and operating activities. Accordingly, the
Company has joint control over these enfities and investments in
YOFC Shanghai, YOFC Jiangsu and YOFC Sichuan are accounted

for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

TEERNEXRRERRR  BAEEH
R o

b/ E R YREREER HEBRERT
FIIBR o

REBERCGEE (L) ERAB(TERL
Bl IEHERTPFALABEERAF (&
FOTE ) RERLELBELINBR AR (&
R DB RABERZMAA - HFBREER
REARGERREEZRRAEESB - At -
ARAREMREEAREHZSERE  R©
ERLEE  ERIHEERD)INEKERE
SAER I BERE IR -

Annual Report 3 2015 185



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved) 19 B¢ RAER
Notes: (Continued) & (8
(iv)  The Group sold optfical fibre preforms and optical fibres to cerfain (iv]  ZREFEERD & A 745 4 TR B K

joint ventures for the production of optical fibres and optical fibre
cables. In addition, the Group also purchased optical fibres and
optical fibre cables from cerfain joint ventures. Further details of
transactions with joint ventures are disclosed in Note 36.

(v  Summarised financial information of the Group’s material joint v
ventures and reconciliation fo the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

BAREABRLENEE - A - AKE
RO EERRRBAERNE - HAE
AAHBRZH BRI ES627] -

TZEERRANMBERMERE LR H
MR ARE BN HEHMT -

Yangize Optical Fibre and Cable [Shanghai) Co., Lid.

la) EREEIE(LE)BRIA

2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFIT
Gross amounts #azE
Current assets MENEE 386,660 332,309
Non-current assets FERBEE 92,266 86,023
Current liabilities MEAE (215,057) (173,167)
Non-current liabilities JEmEIBE (210) (315]
By 2% 263,659 244,850
Included in the above assets and liabilities: THEB Est A LA EEM
afEs
Cash and cash equivalents R MREZED 23,327 18,005
Revenue N 664,160 544 877
Profit from continuing operations FrE AR 31,527 28,855
Total comprehensive income A WERsaE 31,527 28,855
Dividend received =gl 4,000 7,466
Included in the above profit: THIIEE Bt A L AEF :
Depreciation and amortisation e RNk £ (11,220) (10,603
Interest income B U A 148 237
Interest expense FEZH - (783
Income fax expense PSS Hix H (5,656) (5,073)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest HEAREEFIESEATESN
in joint venture Bk
Gross amounts of net assets FEEBTE 263,659 244,850
Group's effective interest A& E R g 75.00% 75.00%
Group's share of net assets AREBEEHFEE 197,744 183,638
Elimination of unrealised profits on FOHARERIERRZ ZFE
downstream transactions (7,747) (2,470]
Carrying amount in the consolidated &M HmRONEm SR
financial statements 190,003 174,168
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Coninved) 19 &8 AAEIRERE
Notes: (Continued) & (')
(v  Summarised financial information of the Group’s material joint V) ETERLERANHBEREERERE G

ventures and reconciliation fo the carrying amounts in the

consolidated financial statements are as follows: (Continued)

BRMERARECENALHNT - (&)

(b)  Yangtze Zhongli Optical Fibre and Cable (Jiangsu) Co., Ld. b)  SIERRRF KM KEGRAR
2015 2014
—E-HF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T
Gross amounts sz
Current assets BB E 556,536 503,513
Non-current assets FERBEE 46,362 36,761
Current liabilities mEaE (355,758) (307,302)
Equity W2t 247,140 232,972
Included in the above assets and liabilities: THEB Est A L EERM
BfEF :
Cash and cash equivalents HERBESEEY 30,773 50,933
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade nBeRAE(TRERMERERR
and other payables and provisions) E b B FRANER) (30,000) (52,000
Revenue WA 770,542 565,745
Profit from continuing operations SRR A T 30,869 33,402
Total comprehensive income ZEalzssasa 30,869 33,402
Dividend received 2 W A% A 7,653 5,938
Included in the above profit: THIIEE Bt A BAE
Depreciation and amortisation iRk (4,523) (4,510
Interest income MBI A 1,050 718
Inferest expense F B H (2,330) 2,117)
Income tax expense Frigfisz i (5,409) (5,991
Reconciled to the Group’s interest BEAKERESE DN RERS
in joint venture KR
Gross amounts of net assets FEERT 247,140 232,972
Group's effective interest REBRE IR 51.00% 51.00%
Group's share of net assets RNEFEEEEE 126,041 118,816
Elimination of unrealised profits on EHARBERIERZ ST E
downstream transactions (6,097) (8,245)
Carrying amount in the consolidated EAEHIERERAERE SR
financial statements 119,944 110,571
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 19 6 NEERw

Notes: (Continued) & (')

(v  Summarised financial information of the Group’s material joint V) ETEREQANHBEREEREEE G
ventures and reconciliation fo the carrying amounts in the BHRRARESBORLHAT : (F)
consolidated financial statements are as follows: (Continued)

Tianjin YOFC XMK] Optical Communications Co., Lid. [c) RERREBXCBEARAIRA
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFIT
Gross amounts iz
Current assefs mEEE 267,597 254,993
Non-current assets FERBEE 463,874 491,410
Current liabilities MEAE (351,385) (374,034)
Non-current liabilities JEmEIBE (84,548) (118,382)
Equity s 295,538 253,987
Included in the above assets and liabilities: THEB Est A LA EEM
afEs
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEY 18,409 12,694
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and &) &R & & (RN EIEEMERER K
other payables and provisions) E b FRANER) (180,000) (242,666)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade  JERENE B & & (T EIEE BRI
and other payables and provisions) Ko ELh AT R AN 2245 ) - (112,834]
Revenue WA 838,281 526,014
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations SECETE, (FE) 41,551 (32,684
Total comprehensive income RA R 41,551 (32,684)
Included in the above profit/(loss): THEE 25T A Bt AE,
(E8)+ -
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & AN 8 (42,309) (42,667)
Interest income FEW A 3,395 1,045
Interest expense T B H (15,529) (18,728)
Income tax expense FriS itz - (6,197]
Reconciled to the Group’s interest HEAEEBEARATERY
in joint venture A
Gross amounts of net assets FEERRE 295,538 253,987
Group's effective interest REEMNGIER 49.00% 49.00%
Group's share of net assets REFEEFEE 144,814 124,454
Elimination of unrealised profits on KR BERIERRZ ZF)E
downstream transactions (14,543) (8,536)
Carrying amount in the consolidated eI BHRERNRA SRR
financial statements 130,271 115,918
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Coninved) 19 &8 AAEIRERE
Notes: (Continued) & (')
(v  Summarised financial information of the Group’s material joint V) ETERLERANHBEREERERE G
ventures and reconciliation fo the carrying amounts in the BHRRARESBORGHAT : (F)

consolidated financial statements are as follows: (Continued)

(d)  Shantou Hi-Tech Zone Ao Xing Optical Communication (d  SlsEEHERELBEREERAR
Equipment Co., lid.

2015 2014
—E-REF =T[4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Gross amounts FEEC)
Current assets MENEE 272,327 301,436
Non-current assefs JEmENEE 52,352 56,636
Current liabilities RBAE (106,808) (150,914]
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (3,000) -
o HEat 214,871 207,158
Included in the above assets and liabilities: T5IE B Bt A L& EF
afEs -
Cash and cash equivalents HERBLZEEY 3,567 9,570
Revenue oN 484,271 427,984
Profit from continuing operations FE LT 16,613 13,523
Total comprehensive income AR 16,613 13,523
Dividend received AR ABA 3,775 6,875
Included in the above profit: THIEE B A BAE
Depreciation and amortisation P8 AN g (7,996) (8,194)
Interest income FBWA 1,063 595
Interest expense MBI - (136
Income tax expense FTiSFi sk i (2,936) (2,558
Reconciled to the Group’s interest BEASESESE ARERN
in joinf venture FER
Gross amounts of net assets FEERSE 214,871 207,158
Group's effective interest REBRERER 42.42% 42.42%
Group's share of net assets REERIEFEE 91,148 87,876
Elimination of unrealised profits on EIHABRIERR S 5H
downstream transactions (7,119) (6,701)
Carrying amount in the consolidated EAEHIERERAERE SR
financial statements 84,029 81,175
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Coninued)
Notes: (Continued)
(v  Summarised financial information of the Group’s material joint

ventures and reconciliation fo the carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements are as follows: (Continued)

(e]  Shenzhen SDGI Optical Fibre Co., Lid.

19

o)

it (&)

all

B

v EERLRTANFBERGEREES G
BMERARECENALHNT - (&)

le) FIFBESLEBERRA

2015 2014
—E-RE —ZT—MmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREFIT
Gross amounts #azE
Current assets MENEE 262,546 241,282
Non-current assets FERBEE 135,226 149,485
Current liabilities MEAE (150,871) (156,582)
Non-current liabilities JEmEIBE (10,415) (14,020)
By 2% 236,486 220,165
Included in the above assets and liabilities: T5|IE B E5t A L EER
afEs
Cash and cash equivalents R MREZED 25 5,665
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and &) &R & & (RN EIEEMERER KL
other payables and provisions) E b FRANER) (2,425) (2,425)
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade  3ERENE B & & (T EIEE BRI
and other payables and provisions) Ko ELh AT R AN 2245 ) (3,395) (5,820
Revenue 1151)\ 4]4,780 355,]5]
Profit from continuing operations S B N 16,321 7,281
Total comprehensive income RA R 16,321 7,281
Included in the above profit: TFIEE Bt AL FES -
Depreciation and amortisation PrEME (13,108) (13,123)
Interest income F.E U A 132 270
Interest expense FEZH (641) (1,017)
Income tax expense FTiS B i (1,031) (3,333
Reconciled to the Group’s interest HEAEEZEAE D TAEEN
in joint venture Bk
Gross amounts of net assets FEEBRE 236,486 220,165
Group's effective interest AEE R A ERS 35.36% 35.36%
Group's share of net assets AEBEREFEE 83,621 77,850
Goodwill BHE 10,627 10,627
Elimination of unrealised profits on KR BERIERRZ ZF)E
downstream transactions (3,631) (104)
Carrying amount in the consolidated AT B IR RE S
financial statements 90,617 88,373
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

RMB20,000,000, through an entrusted loan arrangement with
a bank, were unsecured, bearing inferest at 4.75%-5.00% per

annum and repayable in 2017.

= o
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19 INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continved) 19 B¢ RAERE
Notes: (Continued) & (')
(vi)  The aggregate financial information, of other individually immaterial (vij HAEBTEANEE DA NTBEERRE
joint ventures, is as follows: 25T ¢
2015 2014
s —F-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Aggregate carrying amount of individually A OB mERPERNTEAR
immaterial joint ventures in the consolidated SENRNERE SRR
financial statements 105,448 84,798
Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those ~ AREBIEEZEA & A RHER
joint ventures’ e
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations ST, (B518) 7,124 (1,757)
Total comprehensive income fre Wi 7,124 (1,757)
20 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 20 HitERBEE
2015 2014
—F-HEF —TmE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AEM?E
Available-forsale equity securities AHHEESFKRE
— Unlisted —JELT 21,150 28,805
— listed in the PRC (Note 34(e)(i)) — AR B (i EE34(e)(i) 106,175 55,109
127,325 83,914
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment, — FEf#1% - BE Ki&kiE - EF
intangible assets and lease prepayments & EMMEEENKIE 71,411 40,396
Bank deposits EHER 205,000 -
Interest receivable FH&UTU 5,934 =
Loans to a joint venture (note) BT EEARIER (M) 20,000 -
429,670 124,310
Note: At 31 December 2015, loans to a joint venture of izt : RZZT—AF+-_A=+—0 BB —RE

ﬁ?ﬁ‘% ﬁ/ﬂﬁﬁ?ééﬁjﬂ’]‘é KA R B
20,000,0007¢ £ #4518 & 5K
A.75%%5.00%:1 = jﬁﬁé:?—

papillkiEal
LFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

21 INVENTORIES

(a) INVENTORIES IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

21 78

(a) aHEBRARMATHEREE :

COMPRISE:
2015 2014
—F-IF —TmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTTT
Raw materials and spare parts R B ANt 330,155 380,790
Work in progress EEL 56,346 64,704
Finished goods SRk 291,561 251,967
678,062 697,461

(b) THE ANALYSIS OF THE AMOUNT OF

(b) EasXHIEHABENEERE

INVENTORIES RECOGNISED AS AN EXPENSE SHMTF :
AND INCLUDED IN PROFIT OR LOSS IS AS
FOLLOWS:
2015 2014
—E-—EEF —=E=—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFERRmEEE 5,426,904 4,589,224
Write-down of inventories FE SR 20,440 16,328

5,447,344 4,605,552

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

........................................................................................

Trade receivables FEUSER IR
— related parties — AR
— third parfies =E=%
Bills receivable FEUE IR
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREAE

22 BWERRERE

2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

................................................................

227,179 212,867
1,732,005 1,281,985
174,051 264,458
(14,057) (14,192)

2,119,178 1,745,118

All of the trade and bills receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

ERKEREEZRBAZR —FAK
[E] o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Coninved) 22 BURRRER @)

(a) AGEING ANALYSIS
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the

(a) BESH
RBEBFR o AEBRFEEE
WBE R R 2 4R (1 REERE) 2 B

invoice date and net of allowance for doubtful debts, is BOMTT:
as follows:

2015 2014
—E2-HF —T—UF
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR®T T AREFIT
Within 3 months =@AAN 1,671,587 929,542
3 to 6 months =Z=NEAR 176,609 239,966
6 months to 1 year NMEAE—F 142,975 270,018
1 to 2 years =z &= 111,313 234,010
2 to 3 years —E= 12,146 66,523
Over 3 years HBiE=F 4,548 5,059
2,119,178 1,745,118

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, the Group's customers included state-owned
felecommunication network operators (the “State-owned
Telecommunication Operators”), other independent
third parties and certain joint ventures. The Group
generally required the State-owned Telecommunication
Operators to make 70%-80% payment upon delivery
of goods and pay the remaining balance in one year.
In addition, the Group granted credit periods of 30 to
Q0 days to those long standing third party customers
with good payment history and the joint ventures. The
credit period of individual customer is considered on
a caseby-case basis and set out in the sales contracts,
as appropriate. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

REBEE-_ZTE—RER-_ZT—NE
T A=+—HLFE  AEEH
EEFREREECEER([BHASE
FEER|)  EMBIYE=AKE
FEERAT - AEE—REKREH
BEEERRKEEWEE X 70%
80% BRI E — F N X T H &4 2
Do R AEBRRESELE
EROYNRENE=ARFEE
ENAIERTI0OEQOARMEZHAE -
BRI EEFMERPHEREETR
HEARTIEEDTR - AEEBEE
TEgREFKEERY -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Coninved)

(b) IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE AND BILLS

RECEIVABLES

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade and bills receivables directly (see

Note 2(k](i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
during the year, including both specific and collective
loss components, is as follows:

22 BURRKRRE @

(b) FEMIRERR B SRR {E

EWER R R B REBES RSB
EEERRLE  RIFAKRER RN
Bl R IB A BEME IR - UL BER
T - RER B E R iR WAR R
REE(Z2RMEE2(K) °

AEERERB(EREEMER
EBRED)EBMT

2015 2014

—E-AHF —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARET T

At 1 January nwW—H—H 14,192 18,994
Impairment loss recognised EERHRERE 1,377 8,759
Amounts written back LA R (1,512) (13,561)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 14,057 14,192

At 31 December 2015, the Group's trade and bills
receivables that were individually determined to be
impaired amounted to RMB53,344,000 (2014
RMB16,372,000). The individually impaired
receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties and management assessed that only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts
of RMB14,057,000 (2014: RMB6,054,000) were
recognised.

RZZE—RFE+_A=+—H =&
S EE R E AR E R E R
REEEAEARES3,344,0007T
(ZZE—F : AR¥16,372,000
7o) o AR ER EUERRER F
B HREERE  EEEFNGER
BEU Bl H AR — 05 FEGR o H It -
AEBEFUERRESEECEHESE
AER® 14,057,000t (=& — M
F: AR¥6,054,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Coninved) 22 BWERRRER®

(c) TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES THAT ARE

NOT IMPAIRED

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that
are neither individually nor collectively considered to
be impaired are as follows:

(c) RAREHEKERRERE

b 7R 45 1] 1) S B BE 4R A5 IR (B FY R
BERRRZBENRESITT

2015 2014

—E-AHF —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBET T ARETT

Neither past due nor impaired YR 7 i ER sl R (B 1,352,688 1,112,321
Less than 3 months past due BHI= (8 A AN 425,924 287,631
3 to 6 months past due BHI=Z A A 134,036 130,897
6 months to 1 year past due BENEAZE—F 99,513 120,383
1 to 2 years past due BE—ZE—F 55,129 75,935
2 to 3 years past due BE = E =4 10,365 7,633
Over 3 years past due BEA=F A E 2,236 =
727,203 622,479

2,079,891 1,734,800

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable.

8 A B SR B B B BRI 1308
BRRESNRZEFER

2 78 BB RORL (B 0 FE W 508 B 3= 2k
HEAREAERFEBERNRSE
UEF - BEEERS  REBAER
B AREEEIEYRAEAK
2 MABSRTIDEE R AR
Yml - A A B AR KT SR T
AR E%EA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

23 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 23 BE > FAAREREAERRE

RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
— —FmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Prepayments for raw materials RIS R E e FE N R 48,642 13,605
Amounts due from related parties FEM B RS 75 RRIE 2,778 6,306
Value-added tax recoverable A ETIA 32,351 27,290
Dividends receivable from joint ventures eI A & R AIBA 44,315 39,602
Net receivables under factoring arrangement RIBZHE T EUR T 58
(Note 33 (FH7E33) 8,827 45,728
Deposits B"E 10,128 7,974
Others Hih 30,076 12,025
177,117 152,530
Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, inferest free FEME b BREE T SRS EER - RERK
and have no fixed terms of repayment. = [E E RN o
24 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 24 HiteMEE
2015 2014
—E-T1E —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR%TT
Trading securities: RMHEF -
— listed in the PRC (Note 34/e|(i)) —ERREA _E(FEE34(e)) 1,861 -
Availableforsale debt securities: AL ERKES
— unlisted [Note 34(el[i)) —3E £ (BTE34(e)(i]) 5,000 5,840
6,861 5,840
Available-for-sale debt securities represents wealth AHHEESEFERETHEBAX
management products issued by cerfain stated-owned or EIEERITETNEMER - R=-F
listed commercial banks in the PRC. At 31 December 2015, —hAFE+ZA=+—H B EEK
the availableforsale debt securities were neither past due 78 7 I A A SR B ©

nor impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued

B RS SRR M RE ()
25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 BeRASEEY
2015 2014
—F-1F —F-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFR | ARBFR
Cash at bank and in hand IRITIF R FNER 2,047,125 2,010,953
26 BANK LOANS 26 BITER
At 31 December 2015, the bank loans were unsecured and R-_ZT—RAF+_A=+—H &~&H
repayable as follows: MRITERRERER  HEXERZ7
mE
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—MF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBEFT
Within 1 year —FNR 1,636,609 1,465,229
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRE-FRA 325,012 982,164
After 2 years but within 5 years ZHFBBRFA 453,808 36,714
After 5 years hFi& 42,000 =
820,820 1,018,878
2,457,429 2,484,107
Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to the AEBHBORTERRETE THEHAR
fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group’s assets/ EEMNEE BELZXHABNTBER
liabilities ratio, as are commonly found in lending B WEMBROERRNEREEBNE
arrangements with financial instfitutions. If the Group were AP - EAKEER T Y - RIT
to breach the covenants, the bank loans would become BRI A ERAEE - X&EEE
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its HIE T WRBRONETIBR - FAR
compliance with these covenants. Further details of the SERDHECEREE TENFS - &
Group's management of liquidity risk are sef out in Note SIRHMIEE34(b) - R—F—HF+_-H
34(b). As at 31 December 2015, none of the covenants =+—H ' E@RHEBEENZBILER
relating to bank loans had been breached (2014: Nil). ER(ZZE—F : &) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

BT 85 25 BT ()
27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 27 ENRIREERE
2015 2014
—E-I1F —EF-F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Trade payables e BRIR
— related parties — AR 132,460 166,188
— third parties — == 658,254 515,946
Bills payable AN 61,620 17,769
852,334 699,903
All trade and bills payables are expected to be settled MERNERERBERAEN —FAE
within one year or are repayable on demand. BEHIRERER o
The ageing analysis of trade and bills payables, based on ERNERRRERER A HANRRON
invoice date, is as follows: R
2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETT
Within 1 year —FRw 846,567 687,958
Over 1 year but within 2 years —FRE-FA 2,685 3,873
Over 2 years but within 3 years ZFRBRE=ZFA 534 Q67
Over 3 years =F1% 2,548 7,105

852,334 699,903
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

B 765 g 3 B & ()

28 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

28 FREMAREMENKE

2015 2014
—Z-1fF —T-lF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBF T ARETT
Receipt in advance FalRIA
— related parties — Bl 19,644 61
— third parties =H=7% 80,632 80,920
Inferest payable eI RIS 5,909 22,197
Payables for staff related costs FE B TR A 121,864 105,740
Payables for acquisition of property, plant and BEYE BELRE HE
equipment and lease prepayments T FRIAH FE S FOR 66,702 37,989
Other tax payables E A fE S A IR 53,628 61,632
Payables for sales commission FEfTEERE 19,017 18,171
Payables for royalty fees e R EEAE
— related parties — Al 30,982 25,631
— third parties == 1,290 1,068
Deferred income (Note 30) RIEW S (FEES0) 7,332 7,332
Others Hih 61,047 51,215
468,047 411,956

All accrued expenses and other payable are expected to be
settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(a) CURRENT TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

PrETERE A R EMEMRAERR —F
NEEHILBREE -

29 SOt BN R RIEH

(a) BBRARERMRFR -

REPRESENTS:

2015 2014
—E-EF —T—mE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T ARBTIT
At 1 January WR—H—H (7,179) 1,135
Provision for the year NG g (66,635) (66,489)
Income tax paid B SFTS 53,937 58,175
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (19,877) (7,179)

Representing: L -
Income tax payable PR RIS 1 (19,877) (7,179)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

29 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FlNANCIAL POS|TION (Continued)

(b) DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

()

RECOGNISED
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) are
as follows:

29 SO BARRKRAFHAER @

(b)

CEREERRIENAR

EEREAE/ (B AR DS
mF :

Fair vlue

Provision for Available- adjustment

impcirment  Defered ~ for-sole  Unrealised  on business
ofassets income  securifies profits combinafion ~ Others Totol

ERAHH

BERE itHE  KERN  AAEE

BE  EEME &% ME il At GE
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'OOO  RMB'OOO  RMB'OO0  RMB'0C0  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARNTR ARETR ARMTRT ARETR
At T January 2014 RZZ-ME-A—-H 7977 13748 (3,409 9,321 = 5937 33,574
[Charged)/ credited to profit or loss FEEGIR)/FA (1,252) (1,402) - 513 - (2,071} (4.212)
Charged fo reserve TR - - (3,398) - - - (3,398)
At 31 December 2014 RIB-MET-A=+-H 6725 12,346 (6,807) 9,834 = 3,800 25964
At T January 2015 RZZ2-n%-A—H 6,725 12,346 (6,807) 9,834 - 3,866 25964
Credited/(charged) fo profi or loss ERHTA/ (%) 634 (3,229) - (3,272) - (1,286) (7,153)
Charged to reserve TR IETIS - - [7,660) - - - (7.660)
Through business combination PELHARE - - - - (709) - (709)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RFT-A=1-H 7,359 IN7  (14,467) 6,562 (709) 2,580 10,442
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED (c) FHERHEERFETE

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2[r], the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assefs in respect of cumulative tax losses of cerfain
subsidiaries amounting to RMB45,062,000 (2014:
RMB7,126,000] as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdictions of
the subsidiaries. The unutilised tax losses in these
subsidiaries can be carried forward up fo five years
from the year in which the loss was originated to offset
future taxable profits. At 31 December 2015, the
Group's unutilised tax losses will be expired in 2019 to

2020.

IRMT 2 PR ER IR 2 SR -
REBWBRBNHEEETAR
REEFAIHEMNABBERARERE
B - DR b AN S [ s 2R o B 4 PR
BRI REBMARKA45062,0007T
(ZZE—WF : AR%7,126,000
TC) B RIE TR B R R LB IR
BE - MBARMNRMNAREEE
AREZREBRFES &2 THE
BREF - BEEBREERIE
RZZE—RAF+-A=+—H &
SENAMARBERLR -F
—HhFE_Z_ZTEHHIE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

30 DEFERRED INCOME

2015 2014

—E-I1F —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Government grants AT D 35,428 52,129
Royalty fees BT RE 20,167 26,067
Rental income e WA 5,184 5616
Less: within one year (Note 28) o —F AR (KIEE28) (7,332) (7,332)
53,447 76,480

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME AND
PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF DOMESTIC SHARES
AND H SHARES

Pursuant to the resolutions regarding the Employee Stock
Ownership Scheme and private placement of domestic
shares and H shares passed at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 19 October 2015, the Company
completed the private placement of 30,783,000 domestic
shares and 11,869,000 H shares (the “Private Placement”),
for the purpose of implementing the Employee Stock
Ownership Scheme, on 18 December 2015.

(a) EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME
Key terms of the Employee Stock Ownership Scheme
(the “Scheme”) are set out below:

e Target participants of the Scheme shall be core
personnel playing a crucial role in the Company’s
overall performance and mid and long-term
development.

e Units of the Scheme which equate equal
portions of entilements to the Scheme divided in
accordance with the number of the shares of the
Company held. Each scheme unit corresponds to
one share of the Company.

e Shares to be subscribed for under the Scheme
shall be derived from the Private Placement.

30,783,000 domestic shares and 1,205,000
H shares shall be subscribed for by the Scheme.

31 EIRRFAENFLHEERNE
IR HAR

BREL-Z-AF+ATAABRRER
AREEZBENEABE THKREM
FRFBEANERSHERIRZE R
Z-HF+ZA+N\B  ARFREHR
BTIRBFEEN  TRIFLFAEE
30,783,000 E AT 1,869,000/
HER (TIERRBLE )

(a) EIfSREHE
B T8I (TG ]) MBIk
REIIAT -

s AFEMBRZLEERR/ER
RENEBFELPRMER
PEEZEMANZOAE -

o FHENBERAFETEEN
BRUBREBEARRAFENORNG
gedly - BEFIANERE
RARE—IBAD -

e AFHBETHBROHEBBIR
MEERE - N8 ER
#% 30,783,000 & W & B
1,205,000t HA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

31 EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME AND 31 EIRRABENFLHEERNE

PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF DOMESTIC SHARES B B HAR ()
AND H SHARES (Continued)
(a) EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME (a) BIfsReatEe)
(Continued)
e A total of four limited partnerships will be o ARRBRIMNRERAE

established to hold the domestic shares to be
issued under the Scheme. The number of limited
partners to limited partnership 1 shall be 12 and
shall include directors and senior management
personnel of the Group. limited partnership 1
shall hold 14,252,000 domestic shares under
the Scheme. The number of limited partners to the
remaining three limited partnerships shall be 143
and shall include other key management personnel
and core employees. The remaining three limited
partnership shall hold 16,531,000 domestic

shares under the Scheme.

e The limited partnership to be established by the .
general manager shall be the general partner of
the above four limited partnerships.

e 1,205,000 H shares offered by the Company .
under the Private Placement shall be subscribed by
the Company’s two foreign directors.

e The issuing price for the domestic shares and .

H shares is HKD7.15 per share.

® The term of the Scheme is ten years. The lock- .
up period is the first 24 months of the term and
the shares are free from lock-up in the following
96 months (the “Post Lock-up Period”). During
the lock-up period, the limited partnerships and

foreign directors shall not sell or transfer the shares
held by them.
® The scheme holder shall enjoy the initial units .

under the Scheme based on his/her capital
contribution.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

31

EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME AND
PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF DOMESTIC SHARES
AND H SHARES (Continued)

(a) EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME

(Continued)

During the Post Llock-up Period, the management
committee of the Scheme determine whether the
scheme holder is eligible for vesting, the actual
amount that ultimately could be vested to such
scheme holder and the corresponding amount of
the capital contribution to the limited partnership.

If @ scheme holder resigns from the Company, the
general partner of the relevant limited partnership
is entifled to purchase or designate another person
to purchase the shares held by the scheme holder
at a consideration of the actual capital contribution
made by such scheme holder (without interest) (the
"Repurchase Condition”).

Upon approval by the Board, the management
committee shall be responsible for the
implementation of repurchase and granting of
scheme units that have been reserved under the
Scheme as authorised by the Board.

(b) PRIVATE PLACEMENT

(i)

Shares issued under the Scheme

An aggregate of 30,783,000 domestic shares
have been allotted and issued by the Company on
18 December 2015 at the subscription price of
HKD7.15 per share to VWuhan Ruitu Management
Consulting Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership) (“Limited Partnership”) and the three
other limited partnerships established and owned
by selected employees of the Company under the
Scheme. The Limited Partnership is wholly and
beneficially owned by four directors and certain
senior management of the Company.

An aggregate of 1,205,000 H shares have
been allotted and issued by the Company on
18 December 2015 at the subscription price
HKD7.15 per share to the Company's two foreign
directors.

31 EIRFRFENEAHEERE
B R HER )

(a) BIfsReatEIe)

(b)

REEEHA - AFFEMERR
BERTEFEARENAE
5B IR - AR A BRI &Rt &
REANEBERSBAUANEER
EREENAERLERE -

(BRI ESREPNZNNGIE 3

HHEEREBEENEBER
ABREAZEFEANER
HERE(TFNE) RHER
BT R —BAATEERA
FBAARANRRE([EERF
1) e

RESGHER EEZBE
AABENBIRETRESER
RAAGTEIRB HIRT B0 #E -

FLORMES

(i)

RESTHRITERTHORS
R-ZE—AF+-_HAH+NB "
ARABIARBEER71S
BTHERBETRERAHR
30,783,000/ N & AR T )=
ZEEREAAREE(AR
BREER)([ERABLE])
;R=FEMBEREBEEIRE
ETIRBAEBARRRETE
BIRMNEER) BRER
CEHARANIZRESTNE
SREEBABRENEGRHE
Ao

RZZE—RAF+=A+NAR -
ARG URBEFR715
BT ERBITREEA X
1,205,000 B H A% F 2 A & /Y
MBINEESE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

31 EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP SCHEME AND 31 EIRRABENFLHEERNE
PRIVATE PLACEMENT OF DOMESTIC SHARES IR B HAR i)

AND H SHARES (Continued)

(b) PRIVATE PLACEMENT (Continued) (b)
(ii) Placing

In addition, in order to meet the minimum public
float requirements under the Llisting Rules, an
aggregate of 10,664,000 H shares have been
allotted and issued by the Company on 18
December 2015 at the placing price of HKD7.15
per share to four independent professional
institutional investors.

(c) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (c)
The fair value of the 30,783,000 domestic shares and
1,205,000 H shares issued under the Scheme on 18
December 2015 is determined to be HKD7.15 per
share which is equal to the issue price of the shares.
Accordingly, no equity-settled share-based payment
expense is recognised.

The fair value was valued by the directors with
reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent appraiser based on a binomial option
pricing model.

Fair value of domestic shares and H shares

Fair value at measurement date HKD7.15
Share price at measurement date HKD8.50
Exercise price HKDZ.15
Discount rafe 16.00%
Volatility 30.32%
Risk-free interest rate 0.46%

The volatility is based on the historic volatilities of
comparable companies. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

FAPEE (1)

(i) ®E
AN - BT A EMRAD &
BARFRENHRE KT
—hAFtZAtNAB ' ARH
NRBEFR7 15BTHER
BT RS 10,604,000
BRHIR T 2B EXREEIR
B -

LREEME
RZZE—RAF+ZA+N\B ' Ri&
NEFEI B 178 30,783,000 18 A&
Az A01,205,000 i HRH) A 7t BB
%SEEI‘HX7 5% —rHEAHQ
R EITER - Bt - WEERD
gﬁEiJ"%E’JMﬂxTﬁt’j%ﬁ*’ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ

EEH

NRBERHEFSEBIUMEEM
RiIE_HPEEERADANGE
WELEITHE

RERKHRH A REE

AHAEER AR EE 71587
AHREERTISEE 8.50/8 7T

RHEEER 7. 1587
frins 16.00%
T ES 30.32%

[\ B ) 2= 0.46%

BB E IR R A FE I
BT AATERSNEAERR
MARE  AEEAVEALBE
kst -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

32 BEX - RARFA

(a) EREKBIHEE

32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) MOVEMENTS IN COMPONENTS OF EQUITY

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statements of changes in equity. Details of the changes
in the Company's individual components of equity are

set out below:

AEERAEm S EAKREED

H9) £ B K 46 ek 0 S &R

ARG

BB B BYX - A2 FERI AR
R B BFEMT :

Statutory
Share Capifal surpls  Fairvalue  Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
AREE
BA  EXNER  AERB e RERR  ExEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note 32(c)  (Note 32(d))  (Note 32(d))  (Note 32(d)]
(MzE32())  (PzEd2d)  (RsE32d))  (Fsk32(d)
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME-FA-H 479 593 608,922 = 6,096 263,535 1,358,146
Changes in equily: RE2T
Total comprehensive income for  AFEE AN A
e year = = = 19,250 425592 444 842
Appropriation B - - 91,467 - (91,467) -
Dividends declared SRRA = = = - (73,857) 173,857
Issue of new shares, net offissue  E{THR(FIBETER)
expenses (Note 32(c](il (B=E32(cfi]) 159870 732,539 - - - 892,409
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-F=+-H 639,463 1,341,461 91,467 25,346 523,803 2,621,540
At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-f-H 639,463 1,341,461 91,467 25,346 523,803 2,621,540
Changes in equily: BiH28:
Total comprehensive income AEERANGER
for the year - - - 43,405 475,108 518,513
Appropriation ER - - 77,080 - (77,080) -
Dividends declared IR - - - - (106,151)  (106,151)
Shares issued under the Employee 1R 8 THIRGT BT TRIR
Stock Ownership Scheme (BIZE31 (b))
(Note 31{b]i 31,988 157,524 - - - 189,512
Placing of shares (Note 31(blfil]  BfA & (BzE31(bli) 10,664 51,13 - - - 61,777
At 31 December 2015 R-E-RE+-A=1+-H 682,115 1,550,098 168,547 68,751 815,680 3,285,191
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

BA RS SRR M RE ()
32 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Confinved) 32 EX - REANRA @)
(b) DIVIDENDS (b) BRI
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) FEESFEAARRESZHEA
Company attributable to the year # R
2015 2014
= —FmF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBET T AEM?E
Final dividend proposed affer the end A& BIRZIRFHE D IRAIAR
of reporting period of RMBO. 174 per  ERZFI SRR LB AR
ordinary share (2014: RMBO. 166 0174 (=E—m4&E :

per ordinary share| I EEAR A RO 1667T) 118,688 106,151
The final dividends proposed after the end of the R EHIRR e D KA K
reporting period have not been recognised as a BRAIARRBERARERRE
liability at the end of the reporting period. (o
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) REEAERNEQRIER
Company attributable to the previous financial BFEALEMBEFENRF
year, approved during the year
2015 2014
=i —TmeF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR /\E@FFE

.........................................................................................................................................

Final dividend declared in respect of ~ E4& /AR EEFKFEERN
the previous financial year Xﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ 106,151 73,857
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued

Bk

32 CAP'TAL, RESERVES AND DlVlDENDS (Continued)

B & ()

32 BEX - MEANBRN

(c) SHARE CAPITAL (c) BRA
2015 2014
—E-HF —TmEF
Number of Number of
shares shares
G EE arard=
‘000 RMB’000 ‘000 RMB'000
TR ARE®TRT Tk ARETT
Authorised: EiREE:
Ordinary shares of R (ZRmEEA
RMB1.00 each R#1.007T) 682,115 682,115 639,463 639,463
Ordinary shares, issued and B #TRHEE]
fully paid: B
At 1 January R—H—H 639,463 639,463 479 593 479,593
Shares issued under the public  ABAZE/THIRL (D
offering (note i) (B &ED) - - 159,870 159,870
Shares issued under the private  FEARRR (DAL E
placement (note ii) (B &Eii) 42,652 42,652 = =
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 682,115 682,115 639,463 639,463

(i)

Shares issued under the public offering

In December 2014, the Company issued
159,870,000 H shares with par value of
RMB1.00 each at a price of HKD7.39 per
share by way of global initial public offering
of the Company’s H shares to Hong Kong
and overseas investors. The Company raised
approximately HKD1,130,633,000 (equivalent
to RMB892,409,000] in total, net of share issuing
expenses. The excess of the net proceeds over the
nominal value of the shares issued were credited
to capital reserve.

(i)

AR EITHR 7
RZZE—HWFE+=A ' AR
AEBREKRERARBEITH
XA 7.398 T (FKmE
BEARE].00T)HES MG
SMEE & 317 159,870,000
BEH - BRE EWBETE
B ARREEEBFEBELY
1,130,633,000% 7T (14 A
R #8092 409,000t ) o kit
SEEeBAREAENSHE
FFARREHEARTE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

32 CAP'TAL, RESERVES AND DlVlDENDS (Continued)

(C) SHARE CAPITAL (Continuved)

(ii)

Private placement

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the
extraordinary general meeting held on 19
October 2015, the Company completed the
private placement of 30,783,000 domestic
shares and 11,869,000 H shares on 18
December 2015. The Company raised
approximately RMB251,289,000 in fofal, net of
issuing expenses. The excess of the net proceeds
over the nominal value of the shares issued were
credited fo capital reserve. Further details of the
private placement are set out in Note 31.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
fo one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assefs.

(d) NATURE AND PURPOSES OF RESERVES

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the Company's share
premium, being the excess of the net proceeds/
consideration received over the nominal value of
the shares issued.

Statutory surplus reserve

According to the Company’'s Articles of
Association, when distributing each year’s affertax
profits, the Company is required fo fransfer 10% of
its net profit to its statutory surplus reserve until the
statutory surplus reserve balance reaches 50% or
more of the Company'’s registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Note 2(u).

32 & - REBRRA
(C) HQZIK\Z

(ii)

5

il

FLOMESE

REL-_FT-—RAFTATA
FlRERREEETZBED
RE R-_T—RF+-A
TR ARATKIER
B B & 30,783,000 Ik A &
fix #111,869,000 Az H i% &)
LEBE - KRELTHET
ER ARBHRHBEEARK
251,289,000 - it & &
B2 BBREREMNSETA
RRARNEARRTE - BREAFER
FARCE MR IEF PN REST -

P BB FR 76 e W ER TS B U Y B
YEERERRRRE LR

BRHA-BRAR-ZNL 2 8EE

én
o~ °

PR & BAE D15 AR R Rk

BEHES AR SR -

(d) FEfmpEEMRE

(i)

(ii)

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

32 CAP'TAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS (Continued) 32 X - ﬁ%{ﬁﬂ]&iﬂ]?

(d) NATURE AND PURPOSES OF RESERVES (d) fEfmeYE R MAE

(Continued)

(iv) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2(g).

(e) DISTRIBUTABILITY OF RESERVES

According to the Company’s Artficles of Association,
net profit as reported in the statutory financial
statements prepared in accordance with the accounting
rules and regulations of the PRC can only be distributed
as dividends after allowances have been made for the
following:

(i)  Making up prior years’ cumulative losses, if any;

i) Allocations to the statutory surplus reserve as set

out in Note 32(d)(ii) above; and

(iii) Allocations to the discretionary surplus fund if
approved by the shareholders.

The distributable profits are the lesser of the net profit
of the year as determined in accordance with the
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC, and the
net profit determined in accordance with IFRSs. As
at 31 December 2015, the aggregate amount of
reserves available for disfribution to equity shareholders
of the Company was RMB1,124,692,000 (2014:
RMB/33,833,000).

After the end of the reporting period the directors
proposed a final dividend of RMBO.174 (2014
RMBO.166 per ordinary share) per ordinary
share, amounting to RMB118,688,000 (2014:
RMB106,151,000) (Note 32(b)). This dividend has
not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

(iv) DAREERE
ARBERBEESNHREHR
IR HEEESN A EE
REABHFE LRBHE
2(g)PrEks B R ER G IR

(e) fEfmEYT S iKTE B

REARRER - RPEGEL
FOEBRELHEE M IE MR P T2
BB FANBER AL THIE
BERIERSBRADIK :

) WEBEFEMNREEN
B):

lii) o BZE S &E32(d)(ii) BTk
A ERE &

(i) BRER#BE  PEEEERFRE -

A E R AR FI R 18 % FI
18 ARER RS ER RERETE
RFFE - RIBIRBIBR B RS R 5 2%
BIE E R FFE (AR D E BAEE) o
R-ZZE—RFE+_A=+—H =&
REMRFEEF A RRERE D IR S EE
ABARKEL,124,692,000L (==
—pusF : AR¥E733,833,0007L) °

RBEREK  EFEEZOIRAKR
HRMNEREBRARKO.174
T(ZZE—WF: 8REBR
AR®0166TT) » HEF ARK
118,688,000t (=& — M :
A R ¥ 106,151,000 7t ) ( Bt &
32(b)) ° &% AR HA B ) A R ¥R 5 1A
RERBAIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
B 75 SR 3R B R ()

(f) CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (f) BERF

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of adjusted net debtto-equity ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits. The
adjusted net debtHo-equity ratio at 31 December 2015
and 2014 was as follows:

AEEEREANTIZAMNRRE
AEBEAFELE  KMESE
£ 2 B 7K T AR RO E o AR 755 B AR
TAREKRANESRENT N - &
BRBRREHER  LAEMHE
FEREE R A A o

AEEEERTEHABINERLERN
B NEAFBRSEEKTAEE
R E S R [ R B AR E AN AR
PRtV BZNRERE 2 BERS
Ty WA LN E W
BANRIE -

REBULAERFABEHEERN L X
EEHEEAERE -t E - £F
BRABHNEESRBEERERE
PR EEBYMBETHEREMERN
HE RN ZE—RAFR_FT—UF
+-A=+—H K £ARFEEY
BRI

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB'0O00

ARET T AREFIT

Borrowings EEN

— current bank loans —REIRITER 1,636,609 1,465,229
— non-current bank loans —IEMENERTTE K 820,820 1,018,878
less: cash and cash equivalents B ReRIReEEY (2,047,125) (2,010,953
bank deposits EHAITE SR (205,000) -
Adjusted net debt SR FAE TS 205,304 473,154
g s 3,731,675 | 2,911,491
Adjusted net debtto-equity ratio KRR FEEHERL R 6% 16%

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

AEEHEBBTINEFLHEN
MTE e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

33 TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY

(i)

Factoring arrangement

As part of its normal business, the Group entered
info frade receivables factoring arrangement (the
"Factoring Arrangement”), mainly took place
in the second half of the year, and tronsferred
certain of its trade receivables to banks in the
PRC. As at 31 December 2015, the Group
transferred certain trade receivables to banks
under Factoring Arrangement (“Trade Receivables
under Factoring”) with carrying amounts of

RMB62,815,000 (2014: RMB332,828,000).

Pursuant to the terms of the Factoring Arrangement,
100% of the trade receivable shall be transferred
to the bank. The bank shall pay a consideration
equal to 90% of trade receivable factored
immediately. By the end of the period of the
Factoring Arrangement, normally 12 months, the
bank shall pay the remaining 10% of the trade
receivable. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has fransferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Trade Receivables under
Factoring, and accordingly, it has derecognised
the full amounts of the Trade Receivables under
Factoring.

Trade Receivables under Factoring had a
remaining maturity of 12 months at 31 December
2015. As at 31 December 2015, the maximum
exposure of loss from the Group's continuing
involvement in the Trade Receivables under
Factoring equal to the remaining 10% of the trade
receivable which amounted to RMBS8,827,000
(2014: RMB45,728,000) (Note 23). In the
opinion of the directors, the fair values of the
Group's continuing involvement in the Trade
Receivables under Factoring are not materially
different from their carrying amounts at 31

December 2015 and 2014.
During the year ended 31 December 2015,

total losses recognised on the date of transfer of
the Trade Receivables under Factoring amounted
to RMB1,610,000 (2014: RMB14,010,000).
Income and expenses recognised from the
continuing involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively, are not significant.

33 ERMEENER
(a) 2ERLEBZHENREMEE

(i)

RIEBZHE
EBHEEFEBHN—IHH © &K
=@ E TR RRIB L HE
(MMREZHE])  HERS—R
REFETEERE  WHEFEH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

(a) TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE
DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY (Confinved)

(a) 2FERULEZHEEREMNETE
(ii) Derecognised bills (||) KRIFRAER

The Group discounted or endorsed certain
bank bills receivable to certain banks in the
PRC or the Group's suppliers during the year
("Derecognised Bills") which were derecognised
at 31 December 2015. The carrying amount of
such discounted bills at 31 December 2015 was
RMB55,245,000 (2014: RMB297,721,000).
The carrying amount of such endorsed bills at
31 December 2015 was RMB190,183,000
(2014: RMB124,948,000). The Derecognised
Bills had a remaining maturity within 6 months
at 31 December 2015. In accordance with the
law of Negotiable Instruments in the PRC, the
holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right of
recourse against the Group if the banks default
payment. Accordingly, the Group has continuing
involvement in the Derecognised Bills. In the
opinion of the directors, the Group has fransferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to
the Derecognised Bills, and accordingly, it has
derecognised the full amount of the Derecognised

Bills.

The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
continuing involvement in the Derecognised Bills
equal to their full amount. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair value of the Group's continuing
involvement in the Derecognised Bills is not
significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, total
losses recognised on the date of transfer of the
discounted bills amounted to RMB2,350,000
(2014: RMB10,110,000). No gain or loss was
recognised on the date of transfer of the endorsed
bills. No income or expenses were recognised
from the continuing involvement, both during the
year or cumulatively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

33 TRANSFERS OF FlNANClAL ASSETS (Continued)

(b) TRANSFERRED FINANCIAL ASSETS THAT ARE
NOT DERECOGNISED IN THEIR ENTIRETY
In addition fo the Derecognised Bills as disclosed in
Note 33(allii) above, the Group had certain discounted
bills and endorsed bills with carrying amounts of
RMB4,622,000 and RMB42,331,000 at 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil and RMB44,185,000)
respectively. In the opinion of the directors, the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such discounted bills
and endorsed bills, and accordingly, it continued to
recognise the full carrying amounts of discounted bills
and endorsed bills and the associated bank loans and
frade payables seftled. Subsequent fo the endorsement,
the Group did not refain any rights on the use of the
discounted bills and endorsed bills, including the sale,
fransfer or pledge of the discounted bills and endorsed
bills to any other third parties. At 31 December 2015,
the aggregate carrying amount of the discounted bills
and trade payables settled by the endorsed bills during
the year to which the banks or the suppliers have
recourse were RMB4,622,000 and RMB42,331,000
(2014: Nil and RMB44,185,000). In the opinion of
the directors, the difference between the fair value of
the transferred assets and the associated liabilities is not
significant.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The
Group is also exposed fo equity price risk arising from its
equity investments in other entities. The Group's exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies
and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are
described below.

33 TRMEENER )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR M ERMIANEREREENAR
VALUES OF FlNANClAL |NSTRUMENTS (Continued) E{E?

(a) CREDIT RISK (a) BB

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
at bank, availablefor-sale debt securities and trade
and other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposure to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank and
available-for-sale debt securities are deposited in or
purchased from the stated-owned/controlled or listed
PRC banks which the directors assessed the credit risk
to be insignificant.

The Group's major customers included the three major
state-owned felecommunications network operators in
the PRC and the Group's joint ventures. During the year
ended 31 December 2015, sales to the three major
state-owned telecommunications network operators and
the Group's joint ventures accounted for approximately

31% and 28% (2014: 29% and 24%) of the Group's

fotal revenue respectively.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk.
Significant concentrations of credit risk arise primarily
when the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. As at 31 December 2015, 26% and 67%
(2014: 35% and 73%) of trade receivables was due
from the Group's largest customer and the Group's
five largest customers, respectively. Entities which are
known to the Group to be under common control with
the customer are considered a single customer in the
above analysis.

The Group does not provide any guarantee which
would expose the Group tfo credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in Notes 22 and 23.

AEENEERREIZRERITE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 TRTENSREREENAR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued) BEEw
(b) LIQUIDITY RISK (b) RENE LM

The Company is responsible for the Group's overall
cash management, including the short term investment
of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group's
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants (if any), fo
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's non-derivative financial liabilities, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
confractual rates or, if floating, based on rafes current

ARBEEASENERESE
2 aRReRfNERRENE
fEERARNAEFREFRL (PR
fERRBRREARKELR - &
FEESREZGORZ) - AKEDH
BRREHERRBESFER - U
EREMAEREZRNRE(ME)
ARG MRS RENT
HERSSERNEEES  RSES
RE S BB AHIRHTEHOER
g mREHMNMRESNNRS

TREH TARENETESHE
BERHREHRORIERE OHIR - %
ZEBMBERNFTHRFTARSR
EB(BREATONEH(NEZEE)
TR RS RRE N KBRS
FOREAEEAZNN&F B H

af the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date RE -
the Group can be required to pay.
2015
“E-If

Confractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANFHBRERELE

Morethan  More than

Within -~ 1yearbut 2 years but
Tyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

- -F0E WENE
gAS  EmEAT  BEFUT  BFAL g HBELE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR AR%TR ARETR ARMTR ARMTx
Bank loans RITER 1,668,203 340,028 469,544 44045 2521820 2,457,429
Trade ond bills payables EAERREE 852,334 - - - 852,334 852,334

Accrued expenses and BRERREMENTE

ofher payables 274,430 - - - 274,430 274,430
Tofal At 2,794,967 340,028 469,544 44045 3648584 3,584,193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 34 TRTENSREREENQR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinved) BEw
(b) LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) (b) HENEERMBE (&)
2014
—T-lEF

Contractual undiscounted cash oufflow

ANFHBREREEE

More than  More than

Within - 1 yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than lessthan ~ More than Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

—FR —FHE ®ENL
ZE  EMEAT  ERFAT  RENE CE
RMB'OOO  RMBO00  RMB'O00  RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARMTE ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR AR¥TR

.................................................................................................................................................

Bank loans RITEH 1,512,787 1,000,945 37,139 - 2550871 2,484,107
Trade ond bills payables EREFLREE 699,903 - - - 699903 499,903
Accrued expenses and BREAREMENTE

other payables 221,723 = = = 221,723 221,723

Tolal At 2434413 1,000,945 37,139 3,472,497 3,405,733
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FlNANClAL |NSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's inferest rafe risk arises primarily from bank
loans. Bank loans issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and variable rate bank loans in order to manage
its interest rate risks.

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group's bank loans at the end of the reporting period.

34 TRTENSREREENAR

E{E({F?

(c) FIEmPz

AEEONEREREZRERTE
R o NGB T B X E 5K A
XESRENRER -

RTEBRAKENNERER - K&
EEHEESEZBEEMNREFZE
MEERNES -

TFREELARBRTERR RS
REVFI SRR o

2015 2014
“E-AF —Z—mF

Effective Carrying Fffective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
BRFI= RESHE BRI = ARE S E
% RMB’000 % RMB'000
% ARBT % ARETT
Fixed rate bank loans & E M EIRITE R 0.90%-2.65% 1,027,187 = 1.95%2.65% 293,690
Flooﬂng rafe bank loans TFENF R IRITE 0.72%-3.92% 1,430,242 1.54%4.43% 2,190,417
At 31 December Wt+-—B=+—8H 2,457,429 2,484,107

At the end of the reporting period, it is estimated that
a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have (decreased)/increased the Group's profit
after tax and refained earnings by approximately
RMB12,157,000 (2014: RMB18,484,000).

Other components of consolidated equity would not be
affected by the change in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group's profit affer tax
(and retained earnings) and other components of
consolidated equity that would arise assuming that
the change in inferest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period. The impact is estimated as
an annualised impact on interest expense of such
a change in interest rates. The sensitivity analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2014,

RBERR - BFENXER T
P& 100MEE RS - hn EFATA H A & 8
RIFTE - REEREMNERKRE
BN ERRE L CR D), EIHAR
#12,157,0007c(—F—M4 : A
R#18,484,0007T) °

FERENEMEXRES TERE
MEZEHNTE -

PA 8RR D AT R ER A R B A
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B(MREEN) A RERA R E
AR B D S H UL ANBS &8 - N
B B (& FE (R E BN ) A MR
ERENEMEXRBY BN
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FlNANClAL |NSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) CURRENCY RISK
The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales, purchases and borrowings which give
rise to receivables, payables and bank loans that are
denominated in foreign currency, i.e. a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations in which
the fransactions relate. The currencies giving rise fo this

risk are primarily United States dollars ("USD"), Euros
("EUR") and Hong Kong dollars ("HKD").

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities
The Group did not hedge its foreign currency
exposure.

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and
the PRC government may at its discretion restrict
access fo foreign currencies for current account
fransactions in the future. Changes in the foreign
exchange control system may prevent the Group
from satisfying sufficient foreign currency demands
and the Group may not be able to pay dividends
in foreign currencies to ifs shareholder.

(ii) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's exposure
at the end of the reporting period to currency
risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity in which they
relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of
the exposure are shown in RMB, translated using
the spot rate at the end of the reporting period.

34 cRIEANSHEAREENAR
B{E )

(d) ®=¥mpE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)

B 765 g 3 B & ()

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinved)

(d) CURRENCY RISK (Confinued)
(ii) Exposure to currency risk (Continved)
The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies

34 iglﬂﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ

(d) =R
(i) EWEMIEE
A& B SN R B BB S (LA A

[expressed in RMB'000) E¥FTHIR)
2015
—E-EF
USD EUR HKD Others
EYv BT ik Hity
Trade and bills receivables  FEURBRZN K& 2% 154,708 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents & KRS EEY 593,724 65,476 108,779 3,431
Bank loans IRITER (481,527) (1,716,021) - -
Trade and bills payables  FEfHBR R &R & (212,272) (147,941) - (499)
Net exposure B\ F 58 54,633 (1,798,486) 108,779 2,932
2014
—Z—mF
WMD) EUR HKD Others
xT BT e Hiy
Trade and bills receivables  FEURBEFR 2 =45 66,228 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & KIRSEEY 40,655 30,390 376,863 -
Bank loans IRITEK (2,178,431) (305,6706) - -
Trade and bills payables — FEfTERF KL =& (81,676) (134,669 - (181]
Net exposure [B B =R [2,153,224) [409,955) 376,863 (181)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FlNANClAL |NSTRUMENTS (Continued)

M e TANEREAREENAA
E{Eiz—#?

(d) CURRENCY RISK (Continued)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis
The followings are the foreign currency exchange
rates applied:

(d) S=%EEE )
(iii) HREDW
TREFFTEE AR INEE R -

Average rate Reporting date spot rate

FHER BERREER
2015 2014 2015 2014
—2-1% —F-mF —2-IF —TmEF
usb =S 6.2307 6.1453 6.4936 6.1190
EUR BT 6.9460 8.1255 7.0952 7.4556
HKD B 0.8037 0.7923 0.8378 0.7889

A 5% strengthening of RMB against the following
currencies as at the respective reporting period
end dates would have increased/(decreased) the
Group's profit affer tax and refained earnings by
the amounts shown below. Other components of
equity would not be affected by the strengthening
of RMB against foreign currencies.

REBERRARBLHUTE
BRESHEEMEMNBERIRE
Mg O L7
R o R R)E A AR E D T
EXIAREEERINEIEE
RZE

2015 2014

—E-AHF —EF-E

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%T T AREFIT

Usb E~Vin (2,065) 90,961
EUR BT 76,223 16,053
HKD B (4,623) (16,016)
Others Eb (108) 8
69,427 91,006

A 5% weakening of RMB against the above
currencies as at the respective reporting period
end dates would have had the equal but opposite
effect on the above currencies to the amounts
shown above, on the basis that all other variables
remain constant.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinved)

(d) CURRENCY RISK (Continued)
(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis excludes differences that would result
from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations into the Group's presentation
currency.

The 5% change represents management's
assessment of reasonably possible changes in
foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual reporting period end date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

(e) FAIR VALUES

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the respective reporting period end dates on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

e level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date.

e level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which
fail to meet level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available.

e level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

34 TRTENSREREENAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Confinued)

(e) FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

34 e TENESHEAREENAA
B{E

(e) 2REEME
RAREBESFENERIA

(Continued) (%)
Fair value hierarchy (Continved) A EBEER @
2015 2014
—EB-a%F —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR®ET T
level 1 FIER
— listed available-for-sale equity — B EWHAEEERS
securities & 106,175 55,109
— listed trading securities —B TN SMHES 1,861 -
level 3 FEIEH
— unlisted availablefor-sale debt — R WA E GRS
securities s 5,000 5,840
113,036 60,949

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, there were no transfers into or out of Level
3. The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as af the end
of the reporting period in which they occur.

The fair values of availobleforsale debt securities
are determined using the discounted cash flow
analysis. The significant unobservable input in the
fair value measurement is the discount rate. As the
maturities of the Group's available-for-sale debt
securities are less than 12 months, the directors
are of the opinion that the impact of discounting
would be insignificant. Any increase/decrease in
the discount rate at 31 December 2015 would
not have significant impact on the Group's other
comprehensive income.

(ii) Fair value of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost are
not materially different from their fair value at 31

December 2015 and 2014.

HE_ZT—HFR_ZT—NF
+-A=+—HLEE IE&
FRAARBEEAEZ=EHRK
BE-EREL - "EEMHK
RREAABEERZEALR
BRENREHTERNEREHE

#EA
=

AIHHEESESNAREE
HRAMRBRERESMAEE
E e AREBEFTENERNTA
BN ABERIRE - ARA
SEMAHEEESESD
HRE AT —@ANLT EFR
BRREETTEKN - R=F
—hE+-A=1+—H ' 8%
R EF TR AEENEA
HRERZTZEEATE -

(i) FROAEEIERNESHMTE
WA REE
7N £ B 322 i 7N ok 8 5 X AR A BR
MEemTEMNEESEEER
TE-RAFM_T-NF+ =
A=+—HBWNARBED T
j(o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

35 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS OUTSTANDING AT

35 HiE

(a) R=—HF+-_A=+—HFMK

31 DECEMBER 2015 NOT PROVIDED FOR f o 35K 1E 4 35 4 &= 0 1 I ZE 1R B
IN THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS WERE AS BERBEMT :
FOLLOWS:
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Contracted for EEIES)
— property, plant and equipment — ¥ - BEKEE 202,009 85,884
— investment in joint ventures —REERANKRE 226,840 -
Authorised but not confracted EREERTL
— property, plant and equipment —WE - BERRE 741,881 274,480
— lease prepayments —ENEEFER 43,950 52,200
— investment in joint ventures —RELERANKRE - 45,134
1,214,680 457,698

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015, THE TOTAL FUTURE
MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS UNDER NON-

(b) R=B—HE%E+=-A=+—0 8
WA R EEE R R R

CANCELLABLE OPERATING LEASES ARE HREHASCSREENT :
PAYABLE AS FOLLOWS:

2015 2014
—E-4fF —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFR ARETT
Within 1 year —FR 5,293 2,526
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRELFAN 2,710 1,152
8,003 3,678

The Group leases certain buildings through non-
cancellable operating leases. These operating leases
do not confain provisions for contingent lease rentals.
None of the rental agreements contain escalation
provisions that may require higher future rental
payments.

AEEBBTARENEEHEER
RETET BUKEHENRE

HEHEHSHER -

HE =L

BEHAAEEERAKREZRERHESE

AR IE 3L
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EXBHARS
(a) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (a) BEAMEZXS
The Group had the following material transactions with BE_Z-AF+_-_A=+—HL
related parties during the year ended 31 December FE AEEEBBSETHER
2015: RPWT :
2015 2014
—E-EF —TmF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Sales of goods to S m
— China Huaxin — A EEE 590 1,450
— subsidiary of Yangtze Communications —RIIBEARBEAF - 11
— subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary —DrakafI B A T R R %
of Draka NG 71,535 62,300
— joinf ventures NG 1,960,457 1,534,820
Purchase of goods from BEEmBE
— subsidiaries of Draka —DrakaBI 1B A &) 44,926 18,788
— associate o NG| 30,683 26,330
— joint ventures —&5&Ra] 2,140,560 1,647,548
Royalty fees income from BT EERERAR
— joint ventures = /NC]| 5,900 6,300
Rental income from MW AR
— associate — BN T 432 432
— joint venture —&ERA] 368 368
Rental expense to HEEBRT
— associate VNG 360 -
Royalty fees to FRTEERET
— subsidiary of Draka —DrakaHIH B A A 30,982 25,631
loans fo a joint venture ERTaErE 20,000 -

Consideration paid for the acquisition of SRR EE T

NK Wuhan to
— subsidiary of Draka (Note 17(ii)) — Draka B8 B8 2 &) (I EE17(ii) 18,000 -
Note: China Huaxin Post and Telecommunication Economy & ¢ HEREFHELEREHRO(HE
Development Center (“China Huaxin"), VWuhan Yangize #Z ) RERIBEEXEER
Communications Industry Group Co., ltd. ("Yangtze HAERRF ([ RIBIE]) MDraka
Communications”) and Draka Comfeq B.V. ("Draka”) are the Comteq B.V.([Drakal) B4 A A1)
Company's shareholders. As af 31 December 2015, the BRR -R-_ZT—RAFF+-_A=+—
Company was owned as to 26.37%, 17.58% and 26.37% B PEEE - KTB/E MDraka
(2014: 28.12%, 18.76% and 28.12%) by China Huaxin, DBIFBEARRF26.37% ~ 17.58%
Yangize Communications and Draka, respectively. M2637% M B HE(=F — W4 :

28.12% ~ 18.76%M28.12%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED

PARTIES

The Group's outstanding balances with related parties

are as follows:

36 EXBEEERRZ 2

(b) EERBFHHIERE

SR B B R R E R R

2015 2014
—E-AF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AE%?E
Trade and bills receivables JEU R T =
— China Huaxin — I EEE 962 764
— subsidiary of Yangtze Communications —RIBENHER 187 186
— subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary *DrokoE’]ﬁﬁ% T&H%
of Draka VNN 22,154 7,879
— joint ventures —82N T 203,876 204,038
227,179 212,867
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables  #&& + FA{TF % E fib BRI
— subsidiary of Yangtze Communications —RIBENHBAR 2,517 2,517
— subsidiary of Draka —DrakaHI M & A &) 1,602 3,729
— joint ventures = VNG 44,576 39,662
48,695 45,908
Other non-current assets HEaIEREEE
— joint venture —&a%na 20,000 =
Trade and bills payables AN INES
— subsidiaries of Draka — Draka i B A 7] 10,546 1,824
— associate o NG| 11,458 13,052
— joint ventures NG| 110,456 151,312
132,460 166,188
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EXRBABEA R Z ()

(Continued)
(b) OUTSTANDING BALANCES WITH RELATED (b) E2RIEESHOEREE (&)
PARTIES (Continued)
2015 2014
—E-HE —TmEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Accrued expenses and other payables TRtRE A R H e~ RIA
— subsidiaries of Draka —DrakaBI B A &) 30,982 25,652
— associate NG| 432 432
— joinf ventures —5&Aa 25,544 5,940
56,958 32,024
Deferred income BTN S
— associate NG| 4,752 5,184
— joint ventures —5% 1T 14,267 20,167
19,019 25,351
() KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (c) FARERARFHE
REMUNERATION
Key management personnel are those persons HREEASEEMEBUEGE
holding positions with authority and responsibility for HEET - EENEELRE
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the RELA RS A KB E B E
Group, directly or indirectly, including the Company's A BREARFNES -
directors.
Remuneration for key management personnel, including AEBEBRREEAENNS B
amounts paid to the Company’s directors (including WO EBEE N AR RIES (B
chief executive and supervisors) as disclosed in Nofe 9 THERRES)MRBMMEI0
and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed FREXOMERSNEENT ¢
in Note 10, is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-HE —TmEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT
Shortferm employee benefifs EHES RN 31,145 17,036
Postemployment benefits BER 12 1@ 7 688 650
31,833 17,686
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note MEmEEeE st ATBEIRA IR (2
7lal). RKtE7(a)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

36 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36 EXRBABERR S ()

(Continued)

(d) APPLICABILITY OF THE LISTING RULES (d) EREXZAMB(LTRAU) BB

RELATING TO CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
For the year ended 31 December 2015, the following
related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36(a)
above constitute connected transaction or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it
has complied with the disclosure requirements in
accordance with Chapter 14A of the Hong Kong
Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules are provided in section “Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

Sales of goods to

— China Huaxin

— subsidiary of Yangtze Communications

— subsidiaries and fellow subsidiary of Draka
— YOFC Shanghai, a joint venture

Purchase of goods from
— subsidiaries of Draka

- YOFC Shanghai

Royalty fees to
— subsidiary of Draka

Consideration paid for the acquisition of NK VWuhan to
— subsidiary of Draka

In addition, cerfain related party transactions above
constitute continuing connected fransactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However,
these transactions are exempt from the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as they
are below the de minimis threshold under 14A.76(1) of
the Listing Rules.

At
BREB(ETRAUDE1IAZNES
BE_T-AFt+t-_A=t—HL
FE - LR E36(a) P EH
TR S X2 BREAER S M FF
BHERS - AARHEREETE
BLETRRUEIIARE T ZHER
EoAKBEERRC(ETRA) S
AAERTE  REFSREEWE
X5 |EMHPELIE

HEmmT

—FRREEF
—RIBENHEBE QR
—Draka® [ B2 R X [F 2K B A A
—RRES  —REEAQT

BEEME
—Draka®B B A &l
— KR EE

HTEFERE T
—Draka®IB B A &l

T RHRBRELZNEET
—Draka &I BB A &l

BRit 25 - RIBBCEMRAD F 14A
EEE AT LABEBARZEK
FERERS - BREBEC(ETRAD
FIIATONNMENRTE  ZFERXD
HERE#RRKTINRS @ BHE
BRZRCETHRAD F1IAZHH

EREZERS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coniinued)
S BN IC))

37 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 37 REEEPHMRREK

POSITION
2015 2014
=F-1F —T—F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mo 5T AR¥T T ARBTTT
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB K& RAE 871,836 780,060
Construction in progress EETRE 42,738 81,341
lease prepayments HETRRHKIE 114,127 117,788
Investment in subsidiaries RETBRRMIRE 443,161 225,063
Interest in associates KBS N AR 9,000 28,866
Interest in joint ventures REE R ER 482,487 470,165
Other non-current assets HiIEmEEE 425,851 112,673
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIAE B 10,644 25,342
Total non-current assets ERBEEHTE 2,399,844 1,841,298
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 608,413 697,065
Trade and bills receivables FEWEE N R E4E 2,065,842 1,738,977
Deposits, prepayments and ®’e  BNFEK
other receivables H b fE U FRIB 192,871 140,407
Other financial assets B pEE 1,861 -
Cash and cash equivalents BHERESEEY 1,782,808 1,863,299
Total current assets TEEEHLE 4,651,795 4,439,748
Current liabilities REBEE
Bank loans IRITER 1,377,957 1,177,364
Trade and bills payables FENMEEFR R EE 1,068,875 078,027
Accrued expenses and other payables Tl 8 A K H M e~ RIE 437,843 408,599
Income tax payable RIS FTIS R 7,506 1,658
Total current liabilities KB EHAE 2,892,181 2,565,648
Net current assets BEREBEE 1,759,614 1,874,100
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERARBERS 4,159,458 3,715,398
Non-current liabilities FREEE
Bank loans RITE 820,820 1,018,878
Deferred income EEW = 53,447 74,980
Total non-current liabilities EREEEERE 874,267 1,093,858
Net assets BEE 3,285,191 2,621,540
Capital and reserves RA R kit 32
Share capital A% 682,115 639,463
Reserves & 2,603,076 1,982,077
Total equity R 3,285,191 2,621,540
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
B 3 SR 2R B & (40

38

S5/

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in Note 32(b).

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a few amendments and new standards
which are not vet effective for the year ended 31 December
2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
eginning on or after

Annual Improvements fo IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle 1 January 2016
IFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts 1 January 2016
Amendments fo IFRS 11, Accounfing for 1 January 2016

acquisifions of inferess in joint operafions

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, 1 January 2016
Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41, 1 January 2016

Agriculture: Bearer plants

Amendments fo IAS 27, Equity method in 1 January 2016
separate financial statements
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28, 1 January 2016
Investment entifies: Applying the consolidation
exceplion
Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to |AS 7, Disclosure initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments fo IAS 12, Income faxes — Recognition 1 January 2017
of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
IFRS 9, Financial instruments (2014) 1 January 2018
IFRS 16, leases 1 January 2019

38

39

MR IFARSEE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
oY 3 3R 2R B & (40

39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial position.

39 EMHERKREBE-_F—HF

& K

+=A=+—H JLEEE%IE’M%
‘T %ﬁ"i AIMBREARETE RN

®

AREEEE G ELETHREAY
MHEE BERBRA/L  AKEM
5 RMELEFT TR EHAKE
MEBEBRBMABARRBREATE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wen Huiguo (Chairman)

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ma Jie

Mr. Yao Jingming

Mr. Philippe Claude Vanhille

Mr. Yeung Kwok Ki Anthony

Mr. Xiong Xiangfeng

Ms. Zheng Huili

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Ngai Wai Fung

Mr. Ip Sik On Simon

Mr. Li Ping

Mr. Li Zhuo

BOARD COMMITTEES

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Ngai Wai Fung (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Sik On Simon

Mr. Li Zhuo

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Ngai Wai Fung (Chairman)
Mr. Ip Sik On Simon

Mr. Frank Franciscus Dorjee

STRATEGY COMMITTEE
Mr. Wen Huiguo (Chairman)
Mr. Li Ping

M. Li Zhuo

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Mr. Jiang Zhikang

(Chairman, employee representative supervisor)
M. Liv Deming
Ms. Li Chang'ai

REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY IN CHINESE

ERACBAEBRD AR AT
NAME OF THE COMPANY IN ENGLISH

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
REER

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY
Mr. Wen Huiguo
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Wen Huiguo
Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk

SECRETARY OF THE BOARD
Mr. Han Qingrong
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheng Pik Yuk
INTERNATIONAL AUDITORS

KPMG

LEGAL ADVISORS TO THE COMPANY

Simpson Thacher & Bartlett (as to Hong Kong law)
Commerce & Finance Law Offices (as to PRC law)

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR
Messis Capital Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE

No. @ Guanggu Avenue,
East Lake High-tech Development Zone, Wuhan, Hubei Province
430073, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. @ Guanggu Avenue,
East Lake High-tech Development Zone, Wuhan, Hubei Province
430073, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen's Road East

Hong Kong
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)
REER

LISTING LOCATION
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
STOCK CODE

06869
CONTACT INFORMATION

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP DEPARTMENT

Tel: +8627 6878 9088

Fax: +8627 6878 9089

Address of Headquarters: No. 9 Guanggu Avenue,
East Lake Hightech Development Zone,
Wuhan, Hubei Province, 430073,
the PRC

Email: ir@yofc.com
WEBSITE

www.yofc.com
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

BEREirAR

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following RABES - BXESBEIN - ATHAR
terms shall have the meanings set out below: BB THE®RE :

"AOC” active optical cables

(BRI BRE

"Board” the board of directors of the Company

[EFE] RRPEEE

"Board of Supervisors” the board of supervisors of the Company

- RAREEE

"CG Code” the Corporate Governance Code as sef out in Corporate Governance Code and

[fEERTA
"China Huaxin”
[P EIZE(E]
“Company”
VNS
“Director(s)”
[E%]

"Draka”

[Draka
"ESOP”

R e
“EverPro”

[ R |

"fkm”

Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 to the Hong Kong Listing
Rules

BB LTRSS IALEE AT REEE ARSI B2 EEERTR

China Huaxin Post and Telecommunication Economy Development Center, an
entity incorporated in the PRC, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company

PEFEEHELEREDL NP BEEMAZNEE  BARAETERRZ —

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company*, a joint stock
limited company incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, the H shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
RALEBERODAR AR - RABEEMAZANBRNERAR - EHRKREE
BEXFTEIR £

director(s) of the Company
RRAREF

Draka Comteq B.V., a company incorporated in the Netherlands, one of the
substantial shareholders of the Company

Draka Comteq B.V. » REMEMKIZA AT @ RARBEZEREZ —

the 2015 Core Employee Stock Ownership Scheme of the Company approved on
19 October 2015
R-ZE-—AF+ATNABRBIEN —T-AF&08 TR E

EverPro Technologies Company Llimited, a company established in the PRC and
one of the subsidiaries of the Company

ROEEE)BRARAR - —FRPBEKIZZ AR RARFMBLRZ—

fibre kilometers, which represent kilometers of optical fibres. For optical fibre
preforms, means the kilometers of optical fibres that can be drawn from optical
fibre preforms. For optical fibre cables, means the kilometers of optical fibres
confained in optical fibre cables

KREREBELCAR - BULETAREMS - HAdREET N AN REE
7 - WAEMS @ BB BN REEN
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (Corinued
EBxRFEraEsE

"FTTH" fibre-to-the-home

[SeazIm | gl

"Global Offering” the issue of H shares of the Company by way of Hong Kong public offering and
international offering in 2014

[2IREE RRFR - E—HFAFEAFRBEERERHE A ETHER

"Group”, "the Group”, "us" or "we" the Company and its subsidiaries (i.e. the entities listed as subsidiaries of the

Company in Note 17 to the audited consolidated financial statements in this
annual report)

[AR&EE 3k [#f] RRBIREMBA R (BIAFREBRE HUBRERN T 77 REAQEME LR
GIPA-§ -

"Hong Kong” the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

(&% ] PEEERIITRE

"Hong Kong Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

[FEETRA EEBMARZMERARRES LA

"Hong Kong Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ & B AP BEMEZZMERAE

“Listing Date” 10 December 2014

[ A —F-mFE+=A+H

"Model Code” the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as sef out
in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules

[124E 7Rl 8 EMRAMSETPAE e EMBETAESTETESR S ZIRETA

“NK Wuhan” NK Wuhan Cable Co., ltd.

[EEZRS RELZIEEGRAA

"OVD" outside vapor deposition

[OVD] SNERE B SRARILAE

"PCVD" plasma activated chemical vapor deposition

[PCVD] EBEF R ERMEIIE

"PRC" the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report, excluding
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

[ hEARLAME - BRAFRNE - TRESE RFIKRAE

"Private Placement” the private placement of 30,783,000 new domestic shares of the Company and

11,869,000 new H shares of the Company for the purpose of implementing the
ESOP and the placing of H shares of the Company fo independent institutional
investors

[FERFIECE | FERFARCE 30,783, 000 AR RIFT A AR K 11,869, 0008 A A EFTHAL » A
HITE IR EI RSB MEBREEREHR
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (Coriinved

Bk FEiasE

“Prospectus”
[ ERE

“Relevant Period”

[ R

“RIC”
[RIC]

“RMB”
AR

“SFO" or “Securities and
Futures Ordinance”

B

“Supervisor(s)”

[B5= ]

“VAD"
[VAD ]

“Yangtze Communications”

[RITBE]

“YOFC”

B=3i

"YOFC Shanghai”

[RRLEE]

the prospectus of the Company dated 26 November 2014 in connection with the
Global Offering
ARABAAR/R_ZT—NF+—AZ+REZBKRER  ATBEREIREE

the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2014
tHRBE_T-ME+ - A=1+—HIHHE

rod-in-cylinder
REEEZN#

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

ARE - hBEIEEE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time

BREPIFRS7 1 BESFMMERS] - ETAEERI T

supervisor(s) of the Company

Z/NG

vapor axial deposition

A AR

Wouhan Yangtze Communications Industry Group Co., ltd, a company
incorporated in PRC, one of the substantial shareholders of the Company
RERTRAGEXERRMHABRAR  —FRFBETMEILIARF] - BERF]
FTERRZ—

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Company lid, a company incorporated in the
PRC as a sinoforeign equity joinf venture, the predecessor of the Company
RRABHEBERAR - RABZMEAZHFINGESERE - BARRIRIA]
=%

Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable (Shanghai) Co,. ld., a company established in
the PRC and one of the joint venture of the Company. It is owned as to 75% by the
Company and 25% by Draka

ERAEBAE(LB)ERAR  —HRPEKINRF  BARFEERALZ
— AR F KDraka D BIFER75%K25%
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